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DEFINITIONS

“associate(s)”
[EEZE A

“Board”

=3

“Bye-laws”
INGIFHETN

“China Oceanwide Group”
[FZz 5= ]

“China Oceanwide
Holdings Group”
[z B EE ]

“China Oceanwide
Holdings” or
“Company”

[FziEh] o [AR2F]]

“Director(s)”
[E%]

“Group”
[R&EE]

“HK$”
[

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“IDR”
[ENfESE

“Indonesia”

[ENfE ]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RE ]
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=1
B

means

=1
B

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
AR EWARE FZANERRE

the board of Directors
EEg
the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company

RRBIEBERRAM AR

China Oceanwide Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide

Holdings
RZEEERAT - RREBEMKINERAA - T2 8 ERN2E M
=N

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability and the controlling shareholder of
Oceanwide Holdings

FENZBIEREEBRLAGE - RRPEGMKIHERAR - T2 8ER
Y1 AR AR 3R

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 715), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose Shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

P ERBRAR (ORI 715) - BREFEIMALINBRAF -
HRMDABERZFrER

the director(s) of the Company

ARAES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREM B E

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BENEEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEESRITTHE

Indonesian Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia

EERE - ENEHDEE '™

the Republic of Indonesia

ENfE /e Ph g 2 Fn =

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt P E AR Al
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“Model Code”
[1Z%E<FAll]

“Oceanwide Holdings”

[ R ]

“PRC”
[

“RMB”
[ARE]

“SFO”

[ 3855 KBRS 501
“Share(s)”

[ &5 ]
“Shareholder(s)”

[ A%

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P |

“U.8.”
EE0

“US§’
ESH

wop»
[% ]

Unless otherwise specified, in this annual report, conversions of
US$ into HK$, RMB into HK$ and IDR into HKS$ in this annual
report are based on the exchange rate of US$1.00 = HK$7.7878,
RMB1.00 = HK$1.1163 and IDR1.00 = HK$0.000564 respectively
for illustration purpose only. No representation is made that any
amounts in US$, RMB, IDR or HK$ can be or could have been
converted at the relevant dates at the above rate or any other

rates at all.

means
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B

means
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B

means
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B

means
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B

means

means
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B

means
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B

means
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B

means

=1
B

means

=1
B

means
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* for identification purpose only 1Z {45

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FTRRIMI ST PR ETR BT AEZETES X SRR

Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code: 000046), a joint stock
company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the indirect controlling
shareholder of the Company

EERBRMDAERAR (FHMNHE - 000046) @ &5 H Bz B AR5
BREMERT - HROWRYIBHRX S LT - RALQEHEEZERRR

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual
report, shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

REARLINE - iAFHRME - TEEDE - PEIRFISIITRERAE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR hBREEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B REERD (HEEEGIE 571 &)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RARIRARFREESBE 0.10 TTH) BB

holder(s) of the Shares
IRESE=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARHAARRAR]

United States of America
EHBRETH

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the U.S.

XL KBZEEER

per cent.
Aotk

BEBHEHI  RAEFEIHA - ZFE T 0 &
M A RS B R HIE J& 52 8 1 T3 5
Bl #1.003 7T 7 7% #7.78787T ~ A B #
1.007T i & #1.1163;C & HIJE J&1.007T
5 B B50.0005647T £ (B K2 E - (£ 173
B2 BT X HEFMET  ARE -
HIJE J& g /& M 30 18 7] LA 2 & 7] LA R A B
H Btz |- it E 3K 5t J22 (F fa] B 1t 8 3R 57 44 o
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (“China Oceanwide
Holdings” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), being the platform of the overseas core businesses
of its controlling shareholder, Oceanwide Holdings Co., Ltd.”
(“Oceanwide Holdings”, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000046)), has devoted
itself to the investment in real estate development projects in the
first-tier cities of North America, property investment projects in
the core areas of Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC” or “China”) and other U.S. dollar or U.S. dollar concept
assets since 2015. Relying on the growth of the economy of the
United States of America (the “United States” or the “U.S.”)
and the stability of the U.S. dollar, and because of the diversified
investment and financing management channels as well as
outstanding professionals in the free market of Hong Kong, the
Group’s U.S. dollar denominated assets continued to grow in
size, and its asset value is expected to be released gradually in
line with the general trend. However, the Group encountered a
surge in financing costs due to the deterioration in the investment
and financing markets in Hong Kong and numerous obstacles
in policies on inbound and outbound capital flow amid drastic
economic fluctuations across the globe as a result of the ongoing
U.S.-China trade war (“Trade War”). To manage its liquidity, the
Group grasped the opportunity to dispose of some bonds and
other investments during the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
"Year"), thereby reducing its revenue. Regarding the property
investment sector, due to poor general economic environment
and the Trade War, some existing tenants early terminated their
leases or reduce their leased area, resulting in a decrease in
rental income. Looking forward, in response to market changes,
the Group will promote business growth and explore new revenue
stream by various means, as well as maintaining sound liquidity
by reducing or selling some of its assets to reduce cost in order
to maximise shareholders’ value in a sustainable manner.
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10

MACRO-ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The world’s economic condition in 2019 continued to fluctuate
due to China-U.S. tensions. The U.S. interest rate hikes slowed
down and the global economy growth was lower than what was
expected at the beginning of the Year. In China, the GDP growth
hit a record low in recent years but was within the expected
range, and the adjustment of the industrial structure has taken
effect. Meanwhile, China-U.S. trade negotiations made significant
progress at the end of the Year, with loosened monetary policies
both in the world and China, which led to reduced uncertainties.
As a result, the new economic structure has become increasingly
clear. Unfortunately, the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
epidemic (“COVID-19”) in 2020 casts further gloom over the
global economy. The production shutdown due to closed-off
management measures taken by provinces and cities in China
will cause a severe blow to the economy. It is anticipated that
the negative sentiment will put pressure on the property market
and the rental market, and thus the business environment will
become more volatile. It is foreseeable that both the global
capital environment and the macro strategic policies in China
will be focusing on the efficiency of capital operation, resulting in
concentrated capital flow into the real economy in the future. By
making macroeconomic judgements on the new global economic
scene, the Group is determined to adjust its existing strategic
policy according to the situation. Looking ahead, it will remain
cautious and will gradually shift its operating focus from US dollar
assets to light professional real estate investment business with
high liquidity. Capitalising on the ample resources, extensive
experience and leading vision of its controlling shareholder, the
Group will continue to take advantage of the strategic strength
and resources of Hong Kong’s platform to generate more returns
for its shareholders.

Currently, most of the development projects of the Group are
denominated in U.S. dollars and reported in Hong Kong dollars.
Although there were considerable fluctuations in the U.S. dollar
market, the financial data of the Group’s overseas (outside
China) projects did not show substantial exchange gain or loss
due to the linked exchange rate system in Hong Kong. However,
the income from properties in Shanghai was slightly adjusted
downward as a result of the weak Renminbi.
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After two consecutive years of high-intensity efforts on
“deleveraging” and “risk prevention” in China, some enterprises
encountered difficulties in financing and credit defaults have
become abundant. In the context of volatile fluctuations in
economic conditions, foreign exchange as well as credit
markets, the management of the Group strictly adhered to the
principle of stability and continued to control risks, with focus
on the adequacy of capital in supporting the progress of its
business development. Through flexible alignment of various
financing channels, the Group consolidated its overseas liquidity
and improved the efficiency of its cash utilisation in order to
ensure that its projects were developed in an orderly manner
according to sufficiency of funds, respective development plans
and corresponding timelines. With the unremitting efforts of the
management of the Group, the controlling shareholder continued
to provide the Group with financial support to ensure the liquidity
of the Group during the Year. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group has obtained a loan in the total amount of approximately
HK$6,805.4 million from the controlling shareholder (31
December 2018: HK$5,194.8 million).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group has transformed from a company engaging solely in
property investment into a conglomerate integrating property
investment, real estate development, energy and strategic finance
investment. As at 31 December 2019, total assets of the Group,
inclusive of the five real estate projects in the U.S. and the energy
project in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) currently
on hand, amounted to HK$24,914.1 million, representing an
increase of 3% as compared to HK$24,245.6 million of last year.
In particular, the scale of investment properties increased by 16%
to HK$5,127.1 million as compared to 2018, while the scale of
properties under development increased by 6% to HK$15,690.7
million as compared to 2018. Mainly located in prime locations
in major cities in the U.S., such properties will be developed into
diversified residential, hotel and commercial properties partly for
sale and partly for holding in the future and are expected to bring
revenue and returns to the Group.
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Consolidated loss attributable to the shareholders of the Group
for the Year amounted to HK$58.0 million (2018: HK$48.8 million)
while basic loss per share was HK0.36 cent (2018: loss per share
of HK0.30 cent).

Revenue for the Year amounted to HK$113.0 million (2018:
HK$138.6 million) and loss before interest expense and tax
(“LBIT") for the Year was HK$47.9 million (2018: HK$53.7
million). Excluding other net gains of HK$16.4 million' (2018:
net losses of HK$86.0 million), recurring LBIT for the Year was
HK$64.3 million (2018: recurring EBIT of HK$32.3 million). The
decrease in recurring EBIT was mainly due to a drop in revenue
for the Year, and the significant increase in operating expense
recognised in profit or loss due to the management’s intention
to focus resources on the development of certain projects, as a
result, the development of other projects have been delayed, part
of the expenses of those projects were not capitalized.

DIVIDEND

In order to retain sufficient capital for the Group’s future business
development and operation, the Board does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2018: Nil).

Other net gains (before tax and non-controlling shareholders’ interests) of
HK$16.4 million in 2019 included net exchange gains of HK$10.2 million, net
gains (before tax) on disposal of financial assets of HK$3.4 million, fair value
gains (before tax) on revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$3.3 million; net off with expected credit loss of HK$0.4 million.
Other net losses (before tax and non-controlling shareholders’ interests)
of HK$86.0 million in 2018 included the provision for asset impairment of
HK$77.6 million, exchange losses of HK$12.8 million, losses (before tax) on
fair value changes of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$0.7 million, provision for expected credit losses of HK$1.2 million; net off
with net gains (before tax) on disposal of financial assets of HK$6.3 million.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Property investment

During the Year, the property investment segment continued
to contribute stable rental income and profits with the two
office and commercial properties in Shanghai. However,
considering the overall economic environment and the Trade
War, the performance of export businesses of some existing
tenants deteriorated. Therefore, some tenants, including
international companies, have sought for early termination of
leases or reduction of leased areas to reduce their operating
costs. Coupled with the continual influx of new supplies in the
central business district of Puxi, the occupancy rates of the two
properties in Shanghai were adversely affected. Looking forward
to 2020, due to the recent outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
responded to Shanghai Municipal Government’s called on to
aid enterprises in this difficult time and implemented measures
to reduce rents and burdens and proposed a preliminary waiver
of rent within a specified period (“Rent-free Arrangement”) for
tenants with particular business, and a number of tenants have
applied for rent exemption or early termination of leases, which
will have an impact on the future income and occupancy rates
of these two properties in Shanghai. In addition to the Rent-free
Arrangement, it is expected the impact of the COVID-19 on the
economic activities of Shanghai may not be temporary, subject
to the recovery of the economic activities after the COVID-19, the
rental market for shops and offices may slow down, tenants may
request for further rental reduction or early termination subject
to their own business consideration. Vacancy is expected to
increase with no guarantee of new tenants to fill the vacancy
within a short period of time. As at 31 December 2019, the
average occupancy rate of the two office and commercial
properties in Shanghai was 91%.

Real estate development

In view of the stability of the U.S. economy and the continued
strong U.S. dollar, the Group maintained its focus on the
development of its U.S. real estate projects. All of the projects
are located in prime locations of major cities in the U.S. and are
positioned as mid- to high-end luxurious property complexes and
new regional landmarks. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had five real estate development projects as follows:
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Los Angeles Project

In October 2015, the Group successfully acquired the real estate
development project in Los Angeles, the U.S. from a subsidiary
of its parent company, Oceanwide Holdings. This project is
located in the core of Los Angeles near landmark buildings
such as Staples Center (home to the Lakers and the Clippers),
Microsoft Theater, Los Angeles Convention Center and The Ritz
Carlton. With considerable flow of people and customers, it is an
excellent site for the development of commercial complex. The
project covers a total land area of approximately 18,662 square
meters (“sgm”) with a gross floor area of approximately 138,249
sgm. It is planned to be developed into a large scale mixed use
urban commercial complex with three upscale condominiums,
a luxury five-star hotel under the “Park Hyatt” brand, which is
the topnotch hotel brand under the Hyatt group, a shopping
mall with a gross floor area of approximately 15,476 sgm, and
the largest LED signage panel on the west coast of the U.S..
The construction of the project commenced in the second half
of 2014. In 2018, construction works of the project for all main
structures were completed. Now, curtain wall installation works
for the main structures were completed. Over 85% of electrical
and mechanical controls and end devices of the tower building
were installed, 70% of the project’s electrical and mechanical
systems were completed; and over 60% of interior drywalls in
buildings 2 and 3 were installed. Having received from various
large and medium enterprises the letters of intent to lease, signing
of lease contracts of the commercial portion has been started.
As at 31 December 2019, total funds invested in the project were
approximately US$1,128.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,787.8 million).
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New York Project

In March 2016, the acquisition of the sites in New York was
completed. This project involves two parcels of land situated
in the core area of the Seaport District, Lower Manhattan, the
U.S., and are adjacent to the East River and close to the famous
Brooklyn Bridge on its east, looking toward New York Harbor
and the Statue of Liberty on its south, facing the World Trade
Center on its west and overlooking the skyline of the whole
Manhattan Island on its north. With a land area of approximately
1,367 sgm and a development area of 75,975 sgm, the site is
well-positioned for hotel and residential development. Certification
has been obtained from the City Planning Commission of the
City of New York in respect of the project, which is planned to
be developed into a mixed use building comprising a high-end
hotel and residential units. The project is currently at the stage
of preliminary planning. As at 31 December 2019, total funds
invested in the project were approximately US$406.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,165.7 million).

Hawaii Projects

Ko Olina No. 2 Land

In December 2015, the Group acquired certain parcels of land in
Ko Olina District on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the U.S., one of the
world’s most popular tourist destinations. These land parcels are
one of the scarce sites available for hotel development on Oahu
Island and have rich natural resources and a beautiful coastline
with a land area of approximately 70,000 sgm and an estimated
gross floor area of approximately 92,292 sgm. It is planned to
be developed into two luxury branded hotels and residential
condominiums. The project is currently at the stage of preliminary
planning. As at 31 December 2019, total funds invested in the
project were approximately US$214.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,670.5 million).

A IEH

4 30 R HO IR BB 7R 20164E3 A B X & »
HERUREESKE NGB REZL
HMEOMER - RERT - BERES
MAmBRMARB mk@OE  BmL
g MESAHOERESH L dLEE
BERASRBEESNRERZ - (GHERE
#91,367F 7oK - A B RETE AT75,975F
FK O REEMNBEREERERAM -
EHEEESAAMHMHREAZTEER
FoRTEIBREAK —EE S S mEEMT
EMRERAERNE EREENRAEE
2P R - A2019F12A381H B &R AHE
BB £ 44.0658F T (SR BE
31.6571&7T) °

EREEE
LG — 5 b

ANEER2015F 128 I B AL &2 Bk
BPRENE —NEEERERAS
RMfR s Tt ARAENFES
BIEERAM BEEEENBEAERM
BEXBE R EHELT0,000F 7 K -
TEH 4R A 15 4992,292F /5 K - 5T &
BRAMBREGMBAERASE - %A
B ERNATHIZE SRR - R2019%F12
H31H - BRABE ESH2.145(8% T
(FER L EB16.70587T) °

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

15



16

Ko Olina No. 1 Land

In September 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of three
parcels of land in Ko Olina District on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the
U.S. with an area of approximately 106,311 sgm. The Group
reached an agreement with the company of the “Atlantis” brand in
December 2016 to develop the land parcels into an international
luxury resort under the “Atlantis” brand, which will comprise
approximately 800 guestrooms, an aquarium, restaurants, bars,
spas, gyms, conference facilities and outdoor pools and bars,
etc. There will also be a branded residence component providing
approximately 524 luxury residences associated with the “Atlantis”
brand. The project is currently at the stage of preliminary
planning. As at 31 December 2019, total funds invested in the
project were approximately US$302.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,356.6 million).

Kapolei

In October 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of several
parcels of land in Kapolei on Oahu Island in Hawaii, the U.S. with
an area of approximately 2.07 million sgm. These parcels of land
are adjacent to the abovementioned land parcels in Ko Olina
District on Oahu Island and can create synergies and enhance
brand values. The land is planned to be used for the construction
of commercial and residential properties as well as community
facilities. The project is currently at the stage of preliminary
planning. As at 31 December 2019, total funds invested in the
project were approximately US$124.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$967.2 million).
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Energy

In 2015, the Group acquired companies to develop two coal-fired
steam power plants (each with a net capacity of 150 megawatts)
in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia (the “Medan Project”).
The project company for the Medan Project, PT. Mabar
Elektrindo, has entered into a power purchase agreement with
a local state-owned power grid company, PT Perusahaan Listrik
Negara (Persero). The structural construction for the Medan
Project is basically completed and the project is currently at the
installation stage. As at 31 December 2019, total funds invested
in the Medan Project were approximately US$362.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,819.2 million).

Finance investment and others

To manage its liquidity, the Group grasped the opportunity to
dispose of some bonds and other investments during the Year,
recording a gain on disposal of bonds of HK$4.1 million, loss
on disposal of non-publicly traded fund investments of HK$0.7
million and a fair value gain on revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of HK$3.3 million (2018: a net gain
of HK$6.3 million on disposal of some listed debt securities).

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate fair value of the Group’s
investment in securities, funds and bonds was HK$96.6 million
(31 December 2018: HK$379.0 million), representing 0.4% of the
Group’s total assets.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will gradually adjust its investment
portfolio to focus on light real estate investment projects. On
the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to be
cautious and will extensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable growth. With
an aim to improve profitability and lay a solid foundation for its
future development, the Group will actively seek opportunities to
optimise its asset allocation, and timely dispose of unprofitable
assets in exchange for more profitable business in the short term.

The management will focus primarily on liquidity management
and take the maintenance of sufficient capital reserve as our
first priority. Funds will be raised through disposing of non-core
businesses, increasing shareholders or third party loans, debt and
equity financing alternatives as well as various refinancing. We
will adjust the development progress of various projects, optimise
capital structure and reinforce the operation and management
of projects in order to control various capital and operation risks
that come with business growth. Meanwhile, the management
will place further efforts on project control and management, and
strictly control capital expenditures and various costs.
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As the Trade War is expected to be a protracted “battle”, the
management will closely monitor China’s macroeconomy and
policies and signs of changes in the global economy, political
landscapes, market environment and competition as well as
the impacts they may have on the Group, and will leverage the
advantages of the structure, market, capital and talents of Hong
Kong’s platform. Corresponding contingency measures will be
implemented when necessary. The management will also look
for profit growth points with higher efficiency of capital operation,
including short-term and long-term investments.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication. |
would also like to thank all of our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their continuous support.

HAN Xiaosheng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has developed into a conglomerate with synergetic
development in four major business segments, namely “Property
Investment”, “Real Estate Development”, “Energy” and “Finance
Investment and Others”, forming a sound business development
strategy. The management actively procured financing through
various financing channels according to its capital requirements.
All segments have taken shape. For the finance investment
segment, the management has restructured its portfolio and
disposed of certain assets when opportunity arises so as to
realise profits. For the real estate development segment, funds
have been channelled to the projects in an orderly manner. For
the energy segment, the energy project is now at the stage
of installation works. As to property investment, the Group
took various initiatives to maintain the occupancy rates. While
preserving business development and exploring new revenue
stream, the Group will continue to follow prudent financial
management principles and maintain sound liquidity in order to
maximise shareholders’ value in a sustainable manner.

Property investment

In 2019, revenue generated from the two office and commercial
properties in Shanghai under the property investment segment
amounted to HK$88.5 million (2018: HK$96.1 million). Earnings
before interest expense and tax (‘EBIT”) was HK$67.0 million,
representing a decrease of 17% from HK$81.0 million for the
corresponding period of 2018. The decrease in both revenue
and EBIT was mainly attributable to the depreciation of
Renminbi (“RMB”) and the decrease in occupancy rates. As at
31 December 2019, the average occupancy rate of these two
properties was 91%. Under the worsening economic environment
due to the recent outbreak of COVID-19, it is expected that
companies with insufficient cash flow might not be able to pay
their rents on time, leading to a reduction of leased areas or early
termination of leases. Coupled with the impacts of the Trade War
and the continual influx of new supplies in the central business
district of Puxi, Shanghai, the performance of the property
investment segment is expected to remain under pressure. The
management will cope with challenges in the market and strive
for higher occupancy rates by adjusting rent-free periods and
raising agency commissions.

BEEEN WK D

E 3 JE1)-

AEHEDERARIMERE]  [FHE
P TREREN I RIMBRE R EAM]
PO R MR 8 1 [F) 3% FR O AR B 1R AR (B 2K
AT —ERRONEBERRE &2
ERGHELASFT KN ZARER R
B BERREBHMBEMARE: B
BRETH BEEEEREEREAAS
HEBMNEE FHEMRE @ @ &E
HERFRRES  BERENREBET@E -
FRNREZKTERERS : MYIERET
o ARBEABRBRTAREHBEEX -
AEBRESHI N THHEDEBERN
PR KRR - B R SREREE A 12 B R
B -#sBRniEendt BRRK
REBBERIERAMNER-

MERE

2019 N - MIFERERMEMIELC N LB
MM AZERIANETROBA BB
8,850 T (20184 : B #09,610& JT) °
RINBFEZHEMBEIEN ((FER
HAIEF]) &7 #6,7008 T 82018
FREEZHEES1008 T D17% I
AMFERBABFBRIPEZERAR
B BZ (B LA K 7 3R R PR BT B 0 720194
12A318 - MEYEHFHHEZNA
91% - A EHIF B RSB RS BEK
BRBEEZ HERERNDETEIR
RS EmMEREREEEDESK
RAGEAMNBR NMLEESENFEM
EBEAZOEABERROFTIEHES
TEIEM MERERREEKFES
B EREESRBAAZELAE 5 MnF
NREERXNEEMSHE - AR
HFER o

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

21



22

Real estate development

With the unique and strategic foresights of the management, the
real estate development segment has acquired several quality
projects in the U.S. and is now in possession of over 2.26 million
sgm of land in prime locations of various major cities in the U.S.
for development. The total asset value of the Group’s projects in
the U.S. has reached HK$19,747.6 million with a total investment
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of US$2,176.2 million (equivalent to HK$16,947.8 million). A brief (HERBH160.478B L) » TRASHE
description of each project is set out in the following table: B EARER -
Fund invested
as at
31 December
Project name Site area 2019 Current project status Project development
R2019%
12A31 A
HRZR 1HER BRAEE  BERNER ERER
(sqm) (US$' million)
(FA%) (BE%70)
Los Angeles Project 18,662 11284 Construction works for all main structures were completed;  Upscale condominiums, a luxury five-star
RV EER curtain wall installation works for the main structures were hotel under the “Park Hyatt" brand,
completed; over 85% of electrical and mechanical controls — a large-scale shopping mall and the
and end devices of the tower building were completed, largest LED signage panel on the west
70% completion for the installation of the project’s overall coast of the U.S.
electrical and mechanical systems; and over 60% of interior  SHAE I [RIEE]
drywalls in buildings 2 and 3 were installed. RETLHRENZEERE  AHED
TRAATRERIRAE  THTEMERRTR B5REERRSAR LED REME
RENRENHOEETENRRRBC THRBS% B
RERBEZGTN 10% ER 2 3HEZARESD
B e 60% °
New York Project 1,367 406.5 At the stage of preliminary planning. A mixed use complex comprising high-end
MAER ERAIAERIRE - hotel and residential units
BAERERAFENEAREAE
Hawaii Ko Olina 70,000 2145 At the stage of preliminary planning. Two luxury branded hotels and residential
No. 2 Land Project ERAIHEZIRE - condominiums
SEARS i MERERREERAS
Hawail Ko Olina 106,311 302.6 At the stage of preliminary planning. An international luxury resort under the
No. 1 Land Project BRAIEEERE - “Atlantis” brand with luxury residences
ERRPIE-SER and a hotel
BRI [Mantis] (EREHS) mige
HERRERRN  ARRE0EREE
Hawail Kapolei Project 2,066,286 124.2 At the stage of preliminary planning. Commercial, residential properties and

BRI THERER
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CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

community facilities

A% EERHERR



As the above projects are currently not in operation but in the
preliminary stage of development, loss before interest expense
and tax (“LBIT”) of the real estate development segment
amounted to HK$74.7 million (2018: HK$105.2 million). The
decrease in LBIT during the Year was mainly attributable to the
impairment provision of HK$77.6 million made for the New York
Project in 2018. Excluding the impairment loss, LBIT increased to
HK$74.7 million in 2019 as compared with HK$27.6 million in the
corresponding period of 2018. The increase in LBIT was mainly
attributable to the management’s intention to focus resources on
the development of certain projects. As a result, the development
of other projects have been delayed and part of the expenses
of those projects were not capitalised, resulting in a significant
increase in the operating expense recognised in profit or loss.

Energy

In 2015, the Group acquired companies to develop two coal-fired
steam power plants (each with a net capacity of 150 megawatts)
in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia (the “Medan Project”).
The project company for the Medan Project has entered into a
power purchase agreement with a local state-owned power grid
company, PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero). The structural
construction for the Medan Project is basically completed and
the project is now at the installation stage. Upon commencement
of operation, the Medan Project is expected to contribute a
stable revenue stream to the Group. As at 31 December 2019,
total funds invested in the Medan Project were approximately
US$362.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,819.2
million).

As the Medan Project is currently at the stage of installation
works, LBIT of the energy segment for the Year was HK$34.8
million (2018: HK$20.0 million). The increase in LBIT was primarily
attributable to an increase in operating costs expensed during the
Year.
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Finance investment and others

In 2019, revenue from the finance investment and others
segment was HK$24.6 million, representing a decrease of 42%
as compared to HK$42.5 million in 2018. LBIT for the Year was
HK$5.4 million (2018: HK$9.5 million). Excluding other net gains
for 2019 and other net losses for 2018, LBIT for the Year was
HK$21.8 million (2018: HK$2.3 million). The increase in LBIT was
mainly due to the decrease in dividend and interest income.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s unlisted
equity securities was HK$96.6 million (31 December 2018: fair
value of listed and unlisted equity securities, fund and debt
investments of HK$379.0 million). The decrease was mainly due
to the disposal of some Hutchison Whampoa bonds and other
investments when opportunities arose.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY OF THE
GROUP

Looking ahead, the Group will gradually adjust its investment
portfolio to focus on light real estate investment projects. On
the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to be
cautious and will extensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable growth. The
Group will also actively seek opportunities to optimise its asset
allocation, and timely dispose of unprofitable or low-return assets
in exchange for more profitable business in the short term, with
an aim to improve profitability and lay a solid foundation for its
future development.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Fund Management

The primary treasury and funding policies of the Group focus on
liquidity management to achieve an optimum level of liquidity,
while funding subsidiary operations in a cost-efficient manner.
Management closely monitors the liquidity position of the Group
to ensure the liquidity structure, comprising assets, liabilities and
commitments, of the Group can meet its funding requirements.
The Group’s finance department will source funding by
borrowings and issuance of debts, convertible bonds and new
shares when necessary. Operating as a centralised service, the
finance department manages the Group’s funding needs and
monitors financial risks, such as those relating to interest and
foreign exchange rates, as well as counterparty.

During the Year, the Group did not enter into any interest or
currency swaps or other financial derivative transactions.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities
except for cash and bank deposits, loans receivables, note
receivables, lease liabilities, bank and other loans, amount due
to an intermediate holding company, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary and convertible notes. The interest rates for the loans
receivables, note receivables, lease liabilities, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, amount due to a fellow subsidiary,
certain other loans and convertible notes are fixed, and the
interest expense of certain other loans at variable rates were
capitalized.
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Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollar (“US$”), HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”) as
the Group’s revenue and the operating costs are denominated
in these currencies. The Group is also exposed to other
currency movements, primarily in terms of investments in the
United States and Indonesia, bank deposits, loans, note and
interest receivables, certain other loans and amount due to an
intermediate holding company denominated in US$. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group has not entered into any derivative
instruments to hedge its foreign exchange exposures. The
Group’s management manages this risk by closely monitoring
the exchange rate movement and changes in market conditions
that may have a significant impact on the operations and financial
performance.

Market price risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures relate to its
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and through
other comprehensive income, which mainly comprise debt and
equity securities. The Group closely monitors the price movement
and changes in market conditions that may have an impact on
the value of these financial assets.

Credit risk

Surplus of the Group’s capital are to be managed in a prudent
manner, usually in the form of bank deposits with financial
institutions with good credit ratings. The senior management
of the Group regularly monitors price movements of financial
institutions and its counterparties and credit ratings and sets
limits for the total amount of credit for each of its counterparties,
in order to manage and control default and credit risks.
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As at 31 December 2019, the other receivables of the Group
were mainly (i) loans and interest receivables made to the
non-controlling shareholder of the energy project to develop
two coal-fired steam power plants (with a net capacity of 150
megawatt each) in the Medan industrial zone of Indonesia (as
at the date of this announcement, the Group is still negotiating
with the non-controlling shareholders on the renewal of the loan
agreement, and the Group is working to reach an agreement
with the non-controlling shareholders on the renewal of the loan
agreement); and (i) notes receivable repayable within 2 years.

Liquidity and Working Capital

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total unsecured and
unrestricted cash, liquid funds and listed investments amounted
to HK$70.4 million (31 December 2018: HK$678.0 million),
24.8%, 65.2% and 9.6% (31 December 2018: 9.2%, 88.6%
and 2.2%) of which were denominated in US$, HK$ and RMB
respectively, and the remainder were denominated in various
other currencies.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and other loans
(including convertible notes) of HK$5,363.1 million (31 December
2018: HK$6,147.5 million), of which nil (31 December 2018:
HK$3,025.7 million) were floating-rate borrowings repayable
within one year, HK$1,609.9 million (31 December 2018:
HK$1,488.2 million) were fixed-rate borrowings repayable
within one year, HK$1,276.0 million (31 December 2018: Nil)
were floating-rate borrowings repayable in two to five years and
HK$2,477.2 million (31 December 2018: HK$1,633.6 million)
were fixed-rate borrowings repayable in two to five years. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group also had an amount due to
an intermediate holding company of HK$6,805.4 million (31
December 2018: HK$5,194.8 million), which was fixed-rate
borrowing repayable in one to two years. The Group’s gearing
ratio (being calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity)
as at 31 December 2019 was 50.8% (31 December 2018:
56.9%).
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The Group will seek to secure additional financing for its
continuous development and construction. The management
team expects to obtain bank loans to finance the construction
costs of the projects and the operations of the Group. In the
event that any or all of the above loans cannot be secured, the
Group will be able to obtain additional working capital through
alternative fund raising activities, such as equity financing and/or
loans from the Company’s intermediate holding companies and/
or any other parties, with the financial support of the Company’s
controlling shareholder.

Cash Flows

During the Year, net cash used in operating activities and
investing activities amounted to HK$448.9 million (2018:
HK$2,145.1 million) and HK$333.9 million (2018: HK$296.4
million), respectively. The decrease in net cash used in operating
activities was mainly due to the delay in development of certain
overseas projects during 2019. Net cash generated from
financing activities during the year amounted to HK$217.5 million
(2018: HK$2,413.4 million) mainly included borrowings from an
intermediate holding company.

Charges and contingent liabilities

The details of the pledged assets and contingent liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in Notes 34 and
35 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report
respectively.

Apart from Notes 34 and 35, the Group had not created any
other guarantee or other contingent liabilities during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 86 employees
(2018: 114). Total staff remuneration costs (including the
Directors’ emoluments) for the Year amounted to HK$90.5 million
(2018: HK$113.4 million).

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages of its
employees are competitive and that individual performance is
rewarded according to the remuneration management policy
the Group. The remuneration packages of the employees are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company has in place a share
option scheme adopted on 19 May 2015 to provide incentives
and rewards to the participants for their contributions to the
Group. No option had been granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme since its date of adoption.

PAST PERFORMANCE AND FORWARD
LOOKING STATEMENTS

The performance and the results of operations of the Group
contained in this annual report are historical in nature, and past
performance is not able to provide guarantee for the future
results of the Group. Any forward-looking statements and
opinions contained within this announcement are based on
current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore involve
risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from
the expectations discussed in such forward-looking statements
and opinions. The Group, the Directors, and the employees
and agents of the Group assume (a) no obligation to correct or
update the forward-looking statements or opinions contained in
this annual report; and (b) no liability in the event that any of the
forward-looking statements or opinions do not materialise or turn
out to be incorrect.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, aged 63, has been an executive Director
since November 2014 and a chairman of the Board since
December 2014. Mr. HAN is also a chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) under
the Board as well as a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is currently
a chairman of the supervisory committee of Oceanwide Holdings.
He is also an executive director and a chairman of China Tonghai
International Financial Limited (“China Tonghai International
Financial”, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 952)). Mr. HAN previously served as an executive
director and a chief executive officer of Oceanwide Holdings
(from May 2015 to March 2019). He obtained a Master’s degree
in economics from Renmin University of China in July 1996
and a Doctor’s degree in management science from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in June 2018.

Mr. LIU Hongwei, aged 53, has been an executive Director
since November 2014 and a deputy chairman of the Board since
January 2020. Mr. LIU is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He is currently a non-executive director of
CuDECO Limited, whose shares are previously listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange (Stock Code: CDU), delisted in
February 2020. He is also an executive director of China Tonghai
International Financial. Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in engineering from Dalian Ocean University in July 1989 and a
Master’s degree in management from Massey University in New
Zealand in April 2006.

Mr. LIU Bing, aged 62, has been an executive Director since
November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He is currently a vice chairman of Minsheng
Holdings Co., Ltd.* (“Minsheng Holdings”), whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000416).
He is also a non-executive director of China Tonghai International
Financial. Mr. LIU obtained his Master’s degree in business
administration from Sacred Heart University in the U.S. in August
1989.
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Mr. ZHANG Xifang, aged 47, has been an executive Director
since August 2017. Mr. ZHANG is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is currently a director of
Oceanwide Holdings and an executive director of China Tonghai
International Financial. He served as a head of the operation
division of the finance and asset management department and a
deputy director of the finance and asset management department
of State Grid Corporation of China, a deputy general manager of
State Grid Asset Management Co., Ltd.*, a director and a deputy
general manager of State Grid Yingda International Holdings
Group Co., Ltd.*, a general manager of Yingda Taihe Property
Insurance Co., Ltd.* and a chairman of Yingda Insurance Asset
Management Co., Ltd.*. Mr. ZHANG studied the undergraduate
programme of accounting at Central University of Finance and
Economics from September 1991 to June 1995 and obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of economics. He also studied the programme
of business administration at Tsinghua University School of
Economics and Management from March 2006 to January 2009
and received a Master’s degree in business administration.

Mr. LIU Guosheng, aged 51, has been an executive Director
since November 2014. Mr. LIU is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. He is a senior accountant in the
PRC. Mr. LIU is currently a chief financial officer of Oceanwide
Holdings. Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics
from Hangzhou Dianzi University in July 1991 and a Master’s
degree in economics from Wuhan University in December 2008.

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, aged 49, has been a non-executive
Director since November 2014. Mr. ZHAO is also a member of
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) under the Board.
He is a senior accountant in the PRC and is currently a deputy
chairman of the supervisory committee of Oceanwide Holdings,
the chairman of the supervisory committee of Minsheng Holdings
and a non-executive director of China Tonghai International
Financial. Mr. ZHAO previously served as an executive director
of Oceanwide Holdings. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
economics from Renmin University of China in January 1997
and a Master’s degree in engineering from Beihang University in
January 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jipeng, aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. He is also a chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. LIU is a senior economist and certified public
accountant in the PRC. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., whose shares are dually listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1988) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600016), and China Tonghai International Financial; an
independent director of Zhongjin Gold Corp., Ltd.*, whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600489), Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd.,
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000625) and China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial
Park Development Group Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601512). He also
previously served as an independent non-executive director of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 169)) (from 2013 to
2019) and Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (whose
shares were previously listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 3699) and delisted in September 2016)) (from 2012 to
2016). Mr. LIU obtained a Bachelor’s degree in economics from
Capital University of Economics and Business in July 1983 and a
Master’s degree in economics from Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in July 1986.
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Mr. YAN Fashan, aged 68, has been an independent non-
executive Director since November 2014. Mr. YAN is also a
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee. He is currently a professor in the
school of economics at Fudan University and an independent
director of Pengqi Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
600614)). He obtained a Master’s degree in economics from
Fudan University in 1981 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
economics from Fudan University in June 1998.

Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy, aged 48, has been an independent
non-executive Director since November 2014. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. LO is a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the CPA Australia and an associate of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. LO is currently an independent non-executive director
of several companies whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, including Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1335), Sun Hing Vision Group Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 125), China Zhongwang Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1333), Xinming China Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2699), China Tonghai International Financial, Wan Kei
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1718) and G-Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1051). He also serves as a
managing director of Shinewing (HK) CPA Limited, a member
of the Shanghai Pudong New Area Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and the executive
vice-president and an executive council member of the Hong
Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association. Mr. LO
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in business administration from
University of Hong Kong in November 1993 and a Master’s
degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2000.
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Senior Management

Mr. WU Chen, aged 49, has been a deputy chief executive
officer of the Company since December 2014 and re-designated
as chief executive officer of the Company since January 2020.
Mr. WU is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
He is an engineer in the PRC. He is currently a vice president
of Oceanwide Holdings. Mr. WU obtained a Master’s degree in
business administration from Roosevelt University in the U.S..

Mr. SHI Yuehong, aged 56, has been a risk control director of
the Company since December 2014. Mr. SHI is a senior engineer.
He holds a degree in construction engineering from Tongji
University.

Ms. WAN Wing Sze May, aged 43, has been a chief financial
officer of the Company since March 2015. Ms. WAN joined
the Company in January 2004. Ms. WAN holds a Bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She has more than 20 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, financial management and business control
and has extensive experience in corporate restructuring.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders its report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are property investment
in the PRC, real estate development in the U.S. and the
development in the energy sector in Indonesia as well as finance
investment and others. Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2019 (if any) as well as an indication
of likely future development in the business of the Group are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 8 to 19 of this
annual report, and the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 20 to 29 of this annual report. The above sections form an
integral part of this report of directors.

The analysis of the revenue and results by principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group conducts its business in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations and integrates industry best practices
into our operations where appropriate. Details of the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 66 to 92
of this annual report and the 2019 Social Responsibility Report
which is available at websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited. The relevant discussions in this
annual report and the 2019 Social Responsibility Report form part
of this report of directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 106 of
this annual report.

No final dividend is recommended by the Board for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 18 June 2020, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 15 June 2020 to
Thursday, 18 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 June
2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 8 to 19 and
pages 20 to 29 of this annual report respectively. Description of
the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed in
Notes 6, 7, 35 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and
events that have taken place during the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
from pages 20 to 29 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Particulars on the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated statement
of changes in equity from pages 114 to 116 of this annual report
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2019 calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda amounted
to nil.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the movements of properties, plant and equipment,
investment properties and properties under development during
the year are set out in Notes 17, 18 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group are set out from
pages 274 to 276 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

HAN Xiaosheng
LIU Hongwei
LIU Bing
ZHANG Xifang
LIU Guosheng

Non-executive Director

ZHAQO Yingwei

Independent Non-executive Directors

LIU Jipeng
YAN Fashan
LO Wa Kei Roy

Note: ZHANG Fubiao was a non-executive Director but he resigned with effect from
31 May 2019. CAl Hongping was an independent non-executive Director but
he resigned with effect from 31 May 2019.
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In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Messrs.
ZHANG Xifang, ZHAO Yingwei and LO Wa Kei Roy shall retire by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out from pages 30 to 34 of this annual
report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INFORMATION UNDER RULE
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
the Directors and chief executive, the changes in the information
of the Directors and chief executive required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to the
date of the Company’s 2019 interim report are set out below:

Name of Director/chief
executive

B BEnR

Details of Change
BEFE

RIBARMAFE 205 REF KL B
REAEREEEREARBERAFA
ELRESR ERFTEERILBE
REREFRNE L EEET -

EEREAREEEME

ARBERELSRERBEEHNAF
HMEIVEEEB4E ©

R

BELEHHEANE1351BI)VMEE
HEERARER

RARRABEHREESNAMFEE
Rig - BARNRRI2019F F R E H % -
RIE EHARBE1B5IBO)RERENE
ENBEHERZEBHHIIMT

HAN Xiaosheng Ceased to be chief executive officer of the Company on 22 January 2020.

FRE A 202051 A22 B #& IEHEAR R RIEE -

LIU Hongwei Appointed as deputy chairman of the Board on 22 January 2020.

21z R2020F 1 A22A R EREFEEIEFE -

WU Chen Re-designated from deputy chief executive officer to chief executive officer on
RE 22 January 2020.

R2020%F1 228 HEIRE BT AR R RIEE -

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”) an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all of them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the businesses of the
Group, to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year and without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts of the Directors, no contracts (as
defined in Section 543 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622))
relating to the management and/or administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Directors had interests in the
following businesses (apart from the businesses of the Company
or its subsidiaries) conducted through the companies named
below, their subsidiaries, associated companies or other
investment forms which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the principal businesses
of the Group conducted during the year required to be disclosed
as follows pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules:
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Position(s)

Nature of Competing

Name of Director Name of Company of Director Business
Esps NCIEE BEERM BEEEUE
HAN Xiaosheng China Oceanwide Holdings Group Executive Director Real estate investment
B4 FEZEEREE WITES FiERE
Oceanwide Holdings Chairman of Supervisory Real estate development
IR Committee and investment
EEgERE FiERZEEERE
LIU Hongwei China Oceanwide Holdings Group Vice President Real estate investment
KR FEZ SRR EE gl@z FiMERE
LIU Bing China Oceanwide Holdings Group Executive Director, Executive Real estate investment
211k REZ B E Vice President, Risk BitERE
Management Director
WITEF  HMiTRIEE
2 e 2 1) 48 B
ZHANG Xifang China Oceanwide Holdings Group Executive Vice President Real estate investment
REF FEZ R EE HITRIEE FBHERE

LIU Guosheng
2B 7+

ZHAQ Yingwei
HRE

Oceanwide Holdings
2R

Oceanwide Holdings

= BRI

China Oceanwide Holdings Group

REZ SRR

Oceanwide Holdings
B

Director, Executive Vice
President
B 97RLH

Chief Financial Officer
B s M L

Executive Director, Executive
Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer

WITES BRI
e

Deputy Chairman of
Supervisory Committee
EFgETRE
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Real estate development and
investment

FHEMZERE

Real estate development and
investment

FHERZERE

Real estate investment

BHERE

Real estate development and
investment

FERZERE



As the Board is independent of the board of directors of
the above entities, the Group has been able to carry on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length with, the above
entities. Further, although the above entities are also engaged in
real estate development/investment, no competition is considered
to exist among members of the Group (which focus on offshore
investments) and the above entities (which focus on onshore
investments).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted on 19 May 2015, under
which the Directors may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Shares, subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated therein.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the participants (the “Participants”) with an opportunity to
obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus linking their
interest with the interest of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interest of the
Group.
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Participants

The Board may, at their discretion, invite any Directors
(whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), any employee (whether full-time
or part-time) and any consultant or adviser of or to the
Company or the Group (whether on an employment or
contractual or honorary basis and whether paid or unpaid),
who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Company or the Group, as the
Participants.

Total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme

The refreshment of scheme mandate limit under the Share
Option Scheme was approved by the Shareholders at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 23 May 2019.
The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshment of scheme mandate limit under Share Option
Scheme (i.e. 23 May 2019), being 1,614,265,306 Shares.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to each Participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue
as at the date of grant unless approved by the Shareholders
in general meeting.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be such price to be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified to the
Participant in the offer and shall be at least the higher of:

(@) the closing price per Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
offer date;
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(b) the average closing price per Share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five (5) consecutive business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and

(c) the nominal value per Share.

Option Period

A period of time where the grantee may exercise the option
(the “Option Period”), which period in any circumstances
shall not be more than 10 years from the offer date to be
notified by the Board to each grantee which the Option
Period shall commence on the offer date and expire on the
last day of the Option Period as determined by the Board.

Exercise period

Subject to the any condition or restriction in connection with
the exercise of the option which may be imposed by the
Board when granting the option and the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme, the option may be exercised by the
grantee (or his or her legal personal representative(s)) at any
time during the Option Period.

Term of the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
on or after the date of the tenth anniversary of the date on
which the Share Option Scheme becomes unconditional (the
“Scheme Period”), but in respect of all options which remain
outstanding and exercisable on the expiry of the Scheme
Period, the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.
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No option had been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since its date of adoption.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity- linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

RIGHTS ISSUE

No rights issues were conducted by the Company during the
Year.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 27 December 2018, the Company issued convertible notes
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$600 million with
the initial conversion price of HK$0.71 per share (subject to
adjustment). For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 12, 20, 27 and 28 December 2018 and
Note 30d to the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from the
issue of the notes of HK$587.5 million have been utilised in
the following ways: (i) as to HK$556.5 million for refinancing
two loans advanced by licensed banks in Hong Kong; (i) as to
HK$14.0 million for interest payment; and (i) as to approximately
HK$17.0 million for the general operating expenses.

As at the date of this annual report, the conversion right attaching
to the notes had not been exercised by the noteholders.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in Note 30d to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations amounted to HK$783,000 (2018: HK$784,000) were
made by the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which enables the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES IN THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors were deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Company’s own Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) were
as follows:

() Long positions in Shares

ESRERNBEZ ZER

AR B EAATH B QRN F AL ERT
TEMZE BEEEANEBEARA
A H AR A B 88 2 B 17 3l 1B 75 1 &

2z
S o

I

EERAQAREEEERE 2
Rt HEROREZH 28

3L T MK A
= MRB

M2019512A31H EERBEKB L
BMBARARARREEEEZE (EERFH
H REAEGHIEXVER) 2 & 1n - BEER®%
kEHFTHE VYEREBEESFRBEK
Bl SEXVEL 7 R B85 B A& A N &) K B
RzERRAE (BEREZESRAE
Pl 2 ZEENEETHER BB E EH
BEZREBRRKR)  KBIARRQRIRE
BELHE GBI RER/ETEZERL
A HERBRRARAF ZEFEST
BAHAXGHNEEFR([EHTR AE
RARRBRTzEmRABRIT

N ARGBZHRE
Approximate %

of shareholding
in the Company

Number of EARATF
Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests Shares held BEZBN
EEHR 56 EEME FERAEE BALt
LIU Jipeng Beneficial owner Personal interest 9,212,000 0.05
242 15 EnEAA & A #E =
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Holdings

(1) Long positions in shares of Oceanwide

M REZBERBRGZHFR

Number of
ordinary shares
in Oceanwide

Approximate%
of shareholding
in Oceanwide

Holdings held Holdings
Name of Director Capacity Nature of Interests FriEeBiER (th2BERRE
EsnE E40) EHEMEE EBEREE ZBAE D
HAN Xiaosheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 3,500,000 0.06
BREAE ERERA (BN F
LIU Bing Beneficial owner Personal interest 90,000 0.001
2Kk ERERA (BN F
LIU Hongwei Beneficial owner Personal interest 30,000 0.0005
2 EmfEAA (BN F
ZHANG Xifang Beneficial owner Personal interest 276,000 0.005
REF ERERA (BN F
LIU Guosheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 400,000 0.007
25 7t ERERA (BN F
ZHAO Yingwei Beneficial owner Personal interest 200,000 0.003
HRE EmEA A (EPNF
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of Br £ SCPETHEBE A AN 0 R2019F 12 A 31
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and H ARAEERESITHABNURE

their respective associates had any other interests or short

TEanb

P8 ABLER AR E S E AR

positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Securities Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2019,
the following persons had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

FTERREEMATRARKRSD K
HERD 2 EERKR

MEZRA - R2019F128318 » T3
ATRBROKBEERODFEEREZS
K BB A& B SEXVED B2 K 35 56 2 &
BRANREBEZEDIAR KB
AR R REREH KA E & E3361KT7F
EERMUEMFRNAEARRE R
BEZZ P 2 HERm SR A

Long positions in Shares RBRGZEFR

Approximate %

of shareholding

Number of in the Company

Name Capacity Shares held {hAATRREZ

wEEZB g7 FiEROEE BHABE D

LU Zhigiang Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
&R SRk NG £ (Note 1)
(MF5E1)

HUANG Qiongzi Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
mIEZ k| N o ] (Note 1)
(PfFEE1)

Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
REBERBRAG e VNG (Note 2)
(Fft3E2)

Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
wEBEEBRAG REEH AT (Note 3)
(Mf5E3)

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
FEZ BIEREE e E k| N o ] (Note 3)
(PR 3E3)

Oceanwide Holdings Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
e R REHI AR 2w (Note 4)
(Bt 3E4)
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Approximate %
of shareholding

Number of in the Company
Name Capacity Shares held {EXAFREZ
BmEEZB g4 Fr¥s iR 0 8B BHABE DL
China Oceanwide Group Interest of controlled corporations 12,097,903,178 74.94
hZEHE k| /N o £l (Note 5)
(M$5E5)
Oceanwide Holdings International Beneficial owner 11,346,403,178 70.28
Co., Ltd EnlEEA (Note 5)
281 AR BB A BR A A (P 3E5)
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Interests of controlled corporations 10,104,405,608 62.59
BBEBHROBRAF RPEH AT 2 (Note 6)
(P E6)
Haitong International Interest of controlled 10,104,405,608 62.59
Holdings Limited corporations (Note 7)
AR REREB R A A SN - £ (PR E7)
Haitong International Securities Interest of controlled 10,104,405,608 62.59
Group Limited corporations (Note 8)
BBERESEEBERAR k| /N Do £l (PF5E8)
Haitong International Financial Security interest in Shares 9,414,265,108 58.31
Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. BERNHREER (Note 8)
(P E8)
Notes: G
(1) Mr. LU Zhigiang and Ms. HUANG Qiongzi (spouse of Mr. LU Zhigiang) (1) BEFRETERSBEXL (EFRTEZRB)
together held more than one-third of the voting power at general meetings AEABEBSERERAFABRERAE LA
of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LU Zhigiang and ENZZBRRE - -RBEFRBEGE
Ms. HUANG Qiongzi were deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Eﬁ%ﬁ%%&%%;’éﬁi%&ﬁ 79517\\@' HERR
Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* is interested. BIRAREA B 2 P RIS A
@ BEERABRABDFEZEEEERAA

(2) Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* held 100% equity interest in Oceanwide Group
Co., Ltd.*. By virtue of the SFO, Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.* was deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* was
interested.
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Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* held 98% equity interest in China Oceanwide
Holdings Group. By virtue of the SFO, Oceanwide Group Co., Ltd.* was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which China Oceanwide
Holdings Group was interested.

China Oceanwide Holdings Group directly and indirectly held 68.49% equity
interest in Oceanwide Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, China Oceanwide
Holdings Group was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Oceanwide Holdings was interested.

Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd and Oceanwide Holdings
International Finance Ltd are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of China
Oceanwide Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide
Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, China Oceanwide Group and Oceanwide
Holdings were deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 12,097,903,178
Shares, including: (i) 11,346,403,178 Shares held by Oceanwide Holdings
International Co., Ltd and (ii) 751,500,000 Shares held by Oceanwide
Holdings International Finance Ltd. Oceanwide Holdings International
Co., Ltd and Oceanwide Holdings International Finance Ltd have charged
8,250,585,108 Shares and 751,500,000 Shares respectively in favour of
Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. for a loan
facility. Oceanwide Holdings International Co., Ltd. has also charged
3,095,818,070 Shares in favour of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch in order to secure the obligations of China Tonghai
International Financial Limited (“CTIF”, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 952)), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Oceanwide
Holdings, under a credit facility.

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd holds 100% equity interest in Haitong
International Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong Securities
Co., Ltd was deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Haitong
International Holdings Limited was interested.

Haitong International Holdings Limited held 64.40% equity interest in
Haitong International Securities Group Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong
International Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in all the Shares
in which Haitong International Securities Group Limited was interested.

Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and Haitong
International Financial Products Limited are the indirect subsidiaries of
Haitong International Securities Group Limited. By virtue of the SFO, Haitong
International Securities Group Limited was deemed to be interested in (i)
9,414,265,108 Shares in which Haitong International Financial Products
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. had security interest and; (ii) 690,140,500 Shares
beneficially owned by Haitong International Financial Products Limited.

RESEARARDFATEZEZERER
98% M HE - RIFFF LB - 2 EEE
BEREATBRERATEZGEREDERE
mOTAERMD P EA RS -
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68.49%Mk 1 - IRIEF H KRB KO - R EZ
HEREERE AR BB EA RO
BERGPHEAER -
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11,346,403,1781% I 15 K (ii) 72 B IER B R &
B AR A A4 A H751,500,0000% B 17 © 528
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there was
no other person who held interests and/or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which was required, to be entered in
the register to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO,
or was a substantial Shareholder.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions entered by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements, of which (a)
the transactions summarised in Note 36a(i)(3), b(i)(1), b(iv), c(i),
d(ii) and e(i) constituted non-exempted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules; (b) the transactions summarised in Note
36b(v) and 36(f) constituted non-exempted one-off connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules; and (c) the transactions summarised in Note
36a(i)(1) to (2), a(ii), b(i)(2) to bfiii), 36b(v), d(i) and e(ii) constituted
continuing connected transactions which are fully exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules.

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Material Related
Party Transactions” as set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements and those connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions disclosed herein below,
there were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its ultimate
holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or its connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group conducted
the following transactions which constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Consulting Services Agreement

On 30 December 2015, China Oceanwide International
Investment Company Limited (“China Oceanwide International
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Oceanwide
Holdings Group, the controlling shareholder of Oceanwide
Holdings, entered into a consulting services agreement (the
“Consulting Services Agreement”) with China Oceanwide Power
Co., Limited (“China Oceanwide Power”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which China Oceanwide
International Investment shall provide consultancy services for
the two coal fuel steam power plant facilities with net capacity of
150 megawatt (“MW”) each developed by PT. Mabar Elektrindo
(“PT Mabar”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in
the Medan Industrial Area, North Sumatra, Indonesia (the “Medan
Project”) to China Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar and assist
China Oceanwide Power and PT Mabar in the financing and
insurance arrangement in respect of the Medan Project and to
assist the development of PT Mabar.

Subject to China Oceanwide International Investment successfully
assisting China Oceanwide Power or PT Mabar in securing a
loan facility of not less than US$400,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,133.1 million) from the relevant banks or
financial institutes during the course of providing the above
consultancy services, China Oceanwide Power agreed to pay
a service fee of not more than US$1,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.8 million) (exclusive of tax) (the “Service
Fee”) to China Oceanwide International Investment.

The Consulting Services Agreement had expired on 29 December
2017 and a supplemental agreement to Consulting Services
Agreement was entered into between China Oceanwide
International Investment and China Oceanwide Power on 1
February 2018 to extend the service period of China Oceanwide
International Investment to 31 January 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, nil fee was payable or
paid by China Oceanwide Power under the Consulting Services
Agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental agreement).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Apartment and Office Lease Agreements

PT. China Oceanwide Indonesia (“PT COI”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Oceanwide International Investment, and
PT Mabar entered into (i) an apartment lease agreement on
18 January 2015 pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to lease
certain apartments located in JIn. Senopati Raya No. 44, Jakarta
Selatan from 1 February 2015 to 31 December 2017; (i) an
office lease agreement on 18 May 2015 pursuant to which PT
Mabar agreed to lease certain office space located in JI. KH. Mas
Mansyur Kav. 126, Jakarta 12920-Indonesia from 1 June 2015 to
31 December 2017; and (iii) an apartment lease agreement on 18
June 2015 pursuant to which PT Mabar agreed to lease certain
apartments located in JIn. Senopati Raya No. 44, Jakarta Selatan
from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 (together with the above
apartment lease agreement and office lease agreement, the
“Expired Agreements”).

For further details, please refer to 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018
annual reports of the Company.

On 29 December 2017, PT COI and PT Mabar entered into a
renewed apartment lease agreement and a renewed office lease
agreement (collectively the “Renewed Agreements”) to renew the
Expired Agreements for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

The maximum aggregate amount of rent payable by PT Mabar
under the Renewed Agreements, determined based on the annual
rent stated in the Renewed Agreements is IDR12,479,544,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.2 million, excluding value
added tax (“VAT”), other fees and utility bills) for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2020.
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The annual cap under the Renewed Agreements was determined
between PT COI and PT Mabar after arm’s length negotiation
on normal commercial terms, taking into account the location of
the relevant properties, the term of the Renewed Agreements,
the market rates and conditions, and the historical annual rental
amounts under the Expired Agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the rent payable by PT
Mabar under the Renewed Agreements was IDR12,479,544,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.0 million).

Capital Contribution to a Non-wholly Owned
Subsidiary

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender and
Shanghai Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd* (“SEPC”,
which held 20% equity interest in PT Mabar, together with PT.
Shanghai Electric Power (“PT SEPC”), collectively the “SEPC
Group”) as borrower entered into a loan agreement pursuant to
which China Oceanwide Power agreed to make available a loan
in the principal amount of up to US$3,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27.3 million) at an interest rate equivalent to
the rate of expected average financing cost for the power plant
project developed by PT Mabar to SEPC. The purpose of this
loan was to provide SEPC with funds to make capital contribution
into PT Mabar in proportion to its 20% equity interest. The loan
shall be repaid when SEPC obtains the approval of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC (“SAFE”) for
the transfer of its capital overseas. During the year ended 31
December 2016, SEPC has repaid the loan with the approval of
SAFE. As at 31 December 2019, the interest receivable of the
loan was approximately US$531,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.1 million).
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Engineering, Procurement and Construction
Contracts

On 23 December 2013, PT Mabar as employer and SEPC
as contractor entered into a master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) pursuant to which PT Mabar engaged SEPC
to provide all materials, parts, equipment and construction
equipment, transportation to sites (including customs clearance)
and other labour services and to perform all works, activities
and services on a fixed lump sum turn key basis for the design,
engineering, procurement, construction, commissioning, testing
and completion of, and making good of defects in relation to
the power plant facilities of the Medan Project. The Master
Agreement was renewed twice on 23 November 2015 and 8
June 2017 respectively, the renewed total consideration was
US$431,930,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,363.8
million). For further details, please refer to 2017 and 2018 annual
reports of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount paid by PT
Mabar under the aforesaid agreements was US$283,504,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,207.9 million).

Loan Agreement

On 14 May 2014, China Oceanwide Power as lender entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with PT. Garda Sayap
Garuda (“GSG”, which held 20% equity interest in PT Mabar)
as borrower, making available a loan (the “Loan”) (reference is
made to the 2015 and 2016 annual reports of the Company)
which was subsequently renewed on 30 December 2015, (i) the
principal amount of the Loan to US$28,353,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$220.8 million); (i) the loan period to three years
commencing from the date of the Loan Agreement; and (iii) the
interest rate equivalent to the financing interest rate (including but
not limited to upfront fee, commitment fee, loan arrangement fee,
bank advisory, agency and management fee etc.) of the Medan
Project.

On 12 May 2017, China Oceanwide Power and GSG entered into
a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to
renew the Loan Agreement for a term commencing from 17 May
2017 to 31 December 2019. For further details, please refer to
the 2017 and 2018 annual reports of the Company.
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The annual caps under the Supplemental Agreement are set out
as follows:

For the period from
17 May 2017 to
31 December 2017

For the year ended
31 December 2018

BRABAER N ZFELREIWAT

For the year ended
31 December 2019

H2017F5817HEZE HZE2018%F 12A31H #H £2019%F 12831H
2017512831 H L HI R IEFEE IEFEE
us$ us$ us$

E7T ETT ETT

33,500,000 35,500,000 37,500,000

(equivalent to approximately
HK$260.9 million)
(FEEF R A ¥E2.609187T)

The annual caps under the Supplemental Agreement were
determined with reference to (i) the historical transaction
amounts under the Loan Agreement; (ii) the principal amount of
the Loan and the annual interest rate under the Supplemental
Agreement; and (iii) the assumption that GSG will borrow up to
US$28,353,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$220.8 million)
for each of the above periods.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, an interest income (before
discounting) of approximately US$1,985,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$15.5 million) was accrued by China Oceanwide
Power. As at 31 December 2019, the principal and interest
receivable of the Loan amounted to US$36,996,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$288.1 million).

As at the date of this annual report, negotiation between the
Group and GSG over the further renewal of the Loan Agreement
is still ongoing. The Group is committed to reaching an
agreement with GSG in relation to the further renewal of the Loan
Agreement.

Framework Services Agreements

On 21 September 2017, the Company entered into a framework
services agreement (the “First Framework Services Agreement”)
with China Tonghai International Financial Limited (“CTIF”, whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 952) and a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of Oceanwide Holdings). Pursuant
to the First Framework Services Agreement, the Company and
CTIF have conditionally agreed to engage in various services
transactions, and investment and lending transactions with each
other for the period from 20 November 2017 to 31 December
2019. Oceanwide Holdings is the controlling shareholder of both
the Company and CTIF.

(equivalent to approximately
HK$276.5 million)
(HEERKBK2.765187T)

(equivalent to approximately
HK$292.0 million)
(FEEF R A B ¥E2.9208 T

WrRmmE NZFE ERTELE () B
HMBBETZEERSE5 (i) BERZ
AeeHEBABEE N ZFENE &
(i) BREGSGHEN Lt S HHEBARS
28,353,0003% 7T (48 & 1A 4978 #2.20818
J0) MEESE °

H ZE2019F12H31H #HZEBE N
B 78 12 84 IR A F B #91,985,0003 JT (48
FR KB 5508 ) © 2019412
AS1HR ZERN A RERTE A
36,996,000% 7T (1855 1 4978 #2.88118
JL) °

RAFHRAH AEBEGSGHERE
R EERPETER AKBLHD
BEGSGHL & MR ip % B R HIEK & o

AE 22 AR %5 15

20179 9A 218 » A | H A B )G B
TRERAR([RRHBERESH] - H
RGO AREE R AT Em (BRH K5 : 952) -
B EBERNIEZENRBAR))FTMIE
RS (B —DERKREHZELD -
RIEE—MIEERBHZE  KAREAF
ERSHEeRmEGKERERLE ZER
H2017411 5208 2 £2019F12H31H
IFEARETE TRERZEEE RERK
RG e xBERAEARRRRFEREH

R LAY PR AR

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

55



56

The annual caps for the period from 20 November 2017 to
31 December 2017 and for the two financial years ended 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 are shown below:

For the period from

20 November 2017 to

Type of transactions 31 December 2017
H2017511 5200 €%

RPEH 2017512A31A LHE
HK$ million

BEBET

2017411 H208 £2017412A31H &
RS A K2 B 2018412 A31H K&20194E12
AS1B LM EAMBFENFE LRIMA
R

For the year ended Year ended
31 December 2018 31 December 2019
#Z2018F12A31H HZ2019F12A31H
LEE LEE

HK$ million HK$ million
RBERETL RBEBRETL

(1) Service transactions R% X 5

(@) Income from service transactions provided to CTIF 0.5
and its group companies (collectively, “CTIF
Group”) (including ancillary services)

MeEREEReRIATERR (G hEE
BEEERER]) RRORERS (BREERE)
&

(b) Expenses for service transactions provided by 6.5
CTIF Group (including ancillary services)
prEREEREREERMNRER S (BER
ERB)ZER

(2) Investment, lending and underwriting transactions
RE ERREHRS
(@) Maximum daily amount/outstanding balance for 100
investment transactions provided to CTIF Group
MTPEREERCREERENRERIZER
BHSH/WAXMEH
(b) Maximum daily amount/outstanding balance for
lending and underwriting transactions provided by
CTIF Group
HPEREEReREERENENRBHERS
ZERBASHE/ WA
- Financial assistance
HBEB 300
- Underwriting
2% =

65 65

200 200

300 300

200 200

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the expenses for service
transactions provided by CTIF Group (including ancillary services
and interest expenses) to the Group amounted to HK$25,124,000
and the maximum daily amount/outstanding balance for lending
transactions provided by CTIF Group to the Group amounted to
HK$299,928,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding balance of the lending
transaction and interest payable are HK$297,113,000 and
HK$1,113,000 respectively.
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On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a framework 201948 A30R + A ) B i ) B R
CREFMITERERBHRE (2 ZMIE
BRBmE] - BRE=% B 202051
A1B R ZE2022612A318 Ik °

services agreement (the “Second Framework Services
Agreement”) with CTIF for another term of three years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

HIBEFL2H AR A019548HA30H A
& RARRAR2019F9 A30H MK o

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 August 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 30
September 2019.

The annual caps for the three financial years ending 31 December R EE2020%F + 20214 K£202249F 12 A31
2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively are shown below: HIE=ESTBEENFEE LRABFMAT :

Type of transactions

XERR

For the year ending
31 December 2020
BZ2020512R831H
JI:3:5

HK$ million
AERET

For the year ending
31 December 2021
BZ2021F12A831H
L5E

HK$ million
BAERET

For the year ending
31 December 2022
B £2022512A31H
EEE

HKS$ million
AEBET

(1) Service transactionsfR %% 5
(@) Income from service transactions provided to CTIF
Group 0.5 0.5 0.5
mMPEBEERcREERENRER S e
(b) Expenses for service transactions provided by
CTIF Group (including interest expenses to CTIF
arising from the lending transactions) 98.0 98.0 98.0
prERSER e REEARENRERSCER
(BRRERRIMTEREEE 2RI TNFS
i)
(2) Investment, lending and underwriting transactions
RE ERREHRS
(@) Maximum daily invested amount for investment
transactions provided to CTIFL Group
MPEREERcREERERERINESE
BRESHE
- Fund investment &£ 1% & 60.0 60.0 60.0
(b) Maximum daily amount/outstanding balance for
lending and underwriting transactions provided by
CTIFL Group
HPEREERCREEREERKRAERS
Stk A VACE SEE o
- Financial assistance 817 & B}
¢ Loan principal ER A& 480 480 480
- Underwriting & 88 120 120 120

=
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Lease Agreements

On 6 September 2019, Oceanwide Shen Gang Asset Operation
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (“Oceanwide Shen Gang”), a company
established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) with Tohigh Property Investment Management Co.,
Ltd.” (“Tohigh Property”), a company established in the PRC and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd.*
which is a controlling shareholder of the Company, pursuant
to which Oceanwide Shen Gang agreed to lease certain office
premises (the “Property”) to Tohigh Property for a term of 36
months from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2022.

On 11 October 2019, Oceanwide Shen Gang entered into
a supplemental lease agreement (the “Supplemental Lease
Agreement”) with Tohigh Property, pursuant to which Oceanwide
Shen Gang agreed to lease certain additional office units (the
“Temporary Property”) to Tohigh Property for its temporary use
pending the completion of the renovation of the Property under
the Lease Agreement, for a term of 3 months 13 days from 18
September 2019 to 31 December 2019.

The following table sets out the annual caps in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement and the
Supplemental Lease Agreement (taking into account both the
rent and rental deposit payable by Tohigh Property to Oceanwide
Shen Gang) for each of the years ended 31 December 2019 and
ending 2020, 2021 and 2022:

HESE

2019F9A6H ' 2 BHBEELE (L
) BRAR (ZFREB]  —KRFEH
M RAGE - BARGNEEZENSB
NAEEBTEEREERFARAA ([B
BEE] —RXRPBEXIMRF - AR
NAMERKRFEBEIERAR A G KHE
BE2EMBAR L —HHEEAR ([H
B4R B ZERERENARE
BEXELHEETHAZTDE (TDE]
H2019F 981 BB E2022F8A31H Ik -
A E36ME A -

2019F10R11H - 2 HBRBHRBEE
¥FIvu—milEEmraeR(HERH TS
B Hit 28R ERERNRBEE X
HHEETBEIMFAZTEN ([ZEEY
¥ UHHEBRNER EZRERE
EREEzZMETKEE AL HE
B 5201949 A18H #£ 2019412 A 31
A1k - AHBE A13H -

TRV HECREKHAEHAERET
BETHR SN E 2201946 » 20204 -
20214 K2022F12A31H Lt FE S FH
FELR(CARBEEERMNZEHRE
mEekAeEe)

For the year ended
31 December 2019
B £2019F12A31H

For the year ending
31 December 2020
B £2020F12A31H

For the year ending
31 December 2021
B £2021F12H31H

For the year ending
31 December 2022
B £2022F12A31H

LEE LEE LEE EE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR# AR#
2,000,000 3,400,000 3,500,000 2,400,000

(equivalent to
approximately
HK$2.3 million)

(HERLHBE2308 T)

(equivalent to
approximately
HK$3.8 million)

(FBER K E3808 L)

(equivalent to
approximately
HK$3.9 million)

(FRERHEHEI0ETT)
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(equivalent to
approximately
HK$2.7 million)

(HBERLEB2708 L)



For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total amount payable
and paid by Tohigh Property to Oceanwide Shen Gang was
RMB1,749,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2.0 million), of
which the rent was RMB794,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.9 million) and the rental deposit was RMB955,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.1 million).

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that (other than those expressly
stated otherwise and separate compliance procedures have been
conducted), the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited (“BD0O”), the Company’s auditor, were engaged
to report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
has issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

HE2019F12A31BLFEE - BEEE
M BRERNGRENNBERARE
1,749,0007T (485 R4 7%& #2008 7T) -
HEhfe A ARE794,0000T (AE R
WEEE L) HEeESUABARYE
955,0007T (FBERAEE11087T) °

FEREXZNFEEFX

BYFATEFCERN LRAFERER
7 UHER(GREBIRAREETERR
REFEINZERSTY

1. RAEEAER—BERBES

Kt

2. BBREEHEAIEEERFTL

R

3. BEREREXHZHBERMT
TXSUERATFAE  LAKAE
ET RS FIE-

ARARZEMEB LGRS EH
FAERAR (VEER]) EZBIUIKER
BEAGTRMIAERMNEBEZTEBLE
EJ%BOOO%HE%*Z&%E@%@EEM%%?
B2 EE T -jfﬂ%ﬁa“%?%ﬂﬂ’;ﬁmo
RIBEANES LRBF5E R E
SEZEEN K] - B ERFERER %
ERmE Y ERRERBLELMRAE
14AG6IGH EBRBERRE 2R H
ERE LB EREIINEESERM
HEwmoARAIEEZ RGN ANK 2R
P °
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATION
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Facility Agreement Dated 9 August 2018

On 9 August 2018, the Company, as parent guarantor, entered
into (i) a facility agreement relating to a term loan facility in
an amount of US$215.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,674.4 million) (subject to adjustment) with, among
others, China Oceanwide Real Estate Development Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as
borrower (“COREDH”), and Global Max Opportunity IV Limited,
an independent third party as lender (the “Lender”); and (ii)
a keepwell deed with COREDH, the Lender and Oceanwide
Holdings. The maturity date of the loan is the date falling 364
days after the first utilisation date of the loan.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, upon Oceanwide Holdings
ceasing to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 51%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company, there will be
acceleration of the loan. Further, a breach of certain undertakings
in the keepwell deed will constitute an event of default under the
facility agreement and the Lender may demand, among others,
acceleration of the loan.

As at the date of this annual report, the loan was fully repaid and
the facility was not renewed.

Facility Agreement Dated 23 September 2019

On 23 September 2019, the Company, as guarantor, entered into
a facility agreement relating to a term loan facility in an amount of
US$140.0 million equivalent to approximately HK$1,090.3 million)
with, among others, China Oceanwide Property Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as borrower (“COPH”),
and OCM Harbour Investments Pte. Ltd., an independent third
party as lender, agent and security agent (the “Lender”). On 24
September 2019, COPH entered into a keepwell deed with the
Lender and Oceanwide Holdings. The maturity date of the loan
is the date falling three years after the first utilisation date of the
loan.
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Pursuant to the facility agreement, upon the controlling
shareholders of the Company ceasing to control at least 51% of
the issued share capital of the Company, the facility agreement
will be cancelled and all outstanding amounts (including principal
and interest) due and owing by COPH to the Lender under the
facility agreement shall become immediately due and payable.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 23 September 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on the controlling shareholders
of the Company under the aforesaid facility agreement continued
to exist.

Subscription Agreement Dated 6 November
2019

On 6 November 2019, the Company, as parent guarantor,
entered into a subscription agreement relating to the notes (the
“Notes”) in an amount of up to US$250.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,947.0 million) with among others,
China Oceanwide Real Estate Development Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as issuer and a
subscriber. The maturity of the Notes is the date falling 12
months after the first utilisation date of the Notes.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, among other obligations
(i) upon the controlling shareholders of the Company ceasing
to control, directly or indirectly, the Company or any person or
group of persons action in concert gains control of the Company;
(i) trading on Oceanwide Holdings’s shares is suspended on the
main board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for more than 10
consecutive trading days; or (iii) Oceanwide Holdings’s shares
cease to be listed on the main board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, there will be acceleration of the Notes.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 November 2019.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on the controlling Shareholders
of the Company under the aforesaid subscription agreement
continued to exist.

REBEHZ EARBDZERERTH
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Facility Agreement Dated 22 January 2020

On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into a facility
agreement with a licensed bank in the PRC relating to a
US$135.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,051.4
million) facility. The facility has a term of one year. The purpose
of the facility is to repay the shareholder’s loan owed to China
Oceanwide Group, an intermediate holding company of the
Company.

As one of the conditions of the facility, Oceanwide Holdings, the
controlling shareholder of the Company shall procure its savings
and respective interests (equivalent to the outstanding loan
amount or more) in the bank as security for the facility, the breach
of which the outstanding loan amount of the facility shall trigger
mandatory repayment obligation on the part of the Company.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 3 February 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligation imposed on Oceanwide Holdings under
the aforesaid agreements continued to exist.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against
all losses or liabilities which any of them may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of their duties in their offices.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout
the year and is still in force. In addition, the Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
the directors and officers of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in Notes 30 and 36h to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the listed securities of the
Company. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 273 of
this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is
set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December 2019
attributable to the major customers of the Group were as follows:
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Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

A&

BEANED

The largest customer XA EF 21.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate A AR F & &t 42.7%
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the major customers noted above.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has not
made any purchases other than incurring rental outgoings and
overhead expenses.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float in compliance with the requirement of the
Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this annual
report.

DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES AND ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL INITIATIVES

The Company’s corporate governance practices during the
year are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
66 to 92 of this annual report. The Group’s environmental and
social initiatives during the year are set out in the 2019 Social
Responsibility Report which is available at websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

The Group’s success depends on, amongst other matters, the
support from key parties which comprises of the customers,
suppliers, subcontractors and employees.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. The Group values
the feedback from customers, mainly our tenants for the
investment properties, through daily communication, and will
address their concerns in a timely manner. For the suppliers
and subcontractors, the Group assures their performance for
delivering quality products and sustainable services through
supplier approval process and by spot checks on the delivered
goods. During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no
circumstance of any event between the Group and its key parties
which will have a significant impact on the Group’s business
and on which the Group’s success depends. The account of the
Group’s relationship with employees and suppliers is set out in
the 2019 Social Responsibility Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Securities Code regulating Directors’
dealings in securities of the Company, on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code. In response to
specific enquiries made, all the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Securities Code and the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
for event after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) resigned as auditor of the
Company on 22 February 2019. On the same day, the Board,
with the recommendation of the audit committee under the
Board, appointed BDO as auditor of the Company to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company which was held on 23 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM”).
At the 2019 AGM, BDO was re-appointed as auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by BDO, who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in auditor of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board

Han Xiaosheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

S REARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards
of corporate governance best suited to the needs and
interests of the Group as it believes that effective corporate
governance practices are fundamental to safeguarding interests
of the Shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing
shareholders’ value. To this end, the Board and our management
make continuous effort to reinforce our standards of corporate
governance with emphasis on independence, effective internal
control, transparency and accountability to the Shareholders.

The Company has complied during the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year”) with all applicable code provisions (“Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except for the following deviations which are explained
below:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

During the Year, Mr. HAN Xiaosheng performed the two roles of
the Company’s chief executive officer (“CEQ”) and chairman of
the Board. Vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person could enable effective and efficient
overall strategic planning for the Group.

With effect from 22 January 2020, Mr. HAN Xiaosheng ceased
to be CEO but remains as chairman of the Board and executive
Director, and Mr. WU Chen was re-designated from deputy CEO
to CEO. As such, Mr. HAN Xiaosheng can more focus on the
overall strategic planning and management of the Group while
Mr. WU Chen is responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall
business operation, which is in the overall interest of the Group.
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CODE PROVISION E.1.2

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend.

Due to other business engagement, Mr. Liu Jipeng, a chairman of
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) under the Board did not
attend the 2019 AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) regulating the
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code.
In response to specific enquiries made, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Securities Code and
the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three INEDs.

At least one of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are
well-versed in respective areas such as accounting and finance,
business management and industry knowledge and the Board
as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and
experience. The Directors’ biographical details are set out from
pages 30 to 34 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial
or family relationship among the Board members. All of them
are free to exercise their independent judgment on all matters
concerning the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and as an essential element in
maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development
of the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be
based on merits against objective criteria and with due regards
for benefits and balance of diversity on the Board. The Board
diversity will be considered in terms of, among other things,
gender, age, professional experience and qualifications and
educational and cultural background, and any other factors that
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) under
the Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time
towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how and
experience of the Board.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s
strategies, providing leadership and guidance to put them
into effect, reviewing and monitoring the performance of the
Group and are accountable to the Shareholders. To maximise
the effectiveness of the Group’s operations, the Board has
delegated management and administration of the Group’s daily
operations to the executive Directors and the management (the
“Management”) while reserving several important matters for its
approval. To this end, the Board has adopted written guidelines
(the “Guidelines”) laying down the division of functions between
the Board and the Management.

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and
the Management are summarised as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining/approving the overall strategy and annual
operating budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policy matters of the Group;
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3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure
that the business operations of the Group are properly
planned, authorised and undertaken; and

4. overseeing the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis, and reviewing
the effectiveness of such systems at least annually.

The duties of the Management mainly include the following
aspects:

1. is vested with all general powers of management and
control as are vested in the Directors, save and except for
those that may specifically be reserved by the Board and/
or the Board committees for decision and implementation;
or those that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant
to the Listing Rules, the Bye-laws and/or the terms of
reference of the Board Committees;

2. is authorised to perform all acts as may be performed by
the Directors, save and except for those that may only be
performed by the Board pursuant to the Companies Act
of Bermuda, the Bye-laws, the Listing Rules and/or the
Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Buy-backs;

3. is empowered to implement policies/measures for business
activities, internal control, risk management and corporate
governance of the Group; and

4. is empowered to implement any other matters as assigned
by the Board from time to time.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on
a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group.

The Board has assessed the independence of INEDs and
considers all of them to be independent having regard to (i)
their annual confirmations on independence as required under
the Listing Rules, (ii) the absence of involvement in the daily
management of the Company and (iii) the absence of any
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment. Throughout the Year, the
number of INEDs on the Board meets the one-third requirement
under the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

All the non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of three
years, subject to renewal and re-election as and when required
under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws. However, any Director
who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the Company, or
in the case of an additional appointment, until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, and shall be eligible
for re-election at the relevant general meeting. All the Directors
are subject to retirement from office and shall be eligible for
re-election at the annual general meetings at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors as
required under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules and
regulations.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year with
meeting dates scheduled prior to the beginning of the year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides to Directors, on a regular basis, monthly updates and
other information with respect to the performance, and business
activities and development of the Group. Throughout the year,
the Directors participated in the deliberation and approval of
routine and operational matters of the Company by way of written
resolutions with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented
by additional verbal and/or written information from the Company
Secretary or other executives as and when required. Details of
material transactions of subsidiaries are provided to the Directors
as appropriate. Whenever warranted, additional Board meetings
are held. In addition, the Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice at all times
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors and they are at
liberty to propose appropriate matters for inclusion in Board
agendas.
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors receive
written notice of the meeting generally about a month in advance
and an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three
days prior to the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are
given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances. Except for those circumstances permitted by the
Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, a Director who has a material
interest in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other
kind of proposal put forward to the Board for consideration
abstains from voting on the relevant resolution and such Director
is not counted for quorum determination purposes.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board meetings during the year ended 31 December
2019:

EHRESFENEHER SEF KN
M—EANESEENERAEN AR
SRR TR =REZZXGARE
MiEEEeXF -EXrHEMEE 1A
AERFER ERBENERAITHNE
ATERMESHLBA -FRAFAR
RETRAAFNBERIN RIEZES
CEBNTAAL X5 LHAEM
Hib B 2R TREERNENES
ERBRRBERERAE MIZES
NG HEERREEAEA -

TR REEREHZ2019F12A31H It
FEHETHEEESENBR

No. of the scheduled
Board meetings
attended/held

Name of Director HEBITES
ESEHE EFEERNIE
Executive Directors HBITESE

HAN Xiaosheng BEEEA 5/5
LIU Hongwei 2t E 4/5
LIU Bing 2 K 4/5
ZHANG Xifang wEN 4/5
LIU Guosheng 2|5 F+ 2/5
Non-executive Director FHITES

ZHAOQ Yingwei R 1/5
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHITES

LIU Jipeng 2142 15 5/5
YAN Fashan BORE 5/5
LO Wa Kei Roy EER 5/5

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with the executive Directors and at least two
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including INEDs)
annually without the presence of the executive Directors. The
non-executive Directors (including INEDs) freely provide their
independent opinion to the Board.

BREFEERN TFRERATESHENT
EHER REHTEETESNEBER
T EBFRATER(BREBYIFRITES)
BFERIBIIMASH - FATESR (B
EBEIFRTER) AR EEER
HBILER -

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

71



72

GENERAL MEETING

During the year, the Company held two general meetings. The
following table shows the attendance of the Directors and the
attendance record of each Director was as follows:

Name of Director

BRERRE
FR ARRBITTRMARRAE T
RINFBRESNHFLE

No. of general meetings
attended/held

EEnS HE/ BITHRRERAERE
Executive Directors HITES

HAN Xiaosheng BERE A 2/2
LIU Hongwei 2t E 2/2
LIU Bing 2 K 0/2
ZHANG Xifang REF 2/2
LIU Guosheng 2 B F 0/2
Non-executive Director FHITES

ZHAOQ Yingwei FHIEE 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES

LIU Jipeng 214 15 1/2
YAN Fashan BEE 2/2
LO Wa Kei Roy EEHE 2/2

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Chairman has authorised the company secretary of the
Company to prepare agenda for each Board meeting and to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings and receive adequate and accurate
information in a timely manner.

Ms. LAM Wai Yee Sophie, the company secretary of the
Company, is a fellow member of The Institute of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in the United Kingdom. She is a full time
employee of the Company and is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that the
Board complies with the applicable rules and regulations. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. LAM has complied with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company arranges and provides continuous professional
development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to the Directors from time to time to help ensure that they
are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. In addition,
attendance at external forums or briefing sessions (including
delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also counts toward
CPD training.

The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

The Directors have to disclose to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisations in a timely manner and update the Company on any
subsequent changes.

During the Year, all the Directors have participated in the CPD
by attending internal CPD training/seminars/programmes and/or
reading materials relating to updates on corporate governance
and regulations.

REMUNERATION MANAGEMENT POLICY

The remuneration management policy of the Group is to ensure
that the Group’s pay levels are competitive in attracting and
retaining the Directors, senior management and employees as
well as motivating them in the continual pursuit of the Group’s
goal.

The remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management is performance-based and takes into account
factors such as the Group’s business performance and
prevailing market practices. The key components of the Group’s
remuneration package include basic salary, medical insurance,
discretionary cash bonus and retirement benefit scheme. No
individual Director or senior management will be involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman of the
Board in respect of their recommendations in determining the
remuneration of the executive Directors and senior management
of the Company. The details of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the
Group for their potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging
their respective duties. The Company reviews the insurance
coverage for the Directors and the Group’s senior staff on an
annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee (collectively the “Committees”) to oversee specific
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Committees have been
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their respective
duties. Each of the Committees has adopted specific terms of
reference covering its duties, powers and functions which will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time. The terms of reference
of the Committees have been posted on website of the Company
at www.oceanwide.hk. The company secretary of the Company
also acts as secretary of the Committees. The Committees adopt
as far as practicable, the procedures and arrangement of the
Board meeting in relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of
meetings and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of
the Committees are set out below:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. LIU Jipeng, the INED,
with Mr. ZHAO Yingwei, the non-executive Director, and Mr. LO
Wa Kei Roy, the INED, as members. All of them possess the
relevant business and financial management experience and
skills to understand financial statements and contribute to the
financial governance, internal controls and risk management of
the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the
relationship between the Company and its external auditor,
review the preliminary results, interim and final results, and
annual and interim financial statements of the Group, monitor
the corporate governance of the Group including compliance
with statutory and Listing Rules requirements, review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the activities of internal audit of the
Group, engage independent legal and other advisers and conduct
investigations as it determines to be necessary. All members of
the Audit Committee have unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditors and management.

The Audit Committee meets with the chief financial officer,
internal auditor and other management of the Company from
time to time for the purposes of reviewing the interim and final
results, the interim report and annual report, and other financial,
internal control, corporate governance and risk management
matters of the Group. It considers and discusses the reports
and presentations of the management, the internal and
external auditors of the Group, with a view to ensuring that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. It also meets at least twice a year with the external
auditor of the Company, to consider the reports of the external
auditor on the scope, strategy, progress and outcome of its
independent review of the interim financial statements and its
annual audit of the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings with the
external auditor without the presence of the management.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of internal
control and risk management. It reviews the process by which
the Group evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks are
managed. It receives and considers the presentations of the
management in relation to the reviews on the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the Group and the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function of the Group, as well
as their training programmes and budget. In addition, the Audit
Committee reviews with the internal auditor the work plans for its
audits on the Group together with its resource requirements and
considers the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of internal controls in the business operations of
the Group. Further, it also receives the reports from the company
secretary of the Company on the compliance status on regulatory
requirements of the Group. These reviews and reports are taken
into consideration by the Audit Committee when it makes its
recommendation to the Board for approval of the consolidated
financial statements for the year.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held five meetings to
(1) review the management and accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group; (2) discuss financial reporting
matters including the review of 2018 annual results and
2019 interim results of the Group; (3) review the adequacy
of resources, accounting staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (4) review the
corporate governance structure and practices within the Group;
and (5) review of the Group’s internal control procedures, risk
management, connected transactions and other related issues.
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditor. The Audit Committee also met
the external auditor at least twice without the presence of the
executive Directors.
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The following table shows the attendance of members of the TRITEZZESKEREE20194F
Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings during the 12ABIEFEHFEEZZEE®aK
year ended 31 December 2019: =D

No. of Audit Committee

meetings attended/held
Name of Audit Committee member HE HITHNEXEZES
EREEEHERSR SERY
LIU Jipeng 242 15 5/5
ZHAO Yingwei fHHE 0/5
LO Wai Kei Roy EEAE 5/5
Remuneration Committee FHEEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members with
expertise in human resources and personnel emoluments.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. YAN Fashan,
the INED, with Mr. HAN Xiaosheng, chairman of the Board
and executive Director, and Mr. LO Wa Kei Roy, the INED, as
members. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to determinate the remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management of the Group. Remuneration
matters are also considered and approved by the Remuneration
Committee by way of written resolutions and additional meetings
where warranted.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to assist
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting, retaining and
motivating employees of the highest calibre and experience
needed to shape and execute strategy of the Group. It assists the
Group in the administration of a fair and transparent procedure
for setting remuneration policies for all Directors and senior
executives of the Group. Whilst the Board retains its power to
determine the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the
responsibility for reviewing and determining the remuneration
package of individual executive Directors and senior management
of the Group is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to (1) review the remuneration
policies of the Group; and (2) review the proposed 2020 directors’
fees for the INEDs.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee at the Remuneration Committee
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2019:
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No. of Remuneration Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Remuneration Committee member HE BTHNFEHNZEES
FHZEERERSR EEIE
YAN Fashan BOE = 1/1
HAN Xiaosheng =420 11
LO Wa Kei Roy i 11
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During the Year, the annual remuneration of the Company’s
senior management is within the following bands:

Remuneration band

FRAAAIEHEEANEBNFE L
gEEMT :

Number of senior management

e E BREEEAR
HK$
kil
2,500,001-3,000,000 1
< 1,000,001 2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. HAN Xiaosheng,
chairman of the Board and executive Director, with Mr. LIU
Jipeng and Mr. YAN Fashan, the INEDs, as members.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (1)
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Group’s corporate strategy; (2) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (3) assess the
independence of INEDs; and (4) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of the Directors.

In the selection, appointment and re-appointment of the
Directors, the Nomination Committee will consider, revaluate and
select the candidate(s) based on meritocracy and with reference
to nomination criteria set out in the Nomination Policy, which
include:

1. reputation;

2. leaders as needed by the Company;

3. the structure, size, composition and time requirements of
the Board;
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10.

balance of talents, experience, independence and

knowledge possessed by the candidate, and whether he/
she is best suitable for coping with the challenges and
opportunities faced by the Group as well as fostering the
success of the Group;

the Board Diversity Policy, among which, the background of
the candidate shall be considered;

balance of the number of the INEDs;

term of services and continuity of the INEDs;

shareholders’ re-election of the Directors retiring by rotation;

any conflict of interests between the Director and the
Group; and

any other relevant matters.

The nomination procedures for selection, appointment and

re-appointment of a Director are summarised as follows:
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identifies or selects candidate(s) recommended to the
Nomination Committee, with or without assistance from
external agencies or the Company, pursuant to the
nomination criteria set out in the above paragraph;

may use any process it deems appropriate to evaluate
the candidate(s), which may include personal interviews,
background checks, presentations or written submissions
by the candidate(s) and third party references;

holds meeting(s) to consider and approve the matter or
make decisions by written resolutions;
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4.  provides to the Board with all the information required
including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules in relation to the candidate(s);

5. makes recommendation to the Board including the terms
and conditions of the appointment;

6. the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee;

7. appointment of Director should be confirmed by a letter of
appointment or director service agreement setting out the
key terms and conditions of the appointment of the director;
and

8. pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where
shareholders are required to vote on electing or re-electing
a director or directors, the circular accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting should contain all the
information of the candidate(s) required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
perform the following duties:

- reviewed the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and the Board Diversity Policy;

— reviewed the size, structure and composition of the Board;

- assessed the independence of the INEDs; and

- recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors.
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The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Nomination Committee at the Nomination Committee meeting
during the Year:

TRINTELRZEENERFARLFIR

HAEREEEZNEN

No. of Nomination Committee
meeting(s) attended/held

Name of Nomination Committee member HE BITHNREEZES
BEEEEEREHS EE PN
HAN Xiaosheng BEA 1/1
LIU Jipeng 214015 1/1
YAN Fashan BriE = 11

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half-year period end.

The responsibility of the Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. It should be read in conjunction
with, but distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 93 to 105 which acknowledges the reporting responsibility
of the auditor of the Group.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the annual report and financial statements of the Company,
ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair
presentation in accordance with Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.
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Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,
the Group has applied appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose the financial position of the
Group upon which the financial statements of the Group could
be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Group.

Safeguarding of Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.
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External Auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a letter from the external auditor
confirming its independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the external auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of external
auditor for the various services listed below is as follows:

° Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by external
auditor.

° Audit-related services — include services that would
normally be provided by an external auditor but not generally
included in audit fees, for example, audits of the pension
plans of the Group, accounting advice related to mergers
and acquisitions, internal control reviews of systems and/
or processes, and issuance of special audit reports for tax
or other purposes. The external auditor is to be invited to
undertake those services that it must, or is best placed, to
undertake in its capacity as auditor.
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° Taxation — related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services, except for those services which
are provided in connection with the audit. The Group uses
the services of the external auditor where it is best suited.
All other significant taxation related work is undertaken by
other parties as appropriate.

° Other services — include, for example, financial due
diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial systems consultations. The external auditor
is also permitted to assist Management and the internal
auditor with internal investigations and fact- finding into
alleged improprieties. These services are subject to specific
approval by the Audit Committee.

° General consulting services — the external auditor is not
eligible to provide services involving general consulting
work.

During the Year, the fees paid or payable by the Company to
BDO Limited, the Company’s external auditor, in respect of
their audit and audit-related services were HK$3,300,000 and
HK$220,000 respectively.
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EMPLOYEES’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Group places utmost importance on employees’ ethical,
personal and professional standards. Every employee is required
to undertake to adhere to the code of conduct of the Group, and
is expected to achieve the highest standards set out in the code
of conduct including avoiding conflict of interest, discrimination
or harassment and bribery and corruption etc. Employees are
required to report any non-compliance with the code of conduct
to the management.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community during the year.
Through its chairman, the Group responds to requests for
information and queries from the investment community. A policy
on the shareholders’ communication, which is available on the
website of the Company, was adopted and is subject to regular
review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance
with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
on the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports.
An up-to-date consolidated version of the Bye-laws is published
on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). Moreover, additional information on
the Group is also available to the Shareholders and stakeholders
through the “Investor Relations” page on the website of the
Company.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts
to promote transparency and foster investor relations. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or the Company are welcome and
can be addressed to the chairman of the Board by mail to 64/F,
Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convening a
special general meeting

The Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, the shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights at general meetings of the Company have
statutory rights to call for special general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by the Shareholders, by
sending the company secretary at the registered office address
a written request for such general meetings, duly signed by the
Shareholders concerned together with the proposed agenda
items.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders or of at least one
hundred shareholders in number, may put forward proposals for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company by sending to
the company secretary at the registered office address a written
request for such proposals according to Sections 79 and 80
of the Bermuda Companies Act. All substantive resolutions at
general meetings are decided on a poll which is conducted by
the company secretary and scrutinised by the Hong Kong branch
share registrar of the Company. The poll results are published
on the websites of the Company and HKEX. In addition, regular
updated financial, business and other information on the
Group is made available on the website of the Company for the
Shareholders and stakeholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. This policy aims to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholder(s) whilst preserving
the Group’s liquidity for its business development. The Board has
complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval, where applicable. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend upon, among other things, the
Group’s operations, liquidity position and capital requirements,
and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant. The
payment of dividend is also subject to the Company’s applicable
rules and regulations as well as the bye-laws of the Company.
There is no assurance that in any given year a dividend will be
paid by the Company.

The Board will review this policy from time to time and may adopt
changes as appropriate.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management of the Company manages risks effectively
through identifying every potential issue that may affect the
business of the Company, thus ensure providing reasonable
assurance in achieving the objectives of the Group within
a sustainable range. The Group adopts the Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) to implement the comprehensive risk management. The
management of the Company reviews and updates the framework
and procedures on risk management and internal control annually
under the structure of connecting the four categories of entity’s
objectives (strategy, operation, reporting and compliance) with
the eight interrelated components (internal environment, objective
setting, event identification, risk assessment, risk response,
control activities, information and communication and monitoring),
improves them with various recommendations by identifying the
corresponding risks and internal control guidelines respectively
in respect of the key process of the Group. The management
of the Company organises a self-assessment annually, the key
process owner of the Group prioritise the risks under his/her
respective business and acknowledges the effectiveness of the
corresponding internal control procedures, and makes prompt
remediation for internal control weaknesses, if any.
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The management of the Company has established a key risk

register for significant risks, by identifying the root cause, risk

impact and risk response, and developing respective risk index to

monitor significant risks through periodic collection of operational

data on a monthly basis. Risk alert will be promptly issued with

recommended risk response in controlling risks when the risk

index exceed the predefined threshold value.

The management of the Company has established appropriate
internal control procedures against key risks, which mainly

include the followings:

1)

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of the Company and subject to review and
approval by both the executive management team and the
Board. Reforecasts for the current year are prepared on
a quarterly basis, compared for variances to the budget.
When setting budgets and reforecasts, the management
identifies, evaluates and reports on the likelihood and
potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Board review monthly management reports on
the financial results and key operating statistics of the
business. In addition, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company holds periodic
meetings with the executive management team and senior
management of business operations to review business
performance, significant business risk sensitivities and
strategies. The chief financial officer also holds monthly
meetings with financial controllers of business operations
to review the monthly performance against budget and
forecast, and to address accounting and finance related
matters.
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The Company maintains a centralised cash management
system for its subsidiaries’ operations and the finance
department of the Company oversees the investment and
lending activities of the Group. Treasury reports on cash
and liquid investments of the Group and movements thereof
are distributed daily.

The chief financial officer of the Company has established
guidelines and procedures for the approval and control of
expenditures. Operating expenditures are subject to overall
budget control and are controlled within each business with
approval levels set by reference to the level of responsibility
of each executive and officer. Capital expenditures are
subject to overall control within the annual budget review
and approval process, and more specific control and
approval prior to commitment by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company or the executive Directors are required for
unbudgeted expenditures and material capital expenditures
within the approved budget.

The Procedures for Reporting Possible Improprieties in
Matters of Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other
Matters has already been published on the website of the
Company for encouraging the employees of the Company
and other stakeholders who are dealing with the Group
to report to the Company any suspected improprieties,
misconducts or malpractices within the Group. The Group
will assure that the whistle-blower is free from any unfair
dismissal or punishment for any authentic whistle-blowing
made according to the Procedures. The internal auditor of
the Company will promptly follow up the whistle blowing
incident through specific and secured whistle blowing emalil
and inform the executive Directors and the Audit Committee
on the investigation results and the recommendations
proposed will be carried out by respective department.
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6) The Company has already established the procedures
and internal control measures for the respective handling
and dissemination of inside information. After any price
sensitive inside information has or shall have been known
to the executives of the Group during the process of
performing their duties under reasonable conditions, such
price sensitive inside information shall be disclosed to the
public as soon as practicable, unless the “Safe Harbor
Provisions” under the SFO are applicable. Inside information
will be announced through the websites of the Company
and the HKEX, or announced by other means or methods
as prescribed by the Listing Rules from time to time, such
announcement is subject to the approval of the Board
before announcement. The inside information may only be
announced through other channels after being announced
in the form of an announcement through the websites of the
Company and the HKEX.

The system and procedures established are aimed at managing
risks and rather than eliminating all risks. Such system could only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance. Such system
cannot eliminate completely the consequences resulted from
unpredictable risks and uncontrollable events (such as natural
disaster, fraud and misjudgment).

The internal auditor of the Company shall report directly to the
Audit Committee, and provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the risk management activities and
controls in the business operations of the Group. Depending on
the nature of business and risk exposure of individual business
units, the scope of work performed by the internal auditor of
the Company includes financial and operations audit, regular
and surprise audits, fraud investigations and construction audit.
Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the dynamics of the activities of the Group, the internal auditor
of the Company derives its yearly audit plan which is approved
by the Audit Committee, and reassessed during the year as
needed to ensure that adequate resources are deployed and
the objectives of the plan are met. The internal auditor of the
Company is responsible for assessing the internal control system
of the Group, formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and
reporting its findings to the management of the Company, as well
as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues have been
properly remediated. The Audit Committee holds two meetings
annually in respect of the review results and opinions from the
internal auditor of the Company against the risk management
and internal control system, and reports the review results to the
Board.
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In addition, a regular dialogue is maintained with the external
auditor of the Group so that both are aware of the significant
factors which may affect their respective scope of work, and
review the reports regarding the internal control and relevant
financial reports submitted by external auditor and take
appropriate actions.

The Board confirmed that it has the responsibility to maintain
an effective risk management and internal control system of the
Group to protect the interests of the Shareholders and preserve
the assets of the Group, and review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group once
every year, including financial control, operational control and
compliance control. The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019, which covered risk management functions and
all material financial, operational and compliance controls, and
is satisfied that such systems are effective and adequate. In
addition, it has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function of the
Group, and their training programmes and budget.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OCEANWIDE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 106 to 272, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis

Refer to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had properties under
development of HK$15,690,742,000 which were classified as
current assets while expected to be completed and recovered
after one year from the end of the reporting period. Excluding
these properties under development, which are illiquid in nature,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$3,191,437,000 as at 31 December 2019. Bank and other
loans and other payables which will fall due within twelve months
from the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
amounting to HK$1,609,932,000 and HK$1,367,623,000
respectively.

To support the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, management has prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group covering the next twelve months from
31 December 2019 and concluded that there will be sufficient
funds from the Group’s existing cash resource, available facilities
from banks, its intermediate holding companies and fellow
subsidiaries and cash flows to be generated from its operations
to finance its future operations and enable it to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve months
from 31 December 2019. The cash flow forecast involved key
assumptions such as revenue, gross profit margin, planned
capital expenditures, and availability of facilities to the Group. We
focused on this assessment as it involves consideration of future
events and application of significant judgements and estimates
and accordingly, this was an area of audit focus.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis
(Continued)

Refer to note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis included:

assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions in the
cash flow forecast, including revenue growth, gross profit
margin and planned capital expenditures by referencing
to actual historical performance of the Group and making
reference to the Group’s future development plan;

checking the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow
forecast;

confirming the cash resources and available facilities
from banks, intermediate holding companies and fellow
subsidiaries as at year end by circularisation of bank and
related parties confirmations and assessing the possibility
of facilities renewal during the forecast period by examining
historical records of renewal pattern and letter of support
from intermediate holding company obtained;

assessing financial ability of intermediate holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries in order to consider the sustainability
of facilities granted by them to the Group; and

evaluating the sensitivity of the projected available cash
flow by considering downside scenarios through applying
reasonably plausible changes to the key assumptions,
including revenue and gross profit margin.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group’s investment which is non-publicly traded listed equity
securities in Hong Kong which trading was suspended from April
2018, classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK$96,647,000. During the year ended 31 December 2019, a
decrease in fair value of the above-mentioned financial assets
of HK$104,309,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income.

We identified the valuation of the above-mentioned financial asset
is significant to our audit because the determination of fair value is
based on several key inputs that require significant management
judgments, assumptions, estimations and other inputs. The key
inputs are discount rate for lack of marketability, price movement
of comparable companies and specific adjustment attributable to
the trading halt due to corporate governance issues.

QOur response:
Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the valuation of financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income included:

— evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the management’s valuation expert;

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of adjusting factors based on
the available market data.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties - Los
Angeles

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

Included in the balances of investment properties are Group’s
investment properties in Los Angeles, the United States of
America (the “U.S.”) which are under development as at 31
December 2019 amounting to HK$3,902,820,000 and are
measured at cost less any impairment loss due to inability to
measure fair value less cost to complete reliably. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, no impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
in Los Angeles is significant to our audit because the balance
of these investment properties represented approximately
16% of the total assets of the Group, and the determination of
recoverable amount is based on several key inputs that require
significant management judgments, assumptions, estimations and
other inputs. The key inputs of estimated recoverable amount of
these investment properties are expected rental income, growth
rate and discount rate.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of investment properties - Los
Angeles (Continued)

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

QOur response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
valuation of investment properties in Los Angeles included:

- evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

- evaluating the reasonableness of key inputs used including
market data and adjusting factors used by the management;

and

- evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumptions
including future revenue and margins.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment of construction-
in-progress under properties, plant and
equipment

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

The construction in progress under properties, plant and
equipment located in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) as at
31 December 2019 amounted to HK$2,779,493,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, no impairment was recognised in
profit or loss.

We identified the impairment assessment of construction in
progress under properties, plant and equipment is significant
to our audit because the balance of construction in progress
represented approximately 11% of the total assets of the Group,
and the impairment assessment requires significant management
judgments, assumptions and other inputs for the estimation of
future recoverable amount.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of the
impairment of construction in progress under properties, plant
and equipment included:

— evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

— evaluating the reasonableness on the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by the
management; and

- evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value assessment of
properties under development

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements

Certain properties under development located in Los Angeles,
the U.S. which are under construction as at 31 December 2019
amounted to HK$6,824,353,000. During the year ended 31
December 2019, no impairment was recognised in profit or loss.

We identified the net realisable value assessment of properties
under development which is under construction in Los Angeles,
the U.S. is significant to our audit because the balance of
the concerned properties under development represented
approximately 27% of the total assets of the Group, and the
net realisable value assessment require significant management
judgments, assumptions and other inputs for estimation of the
expected selling price and cost to completion.

Qur response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
the net realisable value of properties under development in Los
Angeles, the U.S. included:

- evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies;

- evaluating the reasonableness on the key inputs used
including market data and adjusting factors used by the
management; and

— evaluating the reasonableness of significant assumption
including future revenue and margins.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong, 24 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e s

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F12A31HILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5 BT T BB T
Revenue A 8 113,027 138,637
Cost of sales & Bk A (9,258) (10,319)
Gross profit EF 103,769 128,318
Other net gains/(losses) HiHEFE S (EE) 9a 16,437 (85,962)
Selling and distribution costs THE MO A A (5,268) (5,849)
Administrative expenses THER (162,804) (90,186)
Operating loss EXEBE (47,866) (53,679)
Interest expense FERAX 11 (6,066) -
Loss before tax MRELATE 1B 9 (53,932) (53,679)
Income tax expense FriS®isz i 10 (17,962) (26,243)
Loss for the year FREE (71,894) (79,922)
Loss attributable to: LT EEHES:
Shareholders of the Company A E PR (58,044) (48,840)
Non-controlling interests FEE NS HE 2 (13,850) (31,082)
(71,894) (79,922)
Basic and diluted loss per share AATREREMLEDN
attributable to shareholders of BEREXARBEER HK(0.36) cent HK(0.30) cent
the Company 12 78 %£(0.36) il 75 15(0.30)lL

FUTAZE22ENM T ARG S I
MR —Z 5 o

The notes on pages 117 to 272 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEEREE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE2019F12A31HILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loss for the year FARIE (71,894) (79,922)
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income: Hit2m (Bx), W :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to AEAEFZEZE
profit or loss: BmayEE -
Translating financial statements of foreign MEGINEBT B mE
operations:
- Losses taken to reserves — T ARERNEE (79,891) (44,130)
Debt investments at fair value through other E NAEBEFTAELMEZERK
comprehensive income: EMEBKIRE
— Net valuation gains/(losses) taken to reserves — P ARENGE
FNE (BB 1,357 (6,666)
— Net gains of financial assets at fair value — REERBENHEER
through other comprehensive income ROE AR BEFA
previously recognised in reserves EH 2 Y a1 B 75
reclassified to consolidated income BEESTPHEEEAS
statement upon disposal W= R EFFE (4,128) (6,281)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & E# = Ez 0785
Equity investments at fair value through other BRARBEFAHAM
comprehensive income: 2HBEBRAIEE
— Net valuation losses taken to reserves — T ARENGE
FIBE (104,309) (243,890)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year, FRARBEHE M X
net of tax* (186,971) (300,967)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FAZEMAXAE (258,865) (380,889)
RRERERAT 2019FF R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F12A31HILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Total comprehensive expenses attributable

to: LUTEENEHEE AL
Shareholders of the Company VNN 23 (239,415) (351,300)
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR HE 2= (19,450) (29,589)
(258,865) (380,889)
* There was no tax effect on each component of the other * #H £20197F Kk2018F12H31H 1-
comprehensive (expenses)/income for the years ended 31 FE- -Htz2@E (AX) REHE
December 2019 and 2018. HERE D MERBEZE -
The notes on pages 117 to 272 are an integral part of these FUTEZF2I2ENME ARG E VT
consolidated financial statements. WEH—FD o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma AR R

At 31 December 2019 72019912 A31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b BT T BB T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Properties, plant and equipment L =Y & 17 2,846,078 2,852,735
Investment properties wEME 18 5,127,122 4,413,071
Leasehold land and land use FAE £ b I £ b {F R
rights 19 - 2,291
Right-of-use assets FREEE 5 and 20(a)
5%20(a) 63,607 -
Financial assets at fair value EARBEARAMm
through other comprehensive THWENIEEE
income 21 96,647 314,290
Financial assets at fair value EAnBEFABRY
through profit or loss WBEE 22 - 64,700
Deposits, prepayments and e FBNFIEREM
other receivables FE W FR I8 23 786,201 624,105
Deferred income tax assets BIEFMSMEE 28 11,995 10,585
8,931,740 8,281,777
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 24 15,690,742 14,798,884
Trade receivables JEWAR SR 25 50 1,595
Deposits, prepayments and Ze BRZKER
other receivables Ho{th jE W3R8 23 103,243 73,504
Restricted cash ZRHIEE 26 117,889 411,892
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIRESEEY 26 70,401 677,983
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 15,982,325 15,963,868
Total assets EEHAE 24,914,065 24,245,635
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to AEATRRELER
shareholders of the Company
Share capital R& A 29 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves & 8,518,618 8,759,303
10,132,883 10,373,568
Non-controlling interests IR R 419,422 438,872
Total equity BT 10,552,305 10,812,440
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At 31 December 2019 #2019 12 A31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M sE BET T BT T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Borrowings [=l=y 30 3,753,133 1,633,570

Lease liabilities HEBME 5 and 20(b)

5%20(b) 44,706 -

Amount due to an intermediate FE AT — FEl P R A

holding company UNSIE/Q| 36h 6,805,367 5,194,773

Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFMSHBE 28 275,534 269,339
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,878,740 7,097,682
Current liabilities REBEE

Deposits received, other EiRe - EfhER

payables and accruals IR EETIEE 27 1,812,572 1,795,017

Borrowings TE 30 1,609,932 4,513,893

Lease liabilities HEaE 5 and 20(b) 38,125 -

5X20(b)

Current income tax liabilities mEFERAaE 22,391 26,603
... 3483020 6335513
Total liabilities BERE 14,361,760 13,433,195
Total equity and liabilities EahkaEHHE 24,914,065 24,245,635

The notes on pages 117 to 272 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 272 were
approved by the Board of Directors.

HAN Xiaosheng
BiEL

Chairman

EF=

FUTEZE2ENM T ARG E T
WEM—F D -

F106HE EF272H MR A T HREK T
BEEIHHE -

LIU Guosheng
218 H
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE2019F 12431 HILFE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Operating activities REEK
Cash used in operating activities RETRMERKA « B4
before finance costs, tax paid and MELRLEEELEH
changes in working capital MEEEBMARE 3la (53,574) (19,929)
Changes in working capital EEASHNE 31b (409,912) (2,142,891)
Cash used in operations LEARE (463,486) (2,162,820)
Interest received =R EPS) 17,509 18,311
Dividend received B AR 2,404 11,904
Tax paid RN (5,327) (12,458)
Netcash used in operating activities  SMRBAARSEM (145900 (2145069
Investing activities REEK
Disposal of subsidiary, net of cash HEKRB AR B
disposed BRATHERS - 100,453
Proceeds from disposal of properties, KELEEME  HEER
plant and equipment REWFTIS IR 901 -
Purchases of properties, plant and BEWE  HER
equipment B (13,940) (29,205)
Additions to investment properties REREMHE (511,830) (988,469)
Purchase of financial assets at fair BERARBETAR
value through profit or loss =R GEE - (313,638)
Purchases of note receivables BEEKER (170,015) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial REHERARER
assets at fair value through other FEAE b 2w EE A
comprehensive income W EEMMEHRIA 114,531 267,152
Proceeds from disposal of financial KEHERARBER
assets at fair value through profit or AEZH I B EED
loss FR§IA 67,364 306,108
Increase in other non-current assets HEaIEms) & E LN (7,835) (105,609)
Decrease in restricted cash R 3R & 5 186,974 466,779
Net cash used in investing REEXKFANRS
activities FE (333,850) (296,429)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F12A31HILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
F 5 BT T BT T
Financing activities Al g K
Proceeds from bank and other loans KRERITREMERS
RO 31c 3,453,277 3,500,060
Repayment of bank and other loans BRRITRHEMERK 31c 4,251,955 (3,353,169)
Proceeds from borrowings from an e R EZERRDA
intermediate holding company EEM S %’K 31c 3,888,627 5,572,439
Repayment of borrowings to an m—RE A EER A FE
intermediate holding company B1EE 31c (2,562,987) (3,663,744)
Proceeds from loans from fellow RERRMBRARER
subsidiaries B PSSR 31c 8,000 8,000
Issue of convertible notes BT R EIE 31c - 587,500
Interest paid 2 E 31c (400,660) (231,241)
Repayment of principal and interest BEHEAEY
elements of lease liabilities e A EHH 31c (22,134) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SZREIRE L,
(3% hn) 105,304 (6,465)
Net cash generated from financing MEXBEERSE
activities HH 217,472 2,413,380
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkRESEEBURD
equivalents FE (565,278) (28,112)
Cash and cash equivalents at MA1ANEESR
1 January Re%EY 677,983 713,397
Exchange losses on cash ReRkReEEBYER
and cash equivalents E#E (42,304) (7,302)
Cash and cash equivalents at M2A3IEHNERER
31 December REZEEY 70,401 677,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE2019F 12431 HILFE

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Analysis of unsecured and BEARTZRFIRS -
unrestricted cash, liquid funds and RBEERLETRED
listed investments il
Bank deposits with maturity less than R={E A AR B ER1T
three months yea-y - 2,106
Cash at banks and on hand RITFERRIES 70,401 675,877
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESEEY 70,401 677,983
The notes on pages 117 to 272 are an integral part of these FUNTEHEF2NENWE AALGE T B
consolidated financial statements. WRH—HD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERRBEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F12A31HILFE

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
ARIRRER FEREE  EREE
Fair value
through other ~ Convertible (Note)
Share Share  Exchange  comprehensive  note equity Other  Retained
capital  premium reserve  income reserve reserve reserves profits  Sub-total

BOAEESA  TRRRE (H)
Bx BBEE  EXBE AMREUEERE  BEERE  BtEE REWE At
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI EWTR  BRTR BT RWTR BRTR EWTR BRTR EWTR EMTR

AT January 2019, previously reporied 20191 A1E (MEIZH) 1614265 8181541 220477 (5,02 23121 (55047 455140 10373568 438872 10,812,440
Recognition on adoption of HKFRS 16 A B 881 T4 5 228

(Note 5) Z16%F R (s) - - (27) - - - (1,250) (1,277) - (1,277)
At January 2019, as restated MOOEIFMA(BER) 1614265 818154 220450 65929 23120 (55047) 453890 10072201 438872 10,811,163

Other comprehensive (expenses)/  Eft 2 (Bx%)/ ki

income
Translating financial statements of REENEBHHERR -
foreign operations:
- Losses taken to reserves - HARENEE - - (74,116) - - (179) - (74,291) (5,600 (79,891)
Debt investments at fair value through #7227 BESF ARt 2 Bl
other comprehensive income: MERRE:
- Net valuation gaing taken to reserves  — St A BN EEFHE - - - 1,357 - - - 1,357 - 1,357
-Net gans o finencial assefs at farvale ~ — NI ERBARNEERD
hrough other comprehensive income MELAEEIALNE
previously recogrised in eserves ARENEBEEEN
reclassfied to consoldated income BERRURENTAE
statement upon disposal - - - (4,128) - - - (4,128) - (4,128)
Equity investments at fair value through 72/ BESH A2 AN
other comprehensive income: HRRARE -
- Net valuation losses taken to - HARBNRETEE
reserves - - - (104,309) - - - (104,309) - (104,309)
Net expenses recognised directly ERNEREANFRY
in ety - - (mag) (107,080) - (175 - 81aT) (5600 (186,971)
Logs for the year ERER - - - - - - (58,044) (58,044) (13,850) (11,894)
Total comprehensive expenses 2ERXEE - - (74,116) (107,080) - (175) (68,04)  (239,415) (19,450) (258,86)
Written back of unclaimed dividends BEAERRE - - - - - - 7 7 - 7
Total other transactions with ERRERERNEERR
shareholders recognised directlyin KR ZAE
equity - - - - - - 7 7 - 7
At 31 December 2019 #201912A318 1,614,265 8,181,541 146,334 (173,009) 28,121 (55,222) 395,853 10,132,883 419,422 10,552,305

114 CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



H/T\ T%ﬁgib%(/n\g)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE2019F 12431 HILFE

Non-
controling Total
Attrioutable to shareholders of the Company Interests equty
KRARRER FihEs  EagE
Fair value
Investment through other ~ Convertble Note)
Share Share  Exchange  revaluation  comprehensie  note equity Other
capitl premium Tesenve lesene  ncomeresene lesene  resenes  Retaned
REERE  ROAEEHL  THREE (H) pofts Sublotel
B RieE  EiGE B EHOEMGEE  BEEE  EMEE  REWR It
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000
Lav I AT EEn BT ABTT BETn 0 BEfn BETn #Efn BB
At 1 January 2018, previously reported H08EA1R (a2 8) 1,614,265 8,181,541 205,715 24,194) - - (54,662) 74674 10,707,339 468461 11,175,800
Reclassficaton on adoption of HKFRS 9 HERERNFREEYEE
EE¥AE - - TR 2.4 - N I ) - B
At1 January 2018, as restated H018E1 B1R (RE3)) 1,614,265 8,181,541 205,715 - (22490 - (54,662) nigi 10,701,740 468461 11,170,201
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Eh2EkE/ (BR)
Tranglating financiel statements of foreign operations:  BEENEREHHER
- (Losses)/gainstaken to reserves - HABEN(BE) /A8 - - (B2 - - - (385 - t5623) 1493 (4130)
Delot investments at fair valug through other ROLBEFAL2ELEY
comprefensive income: BHRE
- Net valuafion osses taken to reserves - TAREBNEEREE - - - - (6,666) - - - (6,666) - (6,666
- Net gains of fancia assefs at firvalue thiough - MEERBEREERANE
other comprehensive income previously MEEFALRZENE
recogrised n resenves reciassfed o MY KEEENARERS
consoldeted income statement upon disposl KERAFHE - - - - 6281) - - - (6,281) - 6281)
Eouty investments at fair vlue through other ROABEFAL2ANED
comprehensive income: RikE
- Nt valuaton losses taken to reserves - HARBNREESEE = = = = (243,890) = = - (38 - 380
Nt (expenses)income recognised diecty nequity: ~ ERRERERANE(ER)/
Wi : = - (45,288) - 256,837) - (385) (302,460) 1493 300,967)
Loss for he year ERER = = = = - . I YO N T /N 1)
Total comprehensive expenses ERZAE o - (45,288) - 256,837) - (385) (48,840) 351,300) 29,589 380,889)
Wrtten back of unclaimed dhidends BRAEMRE - - - - - - - 7 7 - 7
Issue of convertole notes EATARZE = = = - - B - - 8121 - 8121
Transfer of fair value change on equty investmentsat - EREAL BEFALH2E
fai value through other comprehensiveincome o~ MEHRARZN A4 BEED
retained profis ZREAE - - - - 180,054 - - (189084 - - -
Recognton ofosses on dsposalof equty BRLERMA BEALY
investments at e value through other EhaNREREERE
comprehensive income {o retained profts RaEdE = - - - 24,344 - - 24,344 = o -
Total other transactions with shareholders ERRERRINEHARN
recognised directly in equity A48 - = = = 213,398 812 = (213,301) 23128 - 23128
At 31 December 2018 N2018512A31R 1,614,265 8,181,541 20411 - (6,929) 2121 (55,047) 455,140 10,373,568 138872 10812440
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019F12A31HILFE

Note:

Other reserves comprise other properties revaluation reserve, merger reserve,
capital redemption reserve and other reserve.

MieE -

HitFBeREnmEEftitd aHER BEX

R (o o 1 L At e A

Other
properties Capital
revaluation Merger redemption Other
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Hiny EXREE
ERE EOHER *1E Hinf#E @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2018 ®20184F1 A1 8 8,383 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (54,662)
At 31 December 2018 and 7A2018F12A31A &
1 January 2019 20191518 7,998 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (55,047)
At 31 December 2019 A2019F12831H 7,823 (913) 3,558 (65,690) (65,222)
The notes on pages 117 to 272 are an integral part of these FIT7TEEF272BENM T ARNGEE T

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in property investments in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), real estate development in the United States of
America (the “United States” or “U.S.”), development in the
energy sector in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”) and
finance investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and the shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s parent is Oceanwide Holdings International
Company Limited and the directors consider its ultimate
parent is Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd. (incorporated in the
PRC) and the ultimate controlling party of the Company is
Mr. Lu Zhigiang.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B ERRMEE

—RER

RREERERAR ([ARF]) KA
B AR (R ARE]) EBRF
FARAMBE ([HE])REEMER
B RENBARE (B #RE
FHEMZE  NEERmEXME
(ENED HERBRENTEERK
HEHEE -

ARl R—BRBEBREETMA L
WERQA - -ERNHEETEHS
RGHBBR ARG LT XRAHK
=% ff 3% 2= B% 2 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

RARMMERA /R BERBERE
RAR MEERREKKERF
RBEERER AR (R h EEM
FXAL) - AR Z REESTH
EEEEE -

BRIERBER - BRIKRERE M|
RUEBEZT -
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

a. Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 23 Borrowing
Costs

2

EREBMBHREER

a.

HAHTRIETE
B B & | E — 12019
F1HA184EN

ERbHEE  HE
ERIF16%

B (ARMHSE HAEREEN

L2EZEe)  TETH
- REF0%

ERAYBEEE ABARENRER
EEEAH) T

BREIENE  HEET BHAE

195% &3] g
ERGHENE REEAARSEDR
285 (55T EMRERE
BREUMBREE BAVBREENES
820155 % VAR AR
17EESE  BHERERE
EENE NRIEERH]
BB G ERIEL
FIMERIRER
S AERIFE23%
[BERAET



2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

a.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s perspective,
almost all leases are recognised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, with the narrow exception to this principle for
leases which the underlying assets are of low-value or
are determined as short-term leases. From a lessor’s
perspective, the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Details of HKFRS 16
regarding its impact on the adoption, its new definition
of a lease, its impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16 are set out in Note
B

EREBMBREER
(#&)

RA#ERIETE
B B & & — 12019
F1A1B4E KX (&)

BB BHEERE16
R-HE

EAMBRESERE165H A
HEgr (FEAEABAZE
et ERERERE
B HMR BB G ERE7
HIAE| (BB ENSE
175%]) - &% (BERVB®RE
ERBZES) REBFSR(E
TRERETRIERE] - BE
(RRIZBZE®)-RES
155 [REBE-BEIRE
B (EAIREBZEY)-2EE
TR AP R EEZRERK
RENAR] - EABAZA
- BT EREREHERIBEK
MENERBEAEEER
HEARE - LRAIF D EH I
BRAREZHEBEEARK
BEXETARHAE - £H
HAZAE S:tRERME
REBGHERNEI7TR # #F
T8 - BEARBAESVHERE
EREIRNTE HEMAE
MFEE  HAKEEHER
VR ENRBBMBEREE
A ZE1655 B T FF AN £ B IR
MEBEREZNFBEHIR
Bt 5ES5 ©
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current
and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either
the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.

2
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

a.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
— instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan
amendments, curtailment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current service cost and net interest for
the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling
is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on
any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately
in other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment in the
associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS
9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment losses
guidance within HKAS 28.

2

EREBMBREER
(#&)

RA#ERIETE
B B & & — 12019
F1A1B4E KX (&)

BRI T & E R E 95
1B -EBEE#HENIER
B

LEETEE - WHAHER
M BARBENTREER
B 5 & B A 2 6 85 5 AR A
D A BB A K 2 E
RMTRIE  MIRDAE
RN

EBETERE199 15
] —F12I1EET ~ 4B H Bt 4=

ot

=

BREBTRSE B - SRk
mBERERMEE - AR
ERAEHBERRETEE
MR AR R B AFERNE - 1t
Sh - HETEZE B2 EREE
Wk BB T EREEL
RERAZZE YHEMEE
Wath EEEE o

BB E T ER Fo8E 15T
- REBEELNGREELS

HY = B 1 2
BRERIBRBEREAMBREE
BUESISD i D 30N AN

ARAE AR ZIRE FRE—
HozREE R RrRkaE A
Al R ([RG#ER] -
IR E BB I wmE R E9
St N BB g st £ R F285%
WEBEESIEARZER
Bt e o

RZERAERAE 20194F F3f

121



122

2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business
obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation which
is a business and subsequently obtains joint control of
the joint operation, the previously held equity interest
should not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair
value.
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

a.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
- effective on 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23 Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or
sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 2 EREAUBHEEL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
b. New/revised HKFRSs that have been b. EEMEEKRERDN
issued but are not yet effective T S CHE- 1)
B EEL
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business' ERMBREE EBHNER
EIERTACH]
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’ ERGTENE BANTE
and HKAS 8 1HREEE
FTERIESH
a7
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’ ERUBREE FIEREEYE
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 AIE9%: - &
BHEAE
395 kBB
BMEEAZE
TSRIER]
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? ARVBREE RRAEL?
AIEATHE
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between EEUBREE REFLEREN
10 and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or 8105 E  FRAELEZ
Joint Venture?® BEElE  HEEHEIE
285 1B FT N
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 ¥ 722020F1 A1B sk A& B 1A
2020 BFEHR AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 20211 A1E A& H 18
2021 BV E AR AR K
3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for 3 ZE B RER2018F1A1H
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective S BFERBRAER - £%A
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the HMEEWRET Bh-RERE
amendments continue to be permitted. AZEET N -
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

b.

New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance
on what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing inputs or processes and
continuing to produce outputs, whilst narrowing the
definition of “outputs” and a “business” to focus on
returns from selling goods and services to customers,
rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 -
Definition of Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.
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2 APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

b.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

New/revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by interest
rate benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties.

HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single
principle-based standard for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts in the financial statements of the
issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

This following note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the group
consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

a. Statement of compliance and basis
of measurement

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for the revaluation
of investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which are
carried at fair value at subsequent reporting date.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors of
the Company to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 7.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

b.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Going concern assumption

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had properties
under development of HK$15,690,742,000 which
were classified as current assets while expected to
be completed and recovered after one year from the
end of reporting period. Excluding these properties
under development, which are illiquid in nature,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$3,191,437,000 as at 31 December
2019. This is mainly because certain bank and other
loans and other payables of HK$1,609,932,000
and HK$1,367,623,000 respectively will fall due
within twelve months of the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the Group’s
businesses in real estate development in the United
States of America (the “United States” or “U.S.”) and
energy sector in the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”)
are capital intensive in nature and funding the
continuous development of these businesses would
require access to substantial capital in the foreseeable
future.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) have taken careful
consideration to the future liquidity, the construction
progress of the projects in the U.S. and Indonesia and
its available sources of financing in assessing whether
the Group has sufficient working capital for the next
twelve months from the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to improve the
Group’s financial position and alleviate the liquidity
pressure, the Directors have been implementing
various measures as follows:

(i) The Group is currently negotiating with the banks
and financial institutions to renew or extend the
existing facilities;
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

b.

Going concern assumption
(Continued)

(i) The Group will utilise the undrawn facilities
as at 31 December 2019 amounting to
HK$6,507,877,000 (including undrawn facilities
from an intermediate holding company);

(i)  The Group will also continue to seek other
alternative financing and bank borrowings to
finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures; and

(iv)  The Group will seek additional financial support
from its intermediate holding company, such as
obtaining additional facilities, for any additional
financial needs.

In light of the above, taking into account all the
financial resources currently available to the Group,
including the banking facilities currently available
(subject to renewal and extension) as well as further
borrowings currently under negotiation with potential
lenders and the continuous financial support from the
Company’s intermediate holding companies (when
necessary), the Directors are of the opinion that, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months after
the date of the approval of the consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquire, the equity interests
issued by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquire on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquirer’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a.

Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages,

the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquire
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the date when the control is
transferred to the Group to the date when control
ceases.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

b.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment (note 39). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors and the chief financial officer that make
strategic decisions.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d. Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt and equity
securities denominated in foreign currency and
classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are analysed
between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security
and/or other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in the income statement while other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported in the income
statement as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
are included in other comprehensive income.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

d. Foreign currency translation

(Continued)

(iii) Group’s entities

The results and financial position of all the
Group’s entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment comprise mainly
freehold land, construction in progress, buildings,
leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, and motor vehicles. Properties, plant
and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes its purchase price and expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value less accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold 5 years or over the term of the

improvements relevant leases, whichever is
shorter
Furniture, fixtures 3to 7 years
and equipment
Motor vehicles 5 to 8 years

Freehold land is stated at historical cost and not
depreciated less any recognised impairment loss.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e.

Properties, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each date of statement of financial
position.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents properties, plant
and equipment under construction and pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings, the cost of plant and
machinery, employee benefit expenses, professional
fees and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of
construction or installation and testing, if any. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and are available for intended
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

4 EARSHBEME(R)

MR- BBERRE

(#&)

HEME I RRENHE
X &5 18 T & AT IS SRR R RR
HEMEENKESEME
B EZF > WS RFER
BENAEAFHARSEE
Bias  WIFHEZERAE -

FEEMREEBES NG
A EEEE - ARE SRS R
FRF OB 2 T U B 78

HEIR

ERIREERZERGREN
W R RRE TR
HWRETRERE R (10F) 58k -
B BRI R Bk K
AR AT AR EMA - 1
28 R EI AR B B 1R A 5
X BEBRAREERARA
REBEERHTESD) MELEW
MEBXH(WAE) - AEEH
B R TR RRITERE
EEMBEETK M EH
ERBRZER/L - ERETER
EEREAHERRERD
BEYE BEhRENEE
%5l -

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

137



138

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

g.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
is estimated taking into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprise
costs of land use rights, construction costs,
employee benefit expenses, borrowing costs and loan
arrangement fee capitalised for qualifying assets and
professional fees incurred during the development
period.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, that are not occupied
by the Group, are held for long-term rental yields,
capital appreciation or both. Properties that are being
constructed or developed for future long-term rental
yields, capital appreciation or both are also classified
as investment properties. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and fair
value cannot be reliably measured at that time, and
therefore are stated at cost. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h.

Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Payments for leasehold land held
for own use under operating leases
(accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018)

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases represent up-front payments to
acquire long-term interests in lessee-occupied
properties. These payments are stated at cost and
are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis as an expense.

Financial instruments
(i)  Financial Assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- financial assets at fair value (either through

other comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

- financial assets at amortised cost.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income, depending on
how the assets are classified. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading
and not contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer to which HKFRS 3 applies, this
will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial
application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of the
assets to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

4 EARSHBERME(R)

J-

LM IA (&)

(i)

HMBEEE (&)

()

5 R R K B 5 Bt
BOA R R At
BEEMANBS RS
o

IEAAEEFENE
EMmME MEREER
FEENDENARE
sl M E kR E AR -
LA IR ER B KA 3F
BB WS E E R B35
i A E R U T R
HARENBEATAR
EmE - 2 EBURRA
SEESRVBERE
BB EERNFEISR,
Y116 TR B ER A
CliEBARAAEE
AR EE RS AR
AEENARTA

REBRREREERE
REEEMEBELE
HETEREBRER
oo -

73

FREBMBEERR
ZEH(AEEEAREREE
KhEZEEMNB M) #E

7
e



4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J-

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

- Amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

4 EKX

J-

BT RRME (&)

eI A (E)

(i)

/gj ﬁ. éeE (ﬂﬁ
o

RV R E - AEME
BRARBESMN(EL
FEAABENARR
MM BEE) WIBMIEE
EEREBEHNRXZRA
RIBMBAEE -EROR
BB ABm AR
ENXHRARERX
3 °

REEMH@RANITE
TANPBEENRS
ﬁET@W%$%&$
BEEATHENREE
FEEEE -

[

DEME
BEEIA

BT AMEKRGE
R AEEEEEE
EBRUREERNT
M - AEEIA=
AERRKBEERT

/\ *E

Y
i)
®
X
A

— BN

RWEE KR 2R
ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ%%ﬁ
ﬂgﬁ m%%ﬁ
B IR AN E
E-ZEEBMIA
B A A B s
A E R A XA
WWW\°m¢%
R AR5
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁé
R I [F N

FE 35 7118 R AR R
2w Fl1E, (58)

25 BREBER
Bak 25 BT
BH -

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

141



142

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J- Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive
income. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j- Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

Fair value through profit or loss

Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value, dividend
income and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j-

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial Assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income

For equity investment which is not held
for trading purposes and not contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer
to which HKFRS 3 applies and on initial
application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition
of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at
fair value through other comprehensive
income, they are subsequently measured
at fair value and changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the
fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained profits. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividend
income is recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. Equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
(including trade receivables, other receivables
and cash and bank balances) and investment in
debt instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised, see Note 25 for further details.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses which are measured at
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. The maximum period to consider
when measuring expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the

entity is exposed to credit risk.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Expected credit losses are measured at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes
in the debt instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the amount of
expected credit losses is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. Loss
allowances for debt instruments measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For
debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve (recycling),
instead of reducing the carrying amount of the
financial assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
a simplified approach to measure the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Expected credit losses
on trade receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date. For other
debt financial assets, the Group measures
the loss allowance either based on 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J-

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held).

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, bank and other borrowings
and the debt component of convertible notes
issued by the Group are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in Note
4(0).

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

For other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

For borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan
to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
that contain the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their

respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
For conversion option classified as an equity
instrument, the difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible loan notes and
the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible notes equity reserve). For
conversion option classified as derivative, it is
recognised at fair value. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as liability.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible loan notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, represented by the option
to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
notes equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible loan equity reserve will be transferred
to share capital. Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance
stated in convertible loan notes equity reserve
will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or
expiration of the option. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability
and conversion option components in proportion
to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity and relating to
conversion option derivative is recognised to
profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan
notes using the effective interest method.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

j.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when,
and only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

k.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet where the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Company
has also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, but are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets
that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying value of these assets may not be
recoverable and have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Such impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units).
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

m.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

n.

Provisions and contingencies
(Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

p.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated

income statement, except to the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity, respectively.

(i)

Current income tax

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income
tax purposes and is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

4 EARSHBERME(R)

p. EIHIRIELFEH

FARBEXHBFENHEE
FERMLIA o PR ENE A2 E RS
RAEEREDERNIER
B AR (MR BRIET D IR
i 2 T Y &5 FE AR Sk B IR N AR

0

#) G

MIEERERE K

(i)

B2 F 15

BIEITIBIA R B EBH
BESER BSHME
B EEERBTKAA
MHNIEE HE - IR
ISENVNEIIIEENETE 3
K EERERBWEFTHE
BERBEHRD EML
ABEEMTERAE -
EEERNEAREERN
W55 R e 18 0 E B FF
mmBREROMARR - L&
i B LA TR B 28 (A B A
BRSO B R B
AR E B



4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

p. Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill and the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of statement of financial
position and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

p. Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a.

(A) Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property,
they are carried at fair value.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

q.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(A) Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The
Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which
are held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Other
than the above right-of-use assets, the Group also
has leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its judgement
and determines that it is a separate class of asset
apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

a.

(A) Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties
to a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

4 EARSHBEME(R)

(A)FEE (H2019F1A
1HEERANSEEER)

(%)
HEERE (&)

RFEAMR  AKEEET
FIZRFEEEEE - ()8
FHEARREEAENH
B (B AR E A R BR{E
B E R - R EFE 2R
EEARREMEGBHEE
CEQRUE T CFIRS FIE T30
RREENRES HERE
B BEERTHENREHNL
BEHAREENFGEZS -

1ERH A E 5T B

AEBERZEZEFPHER
REME -K2HENHES W
ATDZEBEEEFHAER
ERBRPER - REARET
HRE2HEREEZVZTE
ERAMABREREZRE
B YREKEINEHERAME

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

161



162

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

q.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(B)Leasing (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2018)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the leasing
company are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (including up-front
prepayments made for the leasehold land and land
use rights) net of any incentives received from the
leasing company are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

r.

Employee benefits

(i)

Salaries, bonus, paid annual leave and the cost
of other benefits to the Group are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.

The Group operates two defined contribution
schemes for Hong Kong employees, the assets
of which are held in separate administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution schemes are expensed as incurred
and are not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis
to various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC.
The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future
retired employees for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the government of the PRC.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

r. Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

The Group has participated in a defined
contribution plan the 401(k) scheme covering all
of its eligible employees in the U.S.. Employees
who participate in the plan may contribute a
portion of their compensation on a pre-income
tax basis up to a limit specified by law. The
Group’s contribution to the plan is based on
the percentage of employee contribution from
the individual employee’s monthly basic salary.
The Group also provides an employee benefit
plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 125,
offering to pay for its eligible employees for
medical premium and dependent care expenses
on a pre-tax basis. Contributions to this scheme

are expensed as incurred.

(i) Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are

discounted to their present value.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4 EARSHBERME(R)

r.

BERA (&)

(i)

(i)

(&)

AEBEL2HERTHK
ETEl 401(KETEIREE
FFEXEAGERESRS -
2 HEEMES A LR
Fr 15 %4 B # (8 B 3 — &
D(ERBEEZMED
REE) IERHE - A& E
M ET B 7E A # Ty HE
RitEREES A EAX
FeSEMEEHZRA
DHETE c REE IR
E(BE AW AE) (Internal
Revenue Code)&1251&
RMH—AEEBENFE
REUBAIEEEEE
BKEESXNEES X
EAREBRY - mILEH
EEHMHERERELE
Bz dH o

BRENNEEELR
BB R RAEBE L L
BRAXEBEERX AR
BB DA HR HR UL S5 4R ) B 32
e REBRIAT B H
(AP ERE) HEREE
BEM: @ AKEN
BrAa gL RHZE RN
MEEE Rb)EEE
BRETESENR
T B - KABER
KAREBEEINBEARNNE
ALK AR X % T 32 A B B
18 F SRR B o FE IR 2
AT B RRERAS
ST BERAE R D &R
FHEREIEZNERA
BB -EHRSEHRR
HiB121E A 2 83 X 19
WM GRIRERE -



4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

S.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become vested. At every period end, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income
statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value
of the options, measured immediately before and after
the modification, is also recognised in profit or loss
over the remaining vesting period.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties and is after deduction of any
trade discount.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognised in the
income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the year in which they are
earned.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments including financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss or other
comprehensive income are recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefit will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

u.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
as appropriate.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

w. Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iv)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

w. Related parties (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

(vii)

(i)

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or

domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

HKFRS 16 Lease

BRI BREERF1657

Impact on the consolidated financial
statements

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and recognised all the cumulative
effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
date of initial application (which is 1 January 2019).
The comparative information presented in 2018 has
not been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1

HE
a. HEESMBHRRNE
48

AEBCRARAVEELER
BB B HREERFE165 L
HRMEERNERTBMB
WELERFIHHRATE
R E X MR A (B120194F
1A18) WRBAEF BV & &%
YEH A2 - R20184F 2 7 &Y
hEERWEET - WHEER
BEASTERNEITRRE
B BmEERE16BE
X ERTRMEEZRE2W -

TR EEEEB SR
£ AR E165: ¥ & £20184F
12A31H £2019F1A18 1

January 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)):

RAMBRARNEZENT

(&, CRd))

Increase/
(decrease)
i, Cr2)
HK$°000
BT T

Consolidated statement of financial RN2019F1 1B NE S I

position as at 1 January 2019 AR &R

Right-of-use assets (Note 20) FA#EEE (M 3E20) 81,969
Properties under development (Note 24) TR P YE (Mi5E24) 1,777
Investment properties (Note 18) wEWME (KIzE18) 251
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note 19)  FA& +#h & + #b {5 A4 (MF3E19) (2,291)
Properties, plant and equipment (Note 17) I - eI R E (HaE17) (225)
Lease liabilities (non-current) (Note 20) HEBEGERD) (M:20) 74,749
Lease liabilities (current) (Note 20) HEBE(RE) (H:F20) 17,314
Other payable H A FE S FROR (9,305)
Retained earnings REBAF (1,250)
Exchange reserve bE X & (27)
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

e B HmR MR ()

5 BBRRSBHIEHE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (&)
(CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued) ERNKREERE165
HE (&)
a. Impact on the financial statement a. HEBKHERNEE
(Continued) (%)

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 at
the end of 31 December 2018 could be reconciled
to the lease liabilities at the date of initial application
recognised in the statement of financial position as at

1 January 2019:

LA % BR B it 201812 H
SIAKREREEGEARE
17T EA LS HEREN
R2019F1 B1H W Bk R
RERNNERAEABBY
HEBENYERER

HK$’000
BT

Reconciliation of operating lease
commitment to lease liabilities

Operating lease commitment as of

RERERBERAERENER

HZE2018F12A3THMKEEHE

31 December 2018 HHE 85,938

Less: short term leases for which lease B AHERR2019F 12 A31 B AJE W

terms end within 31 December 2019 KRG EAME & (177)
Add: leases included in extension option m: BeREEBSEMAER FITE

which the Group considers CEREHE

reasonably certain to exercise 18,092
Less: future interest expenses B ARRF B (11,790)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 HE2019F1A1ENHEEBEAS 92,063

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 is

7.74%.

20191 A1 8 B AR R K
BRNEEAEMBERKM
BEHEBAAREEERR
7.74% °
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the use
of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, unless the lessee apply
the practical expedient which allows the lessee to
elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate
non-lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 5 SIHXEBTFEMRE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (&)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued) ERNKREERE165

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
a lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. If a lease
is determined as an operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the operating
lease as an expense over the lease term. The asset
under the lease would not be recognised in the
statement of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but HKFRS
16 provides accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
low-value assets (including photocopying machines)
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property,
they are carried at fair value.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 5 SIHXEBTFEMRE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (&)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued) ERNKREERE165

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

For the Group, leasehold land and buildings that were
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose would
continue to be accounted for under HKAS 40 and
would be carried at fair value. For leasehold land and
buildings which is held for own use would continue
to be accounted for under HKAS 16 and would be
carried at cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. The adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore does
not have any significant impact on these right-of-use
assets. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises its
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use
asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

C.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 5 SIHXEBTFEMRE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (&)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued) ERNKREERE165

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to
a number of tenants. As the accounting under HKFRS
16 for a lessor is substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have significant impact on these financial
statements.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS
16 using the cumulative effect approach and
recognised all the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at the date of initial application (1
January 2019). The comparative information presented
in 2018 has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations
as allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at
the date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying HKAS 17 and
measured those lease liabilities at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified operating leases under HKAS 17 as if
HKFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group has also applied the following practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of
the date of initial application (1 January 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii)
exclude the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at 1 January 2019; (iv)
used hindsight in determining the lease terms if the
contracts contain options to extend or terminate the
leases and (v) relied on its assessment of whether
leases were onerous by applying HKAS 37 immediately
before 1 January 2019 as an alternative to performing
an impairment review.
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5 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Lease (Continued)

Transition (Continued)

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied
to all of the Group’s lease contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and (ii) not to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Risk management is carried out by senior
management of the Group under policies approved by
the board of directors of the Company.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the United States dollar
(“US$”), HK$ and Renminbi (“‘RMB”) as the
Group’s revenue and the operating costs are
denominated in these currencies. The Group
is also exposed to other currency movements,
primarily in terms of investments in the U.S.
and Indonesia, bank deposits, loan, note and
interest receivables, certain other loans and
amount due to an intermediate holding company
denominated in US$. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments
to hedge its foreign exchange exposures.

At 31 December 2019, if the HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 0.5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year and equity would have been
HK$12,948,000 higher/lower (2018: loss for
the year would be HK$35,435,000 higher/
lower) and HK$12,948,000 lower/higher (2018:
HK$34,868,000 lower/higher) respectively,
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated
cash and bank deposits, loan, note and interest
receivables, other loans and amount due to an
intermediate holding company. The Group’s
management manages this risk by closely
monitoring the exchange rate movement and
changes in market conditions that may have a
significant impact on the operations and financial
performance.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Price risk

The Group’s main market price risk exposures
relate to its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and through other comprehensive
income, which mainly comprise debt and equity
securities. At 31 December 2019, if the market
price of the financial assets had increased/
decreased by 5%, loss for the year and equity
of the Group would have nil impact (2018: loss
for the year would have been HK$3,235,000
lower/higher) and HK$4,832,000 (2018:
HK$18,950,000) higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of the gains/losses on
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (2018: financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and through
other comprehensive income). The Group closely
monitors the price movement and changes in
market conditions that may have an impact on
the value of these financial assets.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities except for cash and bank
deposits, loan receivables, note receivables,
lease liabilities, bank and other loans, amount
due to an intermediate holding company, amount
due to a fellow subsidiary and convertible notes.
The interest rates for the loan receivables, note
receivables, amount due to an intermediate
holding company, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary, certain other loans and convertible
notes are fixed while the interest expense of
certain other loans which bear interests at
variable rates are capitalised.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on
cash and bank deposits had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have been
HK$1,055,000 (2018: HK$10,899,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of interest income on
the bank deposits.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a.

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The aggregate revenue from the five largest
customers represents 42.7% (2018: 41.3%)
of total revenue excluding interest income
and dividend income, of which, one customer
(2018: one customer) individually exceeds 10%
of the total revenue (excluding interest income
and dividend income) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

At 31 December 2019, the balance of trade
and other receivables mainly represents rental
receivables and interest receivables. Rental
deposits are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. The Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of these debtors to
manage the risk.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

There is no significant credit risk in relation to
the Group’s cash and bank deposits as cash
and bank deposits are placed with banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings.
Approximately 61% (2018: 98%) of the Group’s
bank deposits were placed in international
financial institutions with minimum credit ratings
of A3/A- as rated by Moody’s and Standard &
Poor’s as at 31 December 2019.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for the
Group and the Company at the reporting date
is the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets.

The Group determines the following expected
credit loss rate for its loan receivables and note
receivables based on Group’s expected loan
repayment date and adjusted by forward looking
factors. The details of the loan and interest are
disclosed in note 23 (b) and (c).
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

a. Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

(i)

Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The loss allowances as at 31 December 2019

was determined for non-current loan and interest
receivables and note receivables as follows:

B EE (F)

a. MBEKREZRE)
() WL (&)

=ERER ()

AEEFRFERSDEKE
F R F B U = S
FR2019%F12A31H H

EEEROT :
Loan and interest receivables EREZREFE 2019 2018
20194 20184
ECL rate (%) T B {E 1B k(%) 2.3 2.4
Gross carrying amount of non-current loan 3E i &) g i & 30 &
and interest receivables (HK$’000) A EREAE
(BETFT) 292,250 278,396
Loss allowances (HK$’000) EEEE % T or) 6,818 6,818
Note and interest receivables EREERFE 2019 2018
20194 20184
ECL rate (%) TEHER(E B K(%) 0.3 -
Gross carrying amount of note and EREERFE
interest receivables (HK$’000) BREECEE T 169,505 =
Loss allowances (HK$’000) EREE (BT ) 431 -

In respect of loan and note receivables, credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, and the loss allowances recognised
during the year was therefore limited to 12
months ECLs.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, senior management of the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 HMKEEERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
a. Financial risk factors (Continued) a. MEREKREZE (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEIEE R (AE)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRENRGEEBRZEZAEY
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based R FEBER B
on the remaining period at the date of the BEBIABRESE DT
consolidated statement of financial position AEEBHMTHEAE KR
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts N ENEEAEKRLE
disclosed in the table are the undiscounted cash He R AR BETE
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their AR 1218 A R E
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting AR ERERNERE
is not significant. R o
Contractual payment AR E
Less than
1 year and Between Between
repayable 1 and 2 and Over
on demand 2 years 5 years 5years
1EU0TR
BREREER 12252/ 285528 58 F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BETT BETT BETR
At 31 December 2019 ©2019%12A31R
Deposits received, other EliEe  HtER
payables and accruals HIEREIER 871,928 472,306 5,167 10,803
Borrowings e 2,006,610 1,276,001 2,911,379 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 43,180 9,642 22,887 23,895
Amount due to an intermediate & — & F IIEHR A 7
holding company A 340,268 7,145,635 - -
3,261,986 8,903,584 2,939,433 34,698
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H
Deposits received, other payables 24tk &  E i JEF 30
and accruals BREIER 933,441 473,633 3,310 7,489
Borrowings g 4,736,764 291,462 1,468,413 -
Amount due to an intermediate B — A B ER A A
holding company TIB 43,750 5,238,480 - -
5,713,955 6,003,575 1,471,723 7,489
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

b.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt is calculated as “total borrowings”. Total
capital is calculated as “total equity”, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

6
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6

(CONTINUED)

b. Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a healthy gearing
ratio. The gearing ratios, as calculated by total
borrowings over total shareholders’ equity, are as
follows:

B EE (F)

EXRERER(E)

AEBNRBEEERRR
MERBELEX -BXRBMEL
K (RIEERBRABRRER
REAE) T

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETF T BETT

Total borrowings (excluding amount due {2 & 4% (1~ 6 45 JE (-

to an intermediate holding company) — [E] A AR A

BIKIA)

Amount due to an intermediate holding & — R & =A% A 7

company KIB

5,363,065 6,147,463

6,805,367 5,194,773

Total borrowings (including amount due S E# %8 (R IEEN —[H

to an intermediate holding company) AR A B FRIE)
Total equity gk

Gearing ratio (excluding amount due to EBARBELR (TREERN

12,168,432 11,342,236

10,552,305 10,812,440

an intermediate holding company) — A AR A FIFRIR) 50.8% 56.9%
Gearing ratio (including amount due to EARBELR (BIEESN
an intermediate holding company) — R EER AR FRIE) 115.3% 104.9%

In order to fund the daily operation and the expansion
of the business of the Group, significant amounts
of capital in the form of borrowing or equity, or a
combination of both, is considered to be necessary
in the future. The directors of the Company consider
such funding for the future operation and expansion
will be available as and when required.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments that were measured at fair value at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

()  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

(i) Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

(i)  Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

6

B EE (F)

c. DABEEME

&R 25 HR2019F12A31H
M2018F12A31BE A A B
B EMAEEESBITA - T
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(i)
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(i)
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 HERRERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value estimation (Continued) c. AAEBEM (&)
(i) (Continued) iy (#&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 28 ERE @t

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETR  B®TR  EBTR  BETx

At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31H

Financial assets at fair value through 3272 7 B{EET A E

other comprehensive income 2EKNER B
B
- Non-publicly traded listed - ¥EMEELEM
equity securities BEEH - - 96,647 96,647
Total financial assets UREELE - - 96,647 96,647
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H
Financial assets at fair value BARLBEABRR
through profit or loss MIBEE
— Non-publicly traded fund - FLTEEES
investments HE - 64,700 - 64,700
Financial assets at fair value BRAEESAEMD
through other comprehensive 2EKER
income
- Non-publicly traded listed - ¥EMEELM
equity securities e - - 200,956 200,956
- Listed debt securities with - EEMEM LT
fixed interest rate BB EA 113,334 - - 113,334
Total financial assets PBEELE 113,334 64,700 200,956 378,990
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there A& £2019F12 A31H
were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3. IEFEE - B1H - B2k

N EIR 2 EW EEF
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

C.

Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the

Company’s equity investments in China Huiyuan Juice
Group Limited (“Huiyuan Juice”) of HK$200,956,000
has become non-publicly traded as trading of

shares of Huiyuan Juice has been suspended since

April 2018. Hence, these equity investments were

transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 for the estimation

of fair value as at 31 December 2018.

(i)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the date of the statement of financial
position. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

6
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 BXRARERE(EF)

(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value estimation (Continued) c. DREBEM (&)

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3 (i) FEIRABE/T A
If one or more of the significant inputs is not i —IB K L IHE KNEH A
based on observable market data, the instrument FIRWEER AT B R
is included in Level 3. BRIz EE RlZT

HA| ASE38R -
The following table presents the changes in Level TEREJNEIRTERE
3 instruments for the year ended 31 December £2019%F &2018F 12 A
2019 and 2018. BIBEILEFENEE -
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Opening balance F R 200,956 80,670
Additions hieviN - -
Transfer from level 1 P SE 1 A - 432,000
Disposal of a subsidiary HE— KB A F - (100,453)
Fair value gains on revaluation of BEfRARBEA
financial assets at fair value through B BEEN
profit or loss DREENE - 19,463
Fair value loss on revaluation of financial ZE {HiZ A # BET A
assets at fair value through other Hoth 2 T Y am 09 B 7%
comprehensive income BEEMAREESE (104,309) (231,044)
Exchange difference bE 5 =58 - 320
Closing balance FIRER 96,647 200,956
Total gains for the year included in RBEHRFENEE
income statement for assets held at FARBERHERN
the end of the reporting period, under  F|1542%8 - 25IIH
“Other net gains” [ E fth )5 F1) 45 - 19,783
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6 HBXRERERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value estimation (Continued) c. ARAEBEM (&)

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3 (i) FEIRAH LT A
(Continued) (&

The following table summarises the quantitative TERBMMBBEEIL AL

information about the significant unobservable BEITEMANEAT
inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements. AEEMEME A S
WRILEHR
Range of significant  Relationship of unobservable
Description Fair value at Significant unobservable inputs  unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value
EXTUBERGN TUBEMEN
g RTSIBENARRE EXFTRRFENBAZE BAREEE  BAHBHEAABENBA
2019 2018 2019 2018
019% 20185 0195 20185
HK$000  HK$'000
E8Tr BT
Non-publicly traded listed equity 96,647 200,956 Discount for the lack of 26% 10% The higher the marketability
securities at fair value (Note a) marketability discount, the lower the fair
BARBENKITEE TR RZRBLNTE value
&5 (Ma) nRLEYS AAEE
A
Company specific discount 59% 40% The higher the company specific
attributable to trade halt due to discount, the lower the fair
corporate governance issues value
ReCEERSEMRERLER RAKEREER AABEY
FEECIEhir &
Note: B

a. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company’s equity investments in Huiyuan Juice has
become non-publicly traded as trading of shares of
Huiyuan Juice has been suspended since April 2018.
Hence, these equity investments were transferred from
Level 1 to Level 3 for the estimation of fair value as at

31 December 2018.

a. R E =2018F12A318
IFFEE - BRNERRET
&5 BE2018F4 A R E 1F
BE MARANER
RABRAEAEREE KB
FLETEE-AY R
2018%F12A31H * & fh
AARBE ZERAE
BREEHEIREBBEES
3 °
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iii) Financial instruments in Level 3
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group transferred impairment loss of
HK$189,054,000 from other comprehensive
income into the retained earnings.

The fair value of the following financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying amount:

(i) Loan receivables;

(i) Trade receivables;

(i)  Other receivables;

(iv) Cash and bank deposits;

(v) Deposits received, other payables and
accruals;

(vi)  Borrowings; and

(vi)  Amount due to an intermediate holding
company

The disclosures of the investment properties that
are measured at fair value are set out in Note 18.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements include
a summary of the significant accounting policies used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
The preparation of consolidated financial statements often
requires the use of judgments to select specific accounting
methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.
Furthermore, significant estimates and assumptions
concerning the future may be required in selecting and
applying those methods and policies in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and
judgments on historical experience and various assumptions
that are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates and judgments under
different assumptions or conditions.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following is a review of the more significant assumptions

and estimates, as well as the accounting policies and

BASEE S fhE K F E (&)

T 3O 7 AR B AR

A B R B

AOREABRRLGEE  AR&Ft

BERFZE -

methods used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

a. Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

° Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs; and

° Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

ylﬁﬁF&ET AN E
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7 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

o Investment properties in Shanghai, the PRC (Note
18);

o Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Note 21); and

° Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Note 22).

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer to
the applicable notes.

Estimated impairment of loan and
interest receivables and notes
receivables

The Group recognised 12 months ECL for the loan and
interest receivables due from non-controlling parties,
and note receivables due from an independent third
parties. The Group assessed receivables by individual
basis, based on management’s best estimate of
losses incurred at the reporting date. The amount of
the impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash flow
that are due to the Group and all the cash flows
that the Group expected to receive, discounted at
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected
or being revised downward due to changes in fact
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

7
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

C.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the date of statement of financial position, the
Group undertakes a review to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment of non-financial assets.

Properties, plant and equipment, investment properties
under construction carried at cost, right-of-use
assets and other non-financial assets are reviewed
for impairment losses whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which an asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows. The Group has considered recoverability
of the assets as impairment indication. Reversal of
an impairment provision is recorded as income in
the period when the reversal occurs. Reversal on
impairment loss would be recognised if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
test was carried out. Please refer to notes 17, 18, 20
and 23 for the impairment assessment of properties,
plant and equipment, investment properties under
construction carried at cost, right-of-use assets and
other financial assets respectively.

Depreciation and useful lives of
power plant

Estimation of the useful lives of the Group’s power
plant facilities is based on the Group’s assessment
of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. Management estimates
the useful lives of the power plant facilities, which are
under construction, to be around 30 years. Changes
in the expected level of usage and technological
development could have an impact on the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
and therefore future depreciation charges.
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7 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

d.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Depreciation and useful lives of
power plant (Continued)

The estimated useful lives are reviewed at least each
financial year-end and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limitations on the use of the assets. It
is possible, however, that future results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in the factors
mentioned above.

Estimates for net realisable value of
properties under development

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development according to their net realisable
values based on the realisability of these properties.
Net realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s estimates
of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion (including
land costs). Based on management’s best estimates,
an accumulated impairment loss of HK$77,582,000
(2018: HK$77,582,000) (Note 24) was recognised on
properties under development as at 31 December
2019.

Classification of construction cost
of the project in the Los Angeles, the
United States (the “U.S.”)

The Group currently classifies the construction costs
of the project in the Los Angeles, United States as
properties under development (condominiums for sale)
and investment properties (hotel and shopping mall
for rent out). For the investment properties, the Group
considers to hold the properties for earning fixed
rental income after completion of construction and
commencement of operation.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in Note 38.

Revenue represents rental income, interest income and
dividend income. The amounts of revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

8 WAKRZHESR

ARABNEBXRHR/ARELER - K
RAMB AR EZEBEH N T
38 °

WABREEES KR - M B WS MR
B - FAERBHBASTENT -

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Rental income from investment properties REMENES W E 88,459 96,118

Interest income F Bz 22,164 30,785
Dividend income received from financial assets & Bz A 4 BEGABE R
at fair value through profit or loss and other EMemEB ST EEED

comprehensive income % B 7= 2,404 11,734

113,027 138,637

The senior management comprising executive directors and
the chief financial officer are the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). Management has determined
operating segments for the purposes of allocating resources
and assessing performance.

Segments are managed separately as each business
segment has different business objectives and is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Earnings/(losses) before interest expense and tax (“EBIT/
(LBIT)”) is regarded as segment results in respect of the
Group’s reportable segments as the CODM considers that
this can better reflect the performance of each segment.
EBIT/(LBIT) is used in the Group’s internal financial and
management reporting to monitor business performances.
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8 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Segment information:

8 WARZHENE)

FHER -

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F12731B LEE
Finance
Property  Real estate investment
investment development Energy  and others Total
HERE .
NERE FREHERE EREN REM @it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Segment revenue from external customers B SMFEFE 85 I A 88,459 - - 24,568 113,027
Segment results before other net gains/  EL AR/ (B1E) Al
(losses) PEEE 66,952 (74,650) (34,757) (21,848) (64,303)
Other net gains (Note 9a) HFRE (H359a) - - - 16,437 16,437
EBIT/LBIT) e RBARFH/ (ER) 66,952 (74,650) (34,757) (5,411) (47,866)
Interest expense R X - (2,360) (1,834) (1,872) (6,066)
Loss before tax BRAEE 66,952 (77,010) (36,591) (7,283) (53,932)
Income tax expense MEXm (17,962)
Loss for the year FRER (71,894)
Segment assets PREE 1,344,331 19,747,580 3,477,187 332,972 24,902,070
Deferred income tax assets ERFMEHEE - 11,995 - - 11,995
Total assets EELRE 24,914,065
Segment liabilities PHEE 89,654 1,576,684 187,026 42,039 1,895,403
Borrowings g8 1,080,153 3,413,051 - 869,861 5,363,065
Amount due to an intermediate holding & — & 1R A 7)
company e 375,615 4,820,453 - 1,609,299 6,805,367
Current income tax liabilities mEMGHAR 22,391 - - - 22,391
Deferred income tax liabilities ELmEHAR 211,722 3,812 - - 275,534
Total liabilities BEAS 14,361,760
Depreciation of properties, plant and mE - BERREN
equipment e 584 2,634 1,055 264 4,537
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREAERE 839 6,190 6,064 8,010 21,103
Additions to non-current segment REERBNDEE
assets (Note) (k) 10,808 746,523 17,145 120 774,596
Note: B 5

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions to properties,
plant and equipment, investment properties, prepayments for construction of
power plants and prepayments for property development projects.

RNEFRBOMEERREARAEDE HER
BE REME 2RBEEHENENREMA
RMEHRARWRNA
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8 WARDIER (E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment information: (Continued) TEHER : (E)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE2018512A31A L FE
Finance
Property Real estate investment
investment  development Energy and others Total
) \ FBRE
NERE RFHERZ ENEWI RER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BEFT BETT BT
Segment revenue from external customers R 8 7h 8% P 15 A 96,118 - - 42,519 138,637
Segment results before other net gains/  EfbFE BRI D HEE
(losses) 80,977 (27,648) (18,754) (2,292) 32,283
Other net losses (Note 9a) A FEE (319) - (77,582) (1,219) (7,161) (85,962)
EBIT/(LBIT) MERBARFH/ (ER) 80,977 (105,230) (19,979) (9,453) (53,679)
Income tax expense FEZH (26,243)
Loss for the year FRER (79,922)
Segment assets PHEE 1,485,413 18,239,875 3,498,194 1,011,568 24,235,050
Deferred income tax assets BRFEHEE - 10,585 - - 10,585
Total assets EELE 24,245 635
Segment liabilities PHEE 71,737 1,509,166 169,432 44,682 1,795,017
Borrowings B - 2,269,437 - 3,878,026 6,147,463
Amount due to an intermediate holding B[ —fh EiER AT
company Ege) 874,140 3,424,855 - 895,778 5,194,773
Current income tax liabilties nBMENAR 24,406 = = 2,197 26,603
Deferred income tax liabilities ERMEHER 266,842 2497 - - 269,339
Total liabilities AfEER 13,433,195
Depreciation of properties, plant and NE EERRED
equipment WE 460 763 597 1,207 3,027
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use i & + 4 Jz + (5 F &
rights g 79 - - - 79
Additions to non-current segment assets  REERE S PEE
(Note) (W) 35530 1,037,437 206,108 182 1,279,257
Note: B3

?‘E;H»éﬂ"%ﬁ@@%%ﬁ%% R R
R REME BREETHEOTENREA
RMEHRABWRMNKIA

The additions to non-current segment assets include additions to properties,
plant and equipment, investment properties, prepayments for construction of
power plants and prepayments for property development projects.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment information: (Continued)

Geographical information:

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong, the PRC, the
U.S. and Indonesia. The geographical segment revenue is
presented based on the geographical location of the rental,
interest and dividend income.

Revenue and assets by geographical location are as follows:

WARDEER (&)

TEREFR - (&

I EH -

AEFBXTEREE FHEH XER
ENEEEHET - i sBU A A
T MEREERGENHELER
EW27 -

BB ESDNRAREENT

U.S. Indonesia PRC Hong Kong Total
ES e H BH @t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETrT A%TrT A% Tr BT BT
Revenue A
31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 1,311 11,117 88,756 11,843 113,027
31 December 2018 201812 A31H 2,716 14,581 101,652 19,688 138,637
Total assets BEEHAE
31 December 2019 201912 A31H 19,759,575 3,476,464 1,315,726 362,300 24,914,065
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 18,250,460 3,497,484 1,483,578 1,014,113 24,245,635
Information about major customers: EEETEEFHER -

Revenue of approximately HK$19.3 million (2018:
approximately HK$19.3 million) is derived from one
external customer (2018: HK$19.3 million from one
external customer), which individually amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest income
and dividend income). This revenue is attributable to the
property investment segment and derived from the PRC.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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LOSS BEFORE TAX 9 KFBAIEE

Loss before tax is stated after crediting and charging the MREAIEEE T ARIIKR TFIER -
following:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Crediting A

Fair value gains on revaluation of non-publicly ZEfHIE FHE SR EN A
traded fund investment classified as financial 1Z AR EEFTAB N

assets at fair value through profit or loss BEENRD R EBEFNEG (M

(Note a) iTa) 3,270 -
Net realised gains on disposal of listed debt  HED AT AHMEE K

securities classified as financial asset mHBEEN ETED

through other comprehensive income FrEFERANE (Fsta)

(Note a) 4,128 6,281
Net foreign exchange gains (Note a) HNES B 5% 15 (Bt Fa) 10,197 -
Rental income from investment properties HEYWERS W= 88,459 96,118
Charging 0 ER
Fair value losses on revaluation of financial EMEAREBEFAEBR

assets at fair value through profit or loss NBEEN AR EE

(Note a) &5 18 (P 7Ea) - 630
Impairment loss on properties under BREPYERNRERRIE

development (Note a) (Bt 5Ea) - 77,582
Expected credit losses (Note a) TEHA{= A 1Bk (MY sta) 431 1,219
Net realised losses on disposal of non-publicly HEE FHTESIRENEA

traded fund investments classified as financial &2 7t (EEET A8z 8981

assets at fair value through profit or loss BEEFEE (MFa)

(Note a) 727 _
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EEKAK (BIFEEHSD)

(Note b and 14) (M sEbfk14) 66,327 48,206
Depreciation of properties, plant and W BN RENITE

equipment (Note ¢ and 17) (M sEcK17) 4,537 3,027
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE

(Note d and 20) (Fff sEd %20) 21,103 -
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use 8 & + i } + 0 A HEEY

rights (Note 19) B (M5E19) - 79
Operating lease charges in respect of T AHEBGEFTED

properties not included in the measurement ¥ LR EE A (MizTe)

of lease liabilities (Note e) 2,273 16,903
Auditor’s remuneration % BRAT B

Audit and audit related services B2 R EZEERE 4,284 5,618

Non-audit services EEZRTE 76 1,476
Net foreign exchange losses (Note a) INESE 350 B 18 (M 7Ea) - 12,812
Direct operating expenses arising from EEHCWENREMEE

investment property that generated rental EMEELET D

income 9,258 10,319

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik
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9 LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes:

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Other net gains of HK$16,437,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 represented (i) the net foreign exchange gains
of HK$10,197,000; (ii) the net fair value gains on revaluation of
non-publicly traded fund investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of HK$3,270,000; (iii) the net realised
losses on disposal of non-publicly traded fund investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$727,000;
(iv) the net realised gains on disposal of listed debt securities
classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income of HK$4,128,000; and (v) the expected credit losses on notes
receivable of HK$431,000.

Other net losses of HK$85,962,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 represented (i) the net foreign exchange losses
of HK$12,812,000; (ii) the impairment loss on properties under
development of HK$77,582,000; (i) the expected credit losses on
loan and interest receivables of HK$1,219,000; and (iv) the net fair
value losses on revaluation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$630,000; net of (v) the net realised gains on
disposal of listed debt securities classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of HK$6,281,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, staff costs amounting to
HK$15,503,000 (2018: HK$50,592,000), HK$8,657,000 (2018:
HK$11,844,000) and nil (2018: HK$2,708,000) were capitalised into
properties under development, investment properties and properties,
plant and equipment respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation charges
amounting to HK$618,000 (2018: HK$2,629,000), HK$352,000
(2018: HK$321,000) and nil (2018: HK$492,000) were capitalised into
properties under development, investment properties and properties,
plant and equipment respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation of right-of-use
assets amounting to HK$2,672,000 (2018: nil) and HK$1,523,000
(2018: nil) were capitalised into properties under development and
investment properties respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, operating lease charges
amounting to HK$3,631,000 (2018: HK$7,910,000), HK$2,069,000
(2018: HK$1,896,000) and nil (2018: HK$3,671,000) were capitalised
into properties under development, investment properties and
properties, plant and equipment respectively.

9

BB E B (&)

MisE

HE2019F12A318 L FEMH M F
F15 75 #16,437,0007T A (i) N B [ 5%
F 18 76 #10,197,0007T ¢ (i)E fH 3F -
MESEESPERE AR EBEET AR
SNV BEEN AR BAEFINEEY
3,270,0007C : (i) EFLMESIRE
DEABRDABESFABZENVBE
BRI RE727,0007 ¢ (VHEE D
BEAREBEFTAEMEEA RSN
BEEMEMEEELFNFREANE
75 #4,128,0007T + R (v)E K ZE & A
Hi{z A8 K BB 431,0007T ©

H E2018F12A31H L FE M H %
518 75 #585,962,0007T A (i) 71 B (& =%
#5485 #12,812,0007C ¢ (iNEEF ¥
00 R (B 5 18 78 77,582,000 ¢ (i)
BREREMENEHERBREY
1,219,0007T : K(v)E HIZ A i BERT
ANEEMPBEEN AR BEFER
7 #£630,0007T ¢ B WLE 5B A%Z
”M“ﬁﬁ)\ﬁtﬁﬁ%m&z SHB A
ENLITEEESFNFERINEEE
6,281,0007T °

HZE2019F12A31A L FEWMESE
B 7N 7% #515,503,0007T (20184 « &
#50,592,0007T) - 7 #8,657,0007C
(20184 : #%11,844,0007T) & /5
T3 (20184 : B #2,708,0007T) B 2
FIERERBERBPYE - REWEN
PEIE R T

HE2019F12A31A L EEMFTE
& F 75 #618,0007T (20184 : B #&
2,629,0007T) - 7% #352,0007T (2018
F - B¥321,0007T) RABEEZT T (2018
F : 7 #492,0007T) B 5 Bl E AR
BRAYE REMEURDE -
BREE -

H E2019F12A310 L FE R F A #E
BEEREE2,672,0007T (20184 :
T 1) & #1,523,0007T (20184 « &
T)EDRERERERPYERIZE
ZE

HZE2019F12A31A L FEHKE
T E & /A5 %3,631,000T (20184 :
75 #7,910,0007T) * 7 #2,069,0007T
(20184 : }##1,896,0007T) RS Z
7T (20184 : 13,671,000 7T) B2
BIERERERERYE - REWEN
R - HeEs KR -



10

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10 FiBE¥ixx

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Current income tax

— Charge for the year 6,583 14,679
Deferred income tax charge (Note 28) RIEFTIS T (H7E28)

— Charge for the year 7,055 6,202

— Write-off of deferred income tax assets —MEREMSHEE 4,324 5,362

17,962 06,243

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at a standard rate of 25% for the

year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 25%).

No U.S. Federal or State Income Tax was provided for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the Group

had no estimated assessable profits.

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the Group had no

estimated assessable profits.

HE2019F12A31H L FE - K&
| 7 B A PR B ) ZR AR AR AE B K
25% (2018%F : 25% ) BB EFTB
1 e

#H Z=20194 K2018F12A31H 1k
FE - BARASEENEREIL &M
FE SRR R - ik 3 A 3t 2 B B D sk
MPT1SBIET IR B -

H E2019%F M2018%FE12A318 1
FE BRASBERBBLEMG
FERBFE - iR mp B EFEH
ETIREME o
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10 FRBHZH (&)

The differences between the Group’s expected tax charges FR AEEZREHWHETENTE
calculated at the domestic rates and the Group’s tax charge HARL TR f S B AR R B A B IE B 2 Y
for the years are as follows: ERENT
2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

Loss before tax M RTE 1B (53,932) (53,679)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates REAREEERFED

applicable to the profits in the countries B R EANRIE

concerned (14,334) (7,821)
Income not subject to tax B R (10,218) (11,390)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AAER R T 18 A& HY

L3 9,526 14,872

Tax losses not recognised RIETR R IE B 18 28,664 25,220
Write-off of deferred income tax assets MR BT E & 4,324 5,362
Total tax charge 18 2 4258 17,962 26,243
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 26.6% (2018: EA R i FH{E A26.6% (2018
14.6%). The tax rate changes from year to year due to F:14.6%) - BEMNIRFEH RN
changes in the mix of the taxable results of the individual REEETEBARMERTEE
Group companies. LL 2 E -
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INTEREST EXPENSE

e B HmR MR ()

11 FEEX

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Interest expense on borrowings BEZFEBMAX 852,551 602,372
Interest expense on lease liabilities HMEABECNERX 6,461 -
Total interest expense M ERT R 859,012 602,372

Less: capitalised on qualifying assets

B REBEREERERL (852,946) (602,372)

6,066 -
Interest expense has been capitalised at a rate of 1.8% - FMERZTETF1.8%E12.0%
12.0% (2018: 1.8% - 9.5%) per annum on qualifying assets. (2018%F : 1.8%%9.5% ) Z L X
GEWREBEEFERL -
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 12 BREXREBESSE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss FIRERNEERITIIEE RN TREE
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the HEERBRIAFAR T EERAM
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during EEHHETE o
the year.
2019 2018
20194 20184
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 T mAR A e
shares in issue T & 16,142,653,060 16,142,653,060
Loss attributable to shareholders of the 7K~ T R% 5 fE15 B 1B
Company (HK$’000) GBEETIT) (58,044) (48,840)
Basic loss per share attributable to AR IR L B AR AR
shareholders of the Company B 18 (BB L)
(HK cent per share) (0.36) (0.30)

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

207



208

12 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
(CONTINUED)

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares are only
derived from the convertible notes. In calculating the dilutive
loss per share, the convertible notes are assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net loss is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expense, exchange gains
on debt component and the fair value gains on embedded
financial derivatives less the tax effect, if applicable.

12

BREARBEEE (&)

BREEEEVEBRRABLE
E#ErENTARCESR 1M
7 BB AT N E B A 0 S BGET
B-ARAABGCEHBYENT R
FRRBARKRER - R EEK
BHEEBERN BRRURBRERECH
BREBEK  WRBFERNAG R
MBS - BB AR D K A
BERAAFBITETANRAE
EME - WNEREZE (Em) -

2019 2018
20194 20184

Loss attributable to shareholders of the 7N/ &) i% 5 JfE {5 B 18
Company (HK$’000) (BE®FIT) (58,044) (48,840)

Weighted average number of ordinary £ 317 & 8 IR &) in e

shares in issue T8
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares /% 7r # & & @ik ) 5 &
- convertible notes — AR ER

16,142,653,060  16,142,653,060

845,070,422 11,576,307

Weighted average number of ordinary IR E T G REEEIED

shares for diluted loss per share 57 A% B N HE 9 B

16,987,723,482 16,154,229,367

No adjustment has been made to basic loss per share
presented for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
in respect of a dilution as the impact of convertible notes
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share.

13 DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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14 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

15

14 EEREX (BRESH)

EMOLUMENTS)
Staff costs recognised during the year is as follows: RNERNEZHNEERALDT -
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Wages and salaries TERHS 80,115 97,093
Pension costs RIRE A 3,479 5,194
Other allowances and benefits H i ERE M AE A 6,893 11,063
Total staff costs (including directors’ EERAAE (BEES
emoluments (Note 16)) B < (Bi5E16)) 90,487 113,350

Less: amount capitalised into properties
under development, investment properties
and properties, plant and equipment

W RBERPME - RE
VIEARE - HeS R
REFPBRAELAN SR (24,160) (65,144)

66,327 48,206

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group provides retirement benefits mainly to employees

in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.

The Group has two defined contribution schemes for all

qualified employees in Hong Kong.

15 RKE R TS

AEBTEREE TEHEXEN
BB HRKER

AN
=]

o
\

m
S5

\

AEESEBAERBERE
P {8 57 E 1 KA B

o

Hong Kong employees who commenced employment
before 1 September 2000 are members of the first
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the first
defined contribution scheme are held separately
under a provident fund managed by an independent
trustee. Pursuant to the rules of the scheme, the
employers and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme calculated at 5%
of the employees’ basic salaries on a monthly basis.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employers’
contributions and accrued interest after 10 years of
service, or at an increasing scale ranging from 20% to
90% after completion of 2 to 9 years of service.

a. M2000F9A1HAE ZEN
BEXEE RE @R TE K
ZWKE - BEREH-RETE
MEEHRBIEIAEENR
2 DHRE - RIBZFTEIN
HE BEREBEASAEA
Mt EEEHEREER
RN 5% H K - & B AR
EM105F 12 - B EIF100%
B fE £ HARERERFE - 3K
R M2E Z9F A - £20%
FO0%H) IE 15 18 fZ LS 3K -
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15 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(CONTINUED)

When there are employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, in accordance
with the rules of the scheme, the forfeited employers’
contributions arising from members terminating
employment before becoming fully vested are allocated
to the benefit of the remaining members instead of
being used to reduce the future contributions of the
employers.

b.  All qualified Hong Kong employees who commenced
employment on or after 1 September 2000 are
members of the second defined contribution scheme
which has been set up in accordance with the
guidelines of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Both the employers and employees
contribute 5% of relevant income (limited to HK$1,500)
to the scheme each month. The assets of the second
defined contribution scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group has participated in the 401(k) scheme covering
all of its eligible employees in the U.S. Employees who
participate in the plan may defer a portion of their
compensation on a pre-income tax basis up to a limit
specified by law. The Group’s only contribution to the plan
is based on each eligible employee matching 100% of
deferral up to the first 4% of compensation.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

a.

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments comprised the payments to
directors of the Company by the Group in connection

with the management of the affairs of the Group. The

iR e B S R R R (4

==
=]
=

16 EERSREEAENE

a. EEME

EEMe B AKRENEE
AEBEHEMAARNRBES
SASERIA AR R E EH) B

emoluments of the directors of the Company are as g I N
follows:
Basic salaries,
allowances Provident  Inducement or
and benefits-  Discretionary fund  compensation Total
Name of director Director’s fees in-kind bonuses  contributions fees  emoluments
EAEM 28

.2 Eznd RENKE G g AREHF RRARE Hess

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI BETR BRI ARTR ARt
Executive Directors yi7Es
Han Xiaosheng (1244 BRI - 792 - 40 - 832
LiuBing &k - - - - - -
Liu Hongwel L - - - - - -
Zhang Xifang REF - - - - - -
Liu Guosheng Y& - - - - - -
Non-executive Directors ~ FH{72%
Zhao Yingwei © B - - - - - -
ZHANG Fubiao © Ko - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BYF#H7ES

Directors

Liu Jipeng @ 8 e 200 - - - - 200
Cai Hongping BYTO 82 - - - - 82
Yan Faghan @ BkEe 200 - - - - 200
Lo Wa Kei Roy @® EER00 200 - - - - 200
2019 total 2019585 662 792 - 40 - 1,514
Notes ek :
(1) Chief Executive Officer (1) wEH
(2)  Member of the Remuneration Committee 2 FMEEEXE
3) Member of the Audit Committee (3) BEZEZBEEKE
(4)  Member of the Nomination Committee (4) REBEEZEGKE
(5) Resigned with effect from 31 May 2019 (5) H20194F5A31H B §H (T
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S mRME (&)

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no directors of the Company waived or agreed to

waive any emoluments.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EEREREEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEM < (&)
Basic salaries,
allowances Provident  Inducement or
and benefits- Discretionary fund  compensation Total
Name of director Director’s fees in-kind bonuses contributions fees emoluments
EREH M
E5f4 EE3iE) RENNE BMERL  DBEEER  RBIEE Hees
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BB BB BETT
Executive Directors yrEE
Han Xiaosheng (12 B 1B 0l - - - - - -
LiuBing &k - - - - - -
Liu Hongwei e - - - - - -
Zhang Xifang FE% - - - - - -
Liu Guosheng HEH - - - - - -
Non-gxecutive Directors ~ ¥#7E%
Zhao Yingwei © jLEt L] - - - - - -
ZHANG Fubiao © KRS - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEES
Directors
Liu Jipeng @ 81 e 200 - - - - 200
Cai Hongping ® pgued 200 - - - - 200
Yan Fashan @ Bng0m 200 - - - - 200
Lo Wa Kei Roy ® EEZE0 200 - - - - 200
2018 total 018F @5t 800 - - - - 800
Notes: B & -
(1) Chief Executive Officer (1) K
(2)  Member of the Remuneration Committee (2 FMEEEKE
(3)  Member of the Audit Committee @) HwERZEgKE
4) Member of the Nomination Committee @) REZEEKE
(5)  Appointed with effect from 29 March 2018 (5) H2018F3 29 B E LT

R E E20194F K20184F12A
SIHLEFE WEAXRXRRE
EHWKEE R WM -



16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

e B HmR MR ()

16 EERSREEAENE

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
b. Five highest paid individuals b. EuGEMEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the ERAFEAEEMESHZSH

highest in the Group for the year include no (2018: no)
director. The emoluments payable to the five (2018:
five) individuals for the year are as follows:

AL ALTH - WEEE (2018
FE) RNAFERNTZ
hfz (2018%F : AfiL) AT H
M&mT

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T

Basic salaries, allowances and HEAFHE  ZHREY
benefits-in-kind g 13,056 12,454
Discretionary bonuses (SRR 488 432
Provident fund contributions NIEDHER 445 441
13,989 13,327

The emoluments of the five (2018: five) individuals
with the highest emoluments for the year fall within the

following bands:

Emolument bands

MewEE

AFEERSMEMALTH |
fiZ (20184 : B A1) A L HY A
BN THEENEE -

Number of individuals

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
< HK$2,000,000

75 13,500,001 7T £ 7 #4,000,0007C
75 13,000,001 7T £ 7 #3,500,0007C
75 #2,500,001 7T £ 7 #3,000,0007C
752,000,001 78 2 7% ¥2,500,0007T
7 #2,000,0007T A T

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

AE

2019 2018

20195 20184

1 1

1 _

1 1

2 3
R E E22019F &2018F12 A

SIALEFE ASEHER
AARIERESZEKAMES
B e AT EEB e EA
W S| E A0 BE A & B skl A AR
SERAREISIERBEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e M wRMEE ()

17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% #ERRBE
Furniture,
Freehold  Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
XA & KA Er

*Eid ERIR £F  NREB  RERRAK neE it
HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
BT BBTn ERTr BRTn ERTn ERIn BRix

Cost A&
At 1 January 2019, previously R2019E1A18 41,88 2,781,293 21,667 12,204 12,682 515 2,874,880
reported (na2%)

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 5) REZENERS - (225) - - - - (225)
85168 (M 3£5)

At 1 January 2019, as restated 1201951A18 41,88 2,781,068 21,667 12,204 12,682 5125 2,874,655
(@z5)

Exchange translation differences EREE (241) (16,006) (231) ) 59 (31) (16,493)

Addtions AE - 14,431 5 504 1,161 - 16,149

Disposals and write-off HERMH - - - (742) 217 (1,819) 2,mm)

At 31 December 2019 12019512F 318 4,648 2,779,493 21,489 11,943 13,685 3280 2,871,540

Accumulated depreciation and i EREE

impairment

M1 January 2019 #2019%1 A 1H - - 2,753 8,045 7,007 3,240 2,145
Exchange translaton differences Bz - - (58 ] (31) (22) (116)
Charge for the year (Note 9) EEME(HH0) - - 1,083 1,383 2,386 655 5,507
Disposals and write-off HE R - - - (353) (194) (1,527) (2,074)
AS! Decemogr 2019~ ROtOFRASR - - et S 008 oM 2462
Net book value BAFE

At 31 December 2019 120195125318 41648 2779493 17,708 2676 3617 96 2,846,018
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y% > HENRKRE (E)
(CONTINUED)

Fumiture,
Freehold ~ Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land inprogress Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles Total
KA BE KA EE
SETH  HEIR BT  WERE  KERRG HE 3

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKS'000
A¥TT  EBTR  BBTR BBTR BRTR BRI BRIR

Cost A

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1A 41,804 2,675,383 19,245 12,230 12,854 5,236 2,766,752
Exchange translation differences EREE 85 5,416 (360) (14) (96) (26) 5,005
Additions NE - 100,494 - 8 810 484 101,796
Transfer (Note 18) EE (I 18a) - - 2,782 - - - 2782
Disposals and write-off HE R - - - - (886) (569) (1,455)
At 31 December 2018 H2018%12831R H889 2,781,203 21,667 12,004 12,682 515 2874880

Accumulated depreciationand BT ER A

impairment

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1A - S 1,788 5,967 6,565 3,022 17,332

Exchange translation differences ELEE S - (61) 26) (%) (31) (214)

Charge for the year (Note 9) EENE(M30) = = 1026 2,314 2,311 818 6,469

Disposals and write-off & R = = = = 879) (569) (1,44)

e ROSF12ASIH - S L 2 L O S 221
Net book value BEFE

At 31 December 2018 R2018% 12318 41,889 2,781,293 18,914 3,979 4775 1,885 2,862,735

The net book value of construction in progress consists of FRIENEHFEBRAEEEASE
an amount of relating to the Group’s power plant located in EURHENTEREEEHRN SR °
Indonesia, which is currently under construction which will M KRR RAIHER  HEE

be depreciated once the property is complete and available BIE -

for use.
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17 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The management performed impairment assessment on the
construction in progress at the end of the reporting period.
The recoverable amounts of construction in progress are
determined from value in use calculation of the power plant
located in Indonesia based on cash flow projection, followed
by management’s estimation on future business and
expected completion of construction. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, no impairment losses were recognised.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the recoverable amount of construction in progress are the
discount rate. If the discount rate is 0.5% higher or lower,
the recoverable amount would decrease or increase by
HK$211,000,000. The change in discount rate of 0.5%
would not result in any recognition or reversal of impairment
loss.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the recoverable of
the construction in progress as it is unlikely that the change
in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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RBEHR EEEBEHAERER
EHDRER G - E2IBE A =
@%EB?ZZIEimﬁE\ E'Jqu:1iEAEﬂh-é
MNEEHNEREE RAEEHE
BEMFARKEBLEHRTIER
B ETF o R20194F K2018412 A
318 WEERRBERE -

AT SRS RRIERE B RE
) FERR S IR A s Z1(b if i
ER) - B RFETA MR TE -

ﬁ&i&@ﬁ%ﬂﬂz@@%ﬁ%i%%

EREBMERE  WITRELASRT
[% 0.5% » A] Uk (0] & 5B A5 % 2 38 hn sk
#9056 # 211,000,000 T © B IR R
W 0.5% T & EHERTMREER
Sk [a] B o

FEN A EOGRENED T A B AR
REZIEAJKRESENERZL -
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e B HmR MR ()

18 REMWH

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
=534 &
REME REWME wat
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T BB T T
Valuation/cost IR %N
At 1 January 2019, previously R2019%F1 81H 1,241,449 3,171,622 4,413,071
reported (N 2%R)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 5) KAB BV BREE - 251 251
A% 165% (Mt5E5)
At 1 January 2019, as restated 201951 H1H 1,241,449 3,171,873 4,413,322
(sg=5)
Additions NE
- Acquisitions — Ui 10,234 - 10,234
- Subsequent expenditure —HEITH - 751,929 751,929
Exchange translation differences EH =% (27,381) (20,982) (48,363)
At 31 December 2019 M201956F12 4311 1,224,302 3,902,820 5,127,122
At 1 January 2018 7R2018%F1 A1H 1,270,243 2,130,230 3,400,473
Additions NE
- Acquisitions — B 34,881 = 34,881
- Subsequent expenditure — HBYL Y = 1,037,039 1,037,039
Transfer (Note a) R (ffsEa) (3,929) - (3,929)
Exchange translation differences fE N E5 (59,746) 4,353 (55,399)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12/31H 1,241,449 3,171,622 4,413,071

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik
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e B HmR MR (&)

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18 REWEE (E)

The Group’s investment properties comprise:

AEBRKEMEBRE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’ 000

BET T BT T

Shanghai, the PRC — Office units (Note b) PR LB AEEM 1,224,302 1,241,449
(Pt 5Eb)
Los Angeles, the U.S. — Commercial FERCH-BEREE 3,902,820 3,171,622
properties under development (Note c) Y% (fi5Fc)
5,127,122 4,413,071
Notes: 5T -
a. Certain premises held by the Group previously classified as investment a. HERAEEMBENETEMAZR

properties were reclassified to properties, plant and equipment (note
17) of HK$2,782,000 and leasehold land and land use rights (note
19) of HK$1,147,000 as there was a change in use from held to earn
rentals to held for the Group’s own use during the year ended 31
December 2018.

b. The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for
investment properties. These fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to
valuation techniques used.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

b. (Continued)

Quoted
prices

in active
markets for

18 REWXE (&)
P 5 ()

b. (&)

Significant
other Significant

identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Fair value hierarchy Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EEN
HEEE HMEEN FHBE
EERWES L TBRERSEHN ZEET: LN
HRE WS s
AREEZER R H24 HE38 st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T B TFT BT T
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12A31H
Office units — PRC WAEEAL — F - - 1,224,302 1,224,302
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H
Office units - PRC MAZEA — P - - 1,241,449 1,241,449

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers into/out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

As at 31 December 2019, the office units in the PRC have been
valued by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, professional valuers. The fair
value of the investment properties was determined based on, amongst
other factors, comparable market transactions, rental income from
current leases and assumptions about rental income from future
leases in the light of current market conditions.

The valuations are derived using the income capitalisation method.
This method is based on the capitalisation of net income with due
allowance for outgoings and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from analysis of
sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor
requirements or expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in
the valuation are referenced to valuers’ view of recent lettings, within
the subject properties and other comparable properties.

REE2019F12A318 EFE + $1
& - MR EI 2 A EET (2018
F ) c AEENEBCR AN A3
EBENEGRRRAKREERD AR
AABESHENEA EHE -

R2019F12A318 » F B A EEAL
HEEHEMBERITERARET
HE-REVENRAREBEDER (B
FEMAR) ThRAOTSERS - KE
BAEROOHES W RIRBITHRE
BRERERBAONASKRSINBEE

=

TE °

HERKRBERMCTIEEE - W77 0%
TIAWEFEERMEREE  RAE
AERMEE @EmAIHRERK
BEENELHE  ERECERTI2E
HEBEXGNA M RGEMEREE
BETHERAHEHREE - AE
FERAMRTHEESE2ZHERM
HEEREGAENEATIHAED
BR-

FiZERAERAT 2019F Fik

219



18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

BieE : (48)

18 REWE (&)

(Continued)

For the investment properties in Los Angeles, they are still in the
course of construction or development at the end of the reporting
period and fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time, and
therefore are stated at cost. The management performed impairment
assessment at the end of reporting period and estimated the
value in use based on cash flow projection, followed by estimation
of management on future business and expected completion of
construction. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no impairment
losses were recognised for the investment properties in Los Angeles.

Information about fair value measurements on office units in the PRC
based on Level 3 fair value hierarchy:

b.

(%)

MREEZHENEENERTE  EHRE
HARMAEKR I ERES - Toen &t
EERONAREBE BB LKA
B-ERERBEHARRA S REA
TEEFEREBEDRETG Rk
HHEEEGFRRER BHET
EBKREERERET - R2019F &
2018F12A318 « W E B AL R IE 2B
ML E Y E SRR EEE -

BRATREBAZEEMIBEEIMALE

BERHEA L BEHEH -

Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable Range of significant unobservable inputs
Description Fair value at technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRAEH
EATUERE EXFTTRERSEMN WABBEAR
it RTFIRHHAREE HERI FENBARE BAYEEE BENBR
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BEFT
Harbour Ring Plaza 951,813 972,833 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 7.0% 7.0% The higher the
EEES method BERLE capitalisation rate,
&SN (@7 the lower the fair
value
BRLERR -
AR BEMLE
Rental rate RMB170-240/  RMB170-240/ The higher the rental
Hex month/sq.m. month/sq.m.  rate, the higher the
EYE*8A SY¥AREA  fairvalue
AE®170T  AR¥170m Bekds -
F2407C F240r  AnBEEHES
Harbour Ring Huangpu 272,489 268,616 Income capitalisation Capitalisation Rate 7.0% 7.0% The higher the
Centre method YN[ capitalisation rate,
BEEERO s B A% the lower the fair
value
BAbEdR
AR BEBE
Rental rate RMB95-220/ RMB95-220/ The higher the rental
Hex month/sq.m. month/sq.m.  rate, the higher the
BFpkER  BFHXKEBAR fairvalue
AR¥95TZ ARBBTE HexHs-
2207% 220t ARBEEHS

The investment properties in the U.S. are under construction and their
fair value is not reliably measureable due to significant uncertainty
as to its future cash flows. Accordingly, the investment properties
are carried at cost. The fair value is expected to become reliably
measureable when the construction is completed which is expected
to take place in or before 2022.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

URXENEEZRENENAAEE
mET R E RRASEBERS
MEBFEERTHEM - Bt %%
REMERKAIE - RAEBEEAD
AR R RR TE B (T8 H1 R 20224F 3k 2 Al
EE)RBRFEHGE -



19 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 19

20

RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights

represent prepaid operating lease payments in the PRC.

ME Lt R+ b fE A

AEEREEL R THERED
R ANTENAEMNLEHENRR -

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Net book value

AR FE

At 1 January, previously reported M1 A1B (AT 2 ) 2,291 1,359
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note) (Note 5) RAEBV B mELER

E165% (FsE) (MH5E5) (2,291) -
At 1 January, as restated M1A18 (BEF) - 1,359
Transfer (Note 18a) s (fffsE18a) - 1,147
Exchange translation differences [+ =% - (136)
Amortisation (Note 9) 5 (M 3E9) - (79)
At 31 December M12H31H - 2,291

Note:

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments is reclassified as right-of-use

assets at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

LEASES

20

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without

restatement of comparative figures.

The explanation of the transitional requirements that were
applied as at 1 January 2019 is set out in Notes 2a and
5 while the accounting policies applied subsequent to 1
January 2019, the date of initial application, are set out in

Note 4q(A).

GEE

TEA R & T 30 BR (B A W0 40 FE R &8 B 15 4R
SHRAF16HE ARSI D RAERAREE -

HE

&8 B S B FE 1658 5 20194F
11 BERR  TESY|HRET -

MR2019F1 A1 B R AN BEE TR T
B 54 B &R M E2a 5 0 M 72019
FIAIBEZBRAMNGTTEE - ¥
YA FE A B BB RIS A B 5E4q (A) ©
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i 6 B A6 3R R T ()

20 LEASES (CONTINUED)

20

Nature of leasing activities (in the
capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. No lease contracts in any
jurisdictions require lease payments to increase each
year by inflation or and in others to be reset periodically
to market rental rates that would cause variability. In all
jurisdictions property leases the periodic rent is (i) either
fixed over the lease term; or (ii) variable that does not
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at commencement date.

a.

Right-of-use assets

HE (&)

HEREMEE (BUEM
A& 1)

AEERNEQEMEMNRDARRE
EZEYME -NEMBNEER
BEHEANBERHENREFRRE
B MR MG - MR E A RDEE R
AEHEREEEMHHEEKF -
RETERZAER MEREENES
A0 TEBA B E A Sk(i)EEE
WIEHURMNIEH A E - MEEH R
ERRFLE B RO ESEARGE -

a. EABEE

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
12A31H 1H1H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
— Properties leased for own use, - HEERANEEEDX
carried at depreciated cost LI ER AT BR 61,547 79,678
- Ownership interests in leasehold — HETHWNETNER
land and buildings, carried at R HEEX
depreciated cost with remaining RHIER - A THEH
lease term of 50 years or more B50F A £ 2,150 2,291
63,697 81,969
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20 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

20 HE (&)
a. FHEEE (&)

HK$’000

BT T
At 1 January 2019, previously reported R2019%F1A18 (0 28) -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 5) KABEMBmEERFE16% 81,969

(FF#E5)

At 1 January 2019, as restated P2019F1 A1 (KE5H) 81,969
Additions NE 8,391
Modification &k (1,108)
Depreciation expense for the year FRFEMAL (25,298)
Exchange differences M =58 (257)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H 63,697

The management assessed the recoverability of
right-of-use assets. The management performed
impairment assessment at the end of reporting period
and estimated recoverable amounts of right-of-use
assets from value in use calculation of respective
cash generating units (“CGUs”) based on cash flow
projection, followed by estimation of management
on future business and expected completion of
construction. As at 1 January 2019 and 31 December

2019, no impairment losses were recognised.

EEELHAERAREENR
WERE - RBEMR - R
B 1FHBERT (4 - (ARHE R
BENAYOSERRESRE
AFFERERSEXERN (]
THEKEM]) WEREER A
BEBREEEMGIRERD
AR TEFRREREE - 1
201941 A1H k20194 12H
B1H - WEMHERRMERIE -
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e B HmR MR (&)

A

20 LEASES (CONTINUED)

20 M= (&)

b. Lease liabilities b. HE&S®E
HK$’000
BET T
At 1 January 2019, previously reported R2019%1 A18 (A2 #) -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 5) RASBYBREERFE165 92,063
(Bt3E5)
At 1 January 2019, as restated R2019%1 A18 (&LE75) 92,063
Additions NE 8,391
Modification 1B (1,444)
Interest expense for the year FRFHEMAZ 6,461
Payment for the year FAREK (22,134)
Exchange differences M 5, = 28 (506)
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12 A31H 82,831
As at
31 December
2019
H2019%F
12A81H
HK$’000
BETT
The present value of future lease payments are RKRFEEMNFIBESNAE -
analysed as:
— Current portion — REE D 38,125
— Non-current portion — ERBE D 44,706
82,831
For the
year ended
31 December
2019
B E2019%F
12A31HLLFE
HK$’000
BT T
— Short term lease expense — EHEERMX B 559
— Expense relating to variable lease payments — T AHEEGHENZ
not included in the measurement of lease PFHEMHAX
liabilities 7,414
Total operating lease charges in respect of TEFAHEBEFENMEL
properties not included in the measurement of EHEBRBE
lease liabilities 7,973
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e B HmR MR ()

20 LEASES (CONTINUED) 20 HE (&)
b. Lease liabilities (Continued) b. HERE (&
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRMENRZ BB RO
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
EERHEENN FE RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
AT T BB T BT
At 31 December 2019 20195128318
Not later than one year TER—F 43,180 (5,055) 38,125
Later than one year and BR—FETER
not later than five years HEF 32,529 (8,947) 23,582
Later than five years BRAF 23,895 (2,771) 21,124
99,604 (16,773) 82,831
At 1 January 2019 (Note) H2019F1 18 (fisE)
Not later than one year TER—F 22,495 (5,181) 17,314
Later than one year and ER—FETENTESF
not later than five years 62,639 (13,086) 49,553
Later than five years ERRF 29,756 (4,560) 25,196
114,890 (22,827) 92,063
Note: B 3
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect NEBYIRERESMERELERE
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to 165% - WA RAXEERCHER
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously 2019F1 A1 V&t LLIER
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. No comparative HREEBSSHENFI7THIEARK
information as at 31 December 2018 is set out as the Group did not LHENHERBASEAE - R2018
have any finance leases as at 31 December 2018. Further details in F1I2AMB B ER L EEHT - A
relation to the transition are set out in Note 5. RANE BR2018F 12 A31 A I & T W
MERE - ERBENE—PFBER
M FES o
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e B HmR MR (&)

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21 BAAREBEFAREMEZEH
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE W= KEE
INCOME

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T
Listed debt securities THEBES

— Overseas (note i) — g5 (B &Ei) - 113,334

Non-publicly traded listed equity securities FEMEBEE FREFES
- Hong Kong (Note ii) — &5 (H5F) 96,647 200,956
96,647 314,290

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the listed debt securities
were fully disposed of and the balance was nil as at 31 December
2019. The net realised gains on disposal was HK$4,128,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (note 9a).

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company’s equity
investments in Huiyuan Juice has become non-publicly traded as
trading of shares of Huiyuan Juice has been suspended since April
2018. Hence, these equity investments were transferred from listed
equity securities to unlisted equity securities as at 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 7.49% of the total equity
interest of Huiyuan Juice (2018: 7.49%).

The financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are denominated in the following

GEE

(i) HE2019F12A3IALFE - EHE
BEHBEZELE & BRNR2019F
12A318 AT - H £2019F128318
1EF [Z 8% 2 35 5115 R B 4,128,000
7t (Mi3k9a) °

(ii) NE E2018F12A31HILFE © A
RETR R TR D B52018F 48 R E (=
BE  MARARERRETHRAE
BEKABIFLETEE - At - 42018
F12A318 - ZERAKEBEEA L™
REBLFEREZHELETREES R
20194 12A310  AEE#E B ER
RIT7.49%H) IR A #E 25 (2018F
7.49%) °

BAnBEFAREMEE RSN
BEENTIEEEE

currency:
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
us$ ET - 113,334
HK$ B 96,647 200,956
96,647 314,290
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22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22 BAREBEFTAEBRZNE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BEE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Non-publicly traded fund investments FEMEBESKRE
- Overseas (note) — BN (P EE) - 64,700
Note: P 3E -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the non-publicly fund investments
were fully disposed of and the balance was nil as at 31 December 2019. The
net fair value gains on revaluation and net realised losses on disposal for
the year ended 31 December 2019 were HK$3,270,000 and HK$727,000
respectively (note 9a). The net fair value losses on revaluation for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$630,000 (note 9a).

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in US$.

B E2019F12A31A LG E - LMESE
BEDE2HHE  R20195F12A31BHMHE A
T o HE20190F12A3 AL FEEFNAA
BEFREMNEENERFIBRDR ABE
3,270,0007T A 7 #727,0007T (Mf 5£9a) ° &
ZE2018F12A81B LFESEHFAAEMEIE
2k B #630,0007T (KfiE9a) -

BEFABZNUMBEEMN
18

Ei2/N
7T
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E&;t
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23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

23 BE FANREBEREME

RECEIVABLES QL]
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Non-current portion FREE D
Prepayments for construction of power 3 % % % 7 & 78 {4 3% 18
plants (Note a and 36e and 36h) (P} 7Ea ke 36e5.36h) 332,957 327,141
Loan and interest receivables from FEU — B AT ENE
shareholders of a subsidiary S F B (M sEb K% 36h)
(Note b and 36h)
- Shanghai Electric Power — LBENEREREE
Construction Co., Ltd. (‘SEPC") A& ([SEPC]) 4,115 4,139
— PT. Garda Sayap Garuda (“GSG”) — PT. Garda Sayap
Garuda ([GSG ) 271,074 261,598
Prepaid insurance for property MEZEEANEMRE
development project - 12,644
Note receivables (Note c) FE W ZE % (B se) 168,437 -
Others Hip 9,618 18,583
Total non-current portion FFREI DA 786,201 624,105
Current portion RETH D
Prepaid insurance B RE 28,775 35,377
Prepaid loan interest BRERFE 32,916 -
Other interest receivables (Note c¢) H b e W R B (B 5Fc) 637 6,914
Amounts due from related parties JiE U B8 Bt 5 3k 18 (B 5E36h)
(Note 36h) 12,502 12,070
Others Hib 28,413 19,143
Total current portion i B & o A ST 103,243 73,504
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23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

The balance mainly represents progress payments made to SEPC, a
non-controlling shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
and its subsidiary, PT. Shanghai Electric Power Construction (“PT.
SEPC”), for the procurement and installation of equipment and
machineries for the Group’s power plant projects in Indonesia.

The management performed future utilisability assessment of
prepayments for construction of power plants. It is determined from (1)
confirmation of constructor and contract terms; and (2) value in use
calculation of the power plant located in Indonesia based on cash flow
projection, followed by estimation of management on future business,
expected completion of construction and confirmation. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, no impairment losses were recognised.

The loan and interest receivables are due from SEPC and GSG,
non-controlling shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Company
and are denominated in US$.

As at 31 December 2019, the principal amount of the loan to SEPC
was fully repaid and the gross carrying amount of the loan to GSG
was HK$220,808,000 (2018: HK$222,086,000). The loan to GSG is
interest bearing at 7% per annum and is repayable through its share
of the future dividend of the subsidiaries. Up to the date of this
report, no interest was paid according to the terms of loan agreement.

The gross interest receivables from SEPC and GSG were
HK$4,132,000 (2018: HK$4,147,000) and HK$57,067,000 (2018:
HK$46,313,000), respectively. The interest receivables are interest
free and repayable through their shares of the future dividend of
the subsidiaries. Up to the date of this report, no interest was paid
according to the terms of loan agreement.

As at 31 December 2019, an ECL provision of HK$6,818,000
(2018: HK$6,818,000) (Note 7b) was made on the loan and interest
receivables from shareholders of a subsidiary, respectively.

The note and interest receivables are due from an independent third
party, unsecured, with fixed interest rate of 3.65% per annum and
payable semi-annually, mature on 23 May 2021, and denominated in
USS$. Up to the date of this report, there was no default in payment of
interest.

As at 31 December 2019, an ECL provision of HK$431,000 (2018: Nil)
(Note 7b) was made on the note receivables.

23 B FANREAEAREME
W k| (48)

MisE

ZREEZERBEAEBALREE R
EHMBEERERTERBREREA
AARETHERRN—BIEERR
HSEPCK H [ B A A]PT. Shanghai
Electric Power Construction ([ PT.

SEPC) x < K3 & UK ©

EEE QT EERERENKAL
ARERSETESHH  HEROERBHA
B & AR M) & TR 5 & AL R
HENZERNEREE  ALEA
EEEMAAKRES BHTIRE
WE B MILETE - R2019%F k20185
12A318 @ WEMERREER -

ZERRERRMBERARARET
B A R) 2z FEIE AR A% RSEPC R GSGUR
B - LAEITEHE ©

M2019412A318 * 4 FSEPCH &
HASEDEBEE MG TGSGH
B 300 BR T 48 (8 A& 75 #220,808,0007T
(20184 : % #£222,086,0007T) ° 4 F
GSGHIEFRIZFEFIRT%:T 2 - BB B
BRELZSHBARMNRBEE-
HEAREBH VTELBERGH
1R AAF B8 -

fEWSEPCRGSGH F 2 42 & 5 7
57 #4,132,0007T (20184 : B #
4,147,0007T) K 7% #57,067,0007T
(20184 : 7% 146,313,0007T) ° f& U
Meres AFBABEEZSNH
BARMREEE -HEAREAWE
W IR BE R BBIERZAFE -

MN2019F12A318 ' E R EKR — [
M E AR RERE R RFE DR E
i 7% #6,818,0007T (20184 : B #&
6,818,0007T ) 78 HA{s A 1B Sk 8 5 (Mt =
7b) °

ZERWEBMANEER— BB L
FoHWE BEE BEFHERE
3.656% ' AE¥F X —Ik 12021
F5H23B EH UETEHE - BHEX
s B A IS A A R BRI AROR -

R2019F12A31H * B3R Z & 1E

i 7 #431,0007T (20184 : &) 78 5
EREREE (M=) -
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24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 BREPYE
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At 1 January, previously reported 1 B8 (a2 5®) 14,798,884 12,131,649
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 5) RAEBV B HmELER

E165% (FzE5) 1,777 -
At 1 January 2019, as restated #2019F1 B1H (=) 14,800,661 12,131,649
Additions NE 981,148 2,721,617
Impairment (Note 7e) BB (H5E7e) - (77,582)
Exchange differences 5+ =5 (91,067) 23,200
At 31 December M12A31H 15,690,742 14,798,884

Properties under development comprise: BERPAMERSE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB T
Los Angeles, the U.S. EBRIZ 6,824,353 6,204,586
Ko Olina No. 2 Land, Hawaii, the U.S. B & B =R 4HF — 5% 1458 1,685,155 1,672,794
Ko Olina No. 1 Land, Hawaii, the U.S. Z£ Bl B &l 32 BRI 475 — 5% 31 158 2,798,191 2,554,406
Kapolei West, Hawaii, the U.S. EHEMRRHEAR 1,006,145 972,320
New York, the U.S. EBAH 3,454,480 3,472,360
15,768,324 14,876,466
Less: Provision for impairment OB B (77,582) (77,582)
15,690,742 14,798,884

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the properties under
development were expected to be completed and recovered
after one year from the end of the reporting period.

R2019%F K2018F12A31H « #EE
R ERBERNRERRES —F
BT R EIFIE ©

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,
while holding all other assumptions constant.

AT SRERE DM TR AR RR N &
SHREEAEARES (HRk
RAERAEE) HEEMBEE
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24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the net realisable value of properties under development
in New York are the average unit price per square foot.
If the average unit price per square foot is 1% higher
or lower, the net realisable value would increase or
decrease by HK$34,000,000 (2018: increase by or
decrease by HK$34,000,000). The increase/decrease
in average unit price per square foot of 1% would result
in reversal of/additional impairment loss recognised of
HK$34,000,000 (2018: reversal of/additional impairment
loss HK$34,000,000).

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the net realisable value of properties under development
in Hawaii are the average unit price per square foot. If the
average unit price per square foot is 1% higher or lower,
the net realisable value would increase by HK$63,000,000
or decrease by HK$66,000,000 (2018: increase by
HK$56,000,000 or decrease by HK$57,000,000). The
change in average unit price per square foot of 1% would
not result in any recognition or reversal of impairment loss
(2018: no recognition or reversal of impairment loss).

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of
the net realisable value of properties under development
in Los Angeles are the discount rate. If the discount
rate is 0.5% higher or lower, the net realisable value
would decrease by HK$107,000,000 or increase by
HK$110,000,000 (2018: decrease by HK$80,000,000 or
increase by HK$81,000,000). The decrease in discount
rate of 0.5% would not result in any recognition or reversal
of impairment loss (2018: no recognition or reversal of
impairment loss). The increase in discount rate of 0.5%
would result in additional impairment loss of HK$97,000,000
(2018: additional impairment loss of HK$62,000,000).

24

HERPWE (E)

BEEMRAAONERTPMENTE
BEFENEABERBRRASEA
REGERLE - BEFFEHFRFEH
EMNEREALTRI% JER
B = 1800 5k R 278 834,000,000
7T (20184 : # 0=k 4 78 &
34,000,0007T) c ¥ HFRFHE
LB EF T BR1%15 B 3R
2R E R BRI E BB
#34,000,0007T (20184 : # @
3 08 B k5 1878 5 34,000,0007T ) ©

EEURERERNERFYMENT
ERFENEABEBRRAETT
FREHEMER HEFHFRFE
HEMERLEAXTEI%  AJE
I (B 2 12 hn % %63,000,0007T X,
B 7% #66,000,0007T (20184 :
#2075 #56,000,0007T 3k 5 4 74
57,000,0007T) - FFHRF9E
MNERLEBE1% 2 28T S8
FRRERE 2 Rk & E (2018
F:RERIBEEREER) -

BEMMNESEHOERTPMENT
ERFENEABERRK AR
Ko FAAE FF 3 TFE0.5% @ 7]
IR FE =R 4% %107,000,000
JC 3K 3% 07 #110,000,0007T (2018
& 1 4 7 #580,000,0007T 3k 1 AN
75 #81,000,0007T) ° BA IR &R T BE
0.5% T BHAMBEREEZE
R B (20184 R FER LB
WEEE) - BHIE X FAH05%1EE
BURE SN R 1B &5 18 8 97,000,000
7T (20184 : BH MR (B 5 1B 7B M
62,000,0007T) °
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the net realisable
value of the properties under development as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

For the properties under development in Los Angeles, the
management assessed the net realisable value by value in
use calculation based on cash flow projection, followed by
estimation of management on future business and expected
completion of construction. As at 31 December 2019
and 2018, no impairment losses were recognised for the
properties under development in Los Angeles.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, trade receivables
represent rental receivables for which no credit terms have
been granted. The aging analysis of trade receivables,
net of provision and based on the date of invoices at 31

24

25

HERPYE(E)

ERREBRAUEEABE &1

SRAIE TN HMRARZE MMEHL
HEH S TKAREER  WMEXZE
B BEEIH A —ERKRERSP
MERABRFENBRES -

RURBERONERETYE B8
ELTGHEAEREE DERS
MBAGEHGERERE  AEBH
BEEMEARKESR FEHTIR
BRKNEBREET - N2019F &
2018412 A31H @ W E R ML N IE A
HrERP Y ERIBRESSE -

JE& W B K

R20194F M20184F12A31H * &
WER A EE D E E A R
% o 20194 M20185F 12 A31H A
EEHHARETMBREEEZEOEY

December 2019 and 2018 is as follows: FRARE DT
2019 2018
20194 2018%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BET T
0-30 days 0-30H 50 548
31-60 days 31-60H - 525
61-90 days 61-90H - 522
50 1,595

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables.
The trade receivables included in the above aging analysis
are considered not impaired (2018: Nil) as these relate to
a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the fair value of the trade receivables.

The Group does not hold any collateral securities.

B AR R T ET R » R AT
kNZE2BILEFIRLEERLC
8% - Bt BRI 0 AT P B FE A R U
R R A8 1 AR % B RUE (2018%F ¢
&) o

REABEEPNRAREERRASE
WEERRW AR (EE -

AEEY EFBEMNERSD -



26 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 26 RERBITERK

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Bank deposits with maturity less than A =1{ B A 2| 886 R 1T 17 =k
three months - 2,106
Cash at banks and on hand RITEREFERES 70,401 675,877
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 70,401 677,983
Restricted cash XBRHIR 117,889 411,892
Cash and bank deposits Re RIBITHFER 188,290 1,089,875

Notes:

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the following restricted bank
deposits:

a. As at 31 December 2019, a bank deposit of HK$59,000 (2018:
HK$186,987,000) was held in escrow in a licensed bank for the
settlement of any construction obligation of a subsidiary of the
Company to a general constructor of the property development
project in Los Angeles, the U.S.. The escrow arrangement is required
pursuant to an escrow agreement entered into between the licensed
bank, the general constructor and the subsidiary until the Group
obtained construction financing or committed to have fund and equity
sufficient to pay the remaining payment obligation to work.

b. As at 31 December 2018, a bank deposit of HK$8,000 was held in
escrow in a licensed bank for the settlement of any infrastructure
construction obligation of a subsidiary of the Company to the
infrastructure constructor of the property development project in the
Kapolei West area of Hawaii, the U.S.. As at 31 December 2019,
the bank deposit was released upon completion of the infrastructure
construction.

©o As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of HK$117,830,000 (2018:
HK$224,897,000) were secured for guarantees provided by the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries in favour of the licensed
banks for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 34).

M2019F 128318 * AEEH T3 X R Hl R
TER

M2019412H31H /& #59,0007T
(20184 : &% 186,987,0007T) IR 1T
FRUFEFABHFBRRITIHE A
BEAAF —MHBRRYER ST
HWYEREHEMNEAEZBAENGT
AR AE - EE LB TIRIE B %
MEERAT - R B AR R ZM B A AET
UHREBENAEEL  EEAE
ERSEEpRENEERBESRR
ARUAZ BT IRMREL AL -

R2018%F12 4318 + #%8,0007T A iR
TEIATESABFRRITES
NBEEARRR—HBARYERE
BRRNEAEYEZREENER
AEBBBNEMERARE - K2019
F12A318 ROFRRERER T
B 1% BRBR o

20195124318 - i #117,830,000
5T (20184 : i #224,897,0007T) HJ
BAOBGRERARAREETHEA
RIA R IRIT IR M B R E 48 - A
ERETRTAEENETHE (M
34) °
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CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

Bank balances of HK$24,909,000 (2018: HK$216,136,000)
are denominated in RMB and are placed with banks in
the PRC. The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange control restrictions imposed by the
PRC government. The remaining bank balances are mainly
denominated in HK$ or USS.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2019, deposits received, other
payables and accruals included rental deposits received of
HK$29,070,000 (2018: HK$27,425,000), amounts due to
related parties of HK$21,279,000 (2018: HK$26,834,000)
(Note 36h), interest payable to a fellow subsidiary of
HK$1,113,000 (2018: HK$734,000) (Note 36h), other taxes
payable of HK$341,797,000 (2018: HK$312,060,000),
provision for legal case with subcontractor of
HK$215,722,000 (2018:HK$216,971,000) and payables
and accruals for construction costs of power plants
and property development projects of HK$154,591,000
(2018: HK$155,487,000) and HK$843,432,000 (2018:
HK$894,011,000) respectively.

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within 12 months from the end
of the reporting period.

26

27

BERBITEXR(A)

75 #24,909,0007T (20184 : Bk
216,136,00070) WER1THE R A AR
B ERTFRRFBEET - 55Z
L& E BT E R R BT INE
ERIRRR - S TIRITEHETEMN
BN EITTEE ©

cgRE - HEMA KR
K FEETIRE

B2019F 128318 E iz & -
EHMmENFELEFEERRE
B U &% ¢ 8 #¥29,070,0007T
(20184 : B #£27,425,0007T)
JE 1<) 8 Bk 5 FRIE B 621,279,000
7T (20184 : 7 #26,834,0007T)
([ 7E36h) BN —MEERMEBEA
A /) F B8 #1,113,0007T (2018
& B #734,0005T) (FfsE36h) -
H fth jE - B 18 8 #5341,797,000
oL (20184 : # #312,060,000
L) CH O BEEFRNEREEE
¥215,722,0007C (20184 : B #&
216,971,0007T) & % 5l & B8 2 & i
R H¥EREIER ZRKANHERNK
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority.

a. The net movement in the deferred income tax (assets)/

e B HmR MR ()

28 ELEFEH(EE) AfF

EEA AR BB RITAER
HERBAEHEELRB G
BE BEEMSHSRFEA K
WA REMSHEERAES
EREEF

a. BREMSBHR(BE) &AE/EF

liabilities is as follows: BT
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At 1 January ®1A1H 258,754 259,576
Exchange translation differences E X =% (6,594) (12,386)
Reversal of deferred tax 9 BE I 8~ 7)) B
liability upon distribution of BOELEREAE
profits from subsidiaries - -
Charge to income statement P 2 2= F0BR (B EE10)
(Note 10)
— Charge for the year —FRXH 7,055 6,202
— Write-off of deferred income tax  — 5 IEEFTEHEE
assets 4,324 5,362
At 31 December R12A318 263,539 258,754
b.  Deferred income tax comprises: b. EBIEMEHEIE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Deferred income tax assets EEMSREE (11,995) (10,585)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFMERBE 275,534 269,339
At 31 December R12H318 263,539 258,754
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

c. The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

28 EELFBH(EE) AfF

(%)
c. EEMBHAERAMMF

M E CREH REHEN AR
IS RAHER NRAERR) 20T -

Changes in fair

Accelerated value of Other

Tax tax investment temporary
losses depreciation properties differences Total

REWE

mEHE AREE Hi Tk
REESE nE 2E 28 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BT BB BB
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H (17,357) 142,738 115,921 17,452 258,754
Exchange translation differences EXzE 100 (2,153) (2,578) (1,963) (6,594)

(Credit)/charge to income statement (FFAER)/ R
Lhgne.silis
- Charge for the year ~FRYH (4,466) 8,016 - 3,505 7,055
— Write-off of deferred income tax assets ~ — MK EIEFETEE 4,324 - - - 4,324
At 31 December 2019 #2019F12A318 (17,399) 148,601 113,343 18,994 263,539
At 1 January 2018 #2018F1A18 (16,526) 141,894 120,642 13,566 259,576
Exchange translation differences EXZHE (29) (7,511) 4,721) (125) (12,386)
(Credit)/charge to income statement (st Az R),/ R
gz el

~ Charge for the year -FRAXH (6,164) 8,355 - 4,011 6,202
- Write-off of deferred income tax assets ~ — i EEFIEHEE 5,362 = - - 5,362
At 31 December 2018 2018127318 (17,357) 142,738 115,921 17,452 258,754
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (ASSETS)/
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

d.

The investment properties are held within a business
model with the objective to substantially realise all of
the economic benefits embodied in the properties over
time, rather than through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all
available evidence. The Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative unused
tax losses of approximately HK$461,072,000 (2018:
HK$316,240,000). The tax losses can be carried
forward indefinitely, except for Indonesian tax
losses of approximately HK$107,602,000 (2018:
HK$74,579,000) which can be carried forward for 25
years and will expire in the following years:

28 EELEFRBH(EE) A
(%)

BREWMEABEELTE - M
Z AR AU ' 1E e B R T (M 3E
BRENE)ERZENEME

SRR R BN & o

ERBASEE - MEARK
EHREEFERANR A EMmA
FREEMNRESARIEEE -
Bt 45 88 R B) A A0 IE S 18 e
RIELMBREE - NEEW
EREAARBAREEBSREY
75 461,072,0007T (20184 :
7 1316,240,0007T ) FERIE T
I & E - B8 E 18 0] &R &
88 4974 #107,602,000
7L (20184 : & #74,579,000
)W ERIEE BE N AE
25%F - WA T FEEm :

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

2039 20394 597 597
2041 20414 352 352
2042 20424 5,382 5,382
2043 20434 68,248 68,248
2044 20444 33,023 -
107,602 74,579
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29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 BRA
Number of Amount
shares
BHEA k]
HK$’000
BT
Authorised ordinary shares of FREABESE01T
HK$0.1 each: BATE R
At 1 January 2018, 31 December A2018F1H1H ~ 20185
2018, 1 January 2019 and 31 12831H > 20191 81H
December 2019 %2019 12HA31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHTE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December A2018FE1H1H ~ 20185
2018, 1 January 2019 and 31 12H31H ~ 20191 81H
December 2019 %2019 12H31H 16,142,653,060 1,614,265
30 BORROWINGS 30 B8
The analysis of borrowings is as follows: BEINHOT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT
Bank loans, secured (Note a) IRITE - BIKE (W iEa) - 3,025,647
Other loans from third parties, REE=THEMER -
secured (Note b) B (M 5Eo) 4,493,204 2,269,437
Other loans from a fellow subsidiary, B8 —RREZME QT
secured (Note c) HiER - HEMA
(P zEe) 204,454 288,000
Convertible notes (Note d) Al AR B4 (M9 aEd) 575,407 564,379
Borrowings BE 5,363,065 6,147,463
Current portion mEEH D (1,609,932) (4,513,893)
Non-current portion ERENE 3,753,133 1,633,570
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank loans were secured by
assets amounting to HK$1,492,093,000 and guarantees provided by
an intermediate holding company of the Company, a non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries as well as letters of credit in favour of the banks. As at 31
December 2019, all bank loans are repaid in full.

The bank loans as at 31 December 2018 were denominated in US$ or
HK$ and interest-bearing at London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”),
Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate (“HIBOR”) or the bank’s cost of
funds plus a specific margin.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s other loans were secured
by the Group’s assets amounting to HK$20,944,512,000 (2018:
HK$14,577,934,000) as well as guarantees provided by the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries, and an intermediate holding company of the
Company.

The other loans are denominated in US$ and bear interest at fixed
rates per annum.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s loans from a fellow
subsidiary were unsecured.

A keepwell agreement was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company to provide comfort to the lending fellow
subsidiary that the Company shall be in sound financial condition to
meet all liabilities and perform all obligations under a facility agreement
of HK$280,000,000.

The loans are denominated in HK$ and bears interest at 12% per
annum.

30 fHEE (&)

MisE

R2018F12A31H » REBMMIRTE
X E B #1,492,093,0007T K B E &
AAEl—HAREERAR - KMEARQE
MR E - AR A REETH B
NEFRENERARNBIT AT S
AHI{E A B EH T - 72019F 1231
B FAIABRITERCEHERER -

R2018%12A31H » Z FWTEFIA
ELRAB B EL IR BIRITEER
B(mBBITRERE]) - BRI
FEFE ([BEBRTAERE]) KR
THESKAN S EEEE -

R2019F12A31H  REBMME M E
O H B #20,944,512,0007T (2018
0 F¥14,577,934,0007T) B & E A
MARR -HETHBRARG L —EF
FEI 2 B A A FT R AR A0 FE (R VE IR 9 o

H Al & RIA KT ATHE I 12 Bl E F F

TR

R2019%F K2018F12A31H  AEH
KA—HREMBRARNERAER
e

ARA—HPREERARIEE L #L
W RAEHEAERRRMNB AR
REARRQ R AEE RGO AR A
JB 777 7% #£280,000,0007T 8 Bt & 3%
THFRBEEAEREBNESR -

w

TR A BB EL IR FE RN E12%

o 4

o

E"ﬁ
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30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

The Company issued 5-year 6% convertible notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$600 million at the face value on 27 December
2018 and convertible notes were listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited on 28 December 2018.

The convertible notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Each
bond will at the option of the holder be convertible (unless previously
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) into fully paid
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each in the issued
and paid up capital of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.71 per share subject to adjustment for, amongst other things,
consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares, capitalization
of profits or reserve, distribution, right issues, issues at less than
current market price, modification of rights of conversion, other offers
to shareholders and other events which have a dilutive effect on the
issued share capital of the Company.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
the convertible notes will be redeemed on the maturity date at 100%
of the principle amount. The Company has an early redemption
option on 27 December 2021 to redeem in whole, but not in part,
the convertible notes for the time being outstanding at a redemption
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the convertible notes
together with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date fixed for
redemption. The holders also have an early redemption option to
require the Company to redeem all or some convertible notes on 27
December 2021 at 100% of the principle amount in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement. Therefore,
in determining the fair value of the liability host of the debt at initial
recognition of the convertible notes, the maturity date is considered
to be 27 December 2021 since contractual cash flow for the principal
is unavoidable if the note holders choose to exercise the option to
require the Company to redeem the convertible notes. The interest is
payable semi-annually 27 June and 27 December.

The convertible notes are separated into two components, equity
conversion component and liability component. The liability
component is carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method until distinguished on conversion. The effective interest rate of
the liability component on initial recognition is 8.2% per annum.
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Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the equity conversion and liability
components of the convertible notes are presented in the statement

e B HmR MR ()

30 B8

BiaE - (

(#4&)

&)

d. ()
R2019F12A318 - AT AR =
B R B EEK IS NI R KR

of financial position as follows: BRAAR -

Equity

Liability conversion
component component Total

EREGR
SEEEANTS AR D wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T
At 1 January 2019 201951 51H 564,379 23,121 587,500
Interest charged FlEEF A 11,028 - 11,028
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12 8318 575,407 23,121 598,528
At 1 January 2018 7201841 A1H - - -
Convertible notes issued at 27 December 712 27 B 3178 Al #2245 576,387 23,613 600,000
Less: transaction costs B R B (12,008) (492) (12,500)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 564,379 23,121 587,500

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings were

HR20194F K2018F 128310 » A&

repayable as follows: MEEREESZNT -
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Bank loans — within one year BITER——FR - 3,025,647
Other loans from a fellow subsidiary — RKE—HERKBARMEMER
within one year ——FR 294,454 288,000
Other loan from a third party — KE—RBEZFTHEMER—
within one year —FR 1,315,479 1,200,246
Other loan from a third party — KE—RE=ZFHNEMER—
between 2 and 5 years —ERF 3,177,725 1,069,191
Convertible notes — AMRER-——ZRF
between 2 and 5 years 575,407 564,379
Total st 5,363,065 6,147,463

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had undrawn facilities amounting
to HK$6,507,877,000 (2018: HK$4,635,517,000) (including undrawn
facilities from an intermediate holding company).

R2019%12A31H * "NEBEA KR
B @t & 7 #£6,507,877,000T (20184 :
75 #4,635,517,0007T) (B IE R B — [
FREERARNRIZEREE)
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31 ZEEERERMEE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

242

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash used in

operating activities before interest expense, tax paid

REPRERANERX B
NHREREEESZINK

and changes in working capital: EEBMANRSYHE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Operating loss before income tax  BRFTE R X HAT& & E 18
expense (53,932) (563,679)
Adjustments for: S EE
Interest income BN = (22,164) (30,785)
Dividend income B% B W= (2,404) (11,734)
Depreciation of properties, plant W - I M ERIEW
and equipment e 4,537 3,027
Amortisation of leasehold land THE +ih & 1 3 fF A e
and land use rights B 4 55 - 79
Depreciation of right-of-use TREEERE
assets 21,103 -
Interest expense FEF X 6,066 -
(Gains)/losses on disposal of HEME  BBERZE
properties, plant and B (FIB)EE
equipment (204) 13
Gain on modification of lease FEHEAENNE
liabilities (336) =
Net realised losses on disposal HEFFTESKRESD
of non-publicly traded fund HARAREBERTA
investments classified as BaEmWUBEETE
financial assets at fair value #
through profit or loss 727 =
Fair value (gains)/losses on BERRARBEA
revaluation of financial assets BaEmPBEERN
at fair value through profit or NREEFIR),
loss 518 (3,270) 630
Net realised gains on disposal of HEFIEE AR EERT
listed debt securities classified A E b 2 T Y e 19 B
as financial assets through BEENLEMEBE
other comprehensive income H ) F LI FF (4,128) (6,281)
Impairment loss on properties BERPERNRBEERE
under development - 77,582
Expected credit losses TEHEREBX 431 1,219
(53,574) (19,929)
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

b.  Changes in working capital:

e B HmR MR ()

31 REREREKRME (E)

b. ZLEESMESD:

2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Increase in trade and other JFE Ut BR 3k LA 2 H i 8 Uk
receivables, deposits and RIE - e RIENFHIE
prepayments 11 (8,165) (1,082)
Increase in properties under ERAPYELM
development (399,550) (2,145,112)
(Decrease)/increase in deposits Bz e - EMERS
received, other payables and RIENEETIEE
accruals OB 2), /3 hn (2,197) 3,303
(409,912) (2,142,891)

RZERERDE 2019F F3f
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(CONTINUED)

C. Net debt reconciliation:

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and

the movements in net debt for each of the years

presented.

Liabilities from financing activities

31 ZERERERWE (F)

C.

BRI FEHER

AEMEFI 2N FENE
BRI REHFREH -

MEEBFELENAR
Amount due
to an
intermediate  Loans from  Borrowings  Borrowings
holding fellow repayable repayable Lease
company subsidiaries within 1 year  after 1 year liabilities Total
—BRRKE
EM-B+E ARRMH —-FREEN -FREED
BERARRE £ BE B8 HERE @it
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
Net debt as at 1 January 2019, 7420195151 HEH FHE
previously reported (MAT2R) 5,194,773 288,000 4,225,893 1,633,570 - 11,342,236
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RRBRMBREEANE6% - - - - 92,063 92,063
Net debt as at 1 January 2019, #2019%1 518 HEK FE
as restated (E5) 5,194,773 288,000 4,225,803 1,633,570 92,063 11,434,299
Cash inflows BERA 3,888,627 8,000 1,065,110 2,388,167 - 7,349,904
Cash outflows ReR (2,562,987) (26,201)  (4,543,429) (82,895) (22,134) (7,237,736
Foreign exchange adjustments SN[ 3 J§ & (27,046) (379) (50,889) (4,290) (506) (83,110)
Other non-cash movements Hit R # 312,000 25,124 618,793 (181,419) 13,408 787,906
Net debt as at 31 December 20195128318 HEHFE
2019 6,805,367 294,454 1,315,478 3,753,133 82,831 12,251,263
Net debt as at 1 January 2018 #2018%1818 MEKFE 3,120,506 280,000 3,981,357 1,067,007 - 8,448,870
Cash inflows RERA 5,572,439 8,000 3,500,060 587,500 - 9,667,999
Cash outflows REmit (3,663,744) - (3,353,169 = - (7,016,913
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JME[E i % 7,635 - 7,544 2,184 - 17,363
Other non-cash movements HitkRe2s 157,937 - 90,101 (23,121) - 224,917
Net debt as at 31 December 74201812831 A HEK F5E
2018 5,194,773 288,000 4,225,893 1,633,570 - 11,342,236
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32 EAREKIE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, capital commitments 20194 K2018F12A31H » B
contracted but not provided for were as follows: HBERBENEREENT -
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Properties, plant and equipment ME - HBENRE 1,071,229 490,103
Properties under development and BERAMERKEYE
investment properties 2,593,081 4,367,420
Total 4T 3,664,310 4,857,523
33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3 REHFSAIE
a. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s a. 20194 Kk20184F 12 H31
investment properties are leased to a number B AEBENREMETIZT
of tenants for varying terms. The Group’s future EHRBAEETFTZEZEP - K&
aggregate minimum lease receivables under Bt EMERE TR L
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of KEHENARKERD RIE
investment properties are as follows: HeBEBEIT
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Not later than one year TER—F 90,081 72,279
Later than one year and not later than BR —EEBTER A FE
five years 261,641 155,408
Later than five years BRASF 111,524 109,538
463,246 337,225
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33 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33 KeHEERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

b.  The Group leases various properties including offices, b. AEBETAHBELERE
sales centre and apartments under non-cancellable HBEENHEZRADME B
operating lease agreements. Substantial leases have MAZE - HEPLERAE -1
been recorded as lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019F12A31A " EXHEE
2019 under newly adopted accounting standard EREBENEMANSETERS
HKFRS 16 (Note 5). The operating lease commitment 78 B IS S A R 65k (M aE
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 presented 5) ANBRREEHEBE - TX
below represents the future aggregate minimum lease 27| K & B 720184412 A31
payments under all non-cancellable operating leases: AMEERERE  EIEFTE

TAIHEEEREBRTHR
REEBENRBRE
2018
20184
HK$'000
BT T
Not later than one year TER—F 28,745
Later than one year and not later than BR—FENERRATF
five years 37,795
Later than five years EBRAF 19,398
85,938

Operating lease payments represent rental payables
payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to
11 years.
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34 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

34 BEEEH

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure borrowings of the Group as

R20194F K2018F12A831H » A&
EETEECEHIEARTAELEER

follows: HEEMERET :
2019 2018
2019%F 2018%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Pledged bank deposits (Note 26¢) BB IR 1TF 3 (M ak26c) 117,830 224,897

Financial assets at fair value through ALK BET AHMEE

other comprehensive income W R B E E - 113,334
Properties under development BERAPYE 15,690,742 11,404,106
Properties, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 6,668 7,216
Leasehold land and land use rights MHE T M b5 A - 2,291
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,150 -
Investment properties WEYME 5,127,122 4,318,183
20,944,512 16,070,027

Save as the pledged assets disclosed above, the issued
shares of 20 (2018: 14) subsidiaries (Note 38) of the
Company were also pledged to secure borrowings of the

Group as at 31 December 2019.

BREXHEZENEEHREEN
M2019%12A31H * K2R R20/[
(20184 : 14[) I B 2~ 7 (fiF7E38)
WEBTROTEERIEARTA

SEMNEEMER-
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35 LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES

On 31 January 2019 (Los Angeles (“LA”), the U.S. time),
a subcontractor (the “Subcontractor”) of the Group’s real
estate project in LA (the “LA Project”), sued Oceanwide
Plaza LLC (“Oceanwide Plaza”), the LA Project subsidiary
of the Company, the general contractor (the “General
Contractor”) of the LA Project and a lender of Oceanwide
Plaza in LA County Superior Court (the “Court”) to foreclose
on a mechanic’s lien (the “First Lien”) for approximately
US$52.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$412.0
million) recorded on the LA Project’s title.

On 19 February 2019 (LA time), the Subcontractor recorded
an amended lien for approximately US$49.4 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$384.7 million) and released
the First Lien and also amended its lawsuit to reflect the
lower lien amount, but did not file its amended complaint.

On 26 March 2019 (LA time), the Subcontractor recorded
a new lien (the “Third Lien”) for approximately US$60.3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$469.6 million) and
filed a first amended complaint to sue for this new amount.
Oceanwide Plaza received the Third Lien on 2 April 2019 (LA
time).
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35 LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Oceanwide Plaza and the General Contractor filed motions
to force the Subcontractor’s lawsuit into arbitration, which
the Court denied, and which Oceanwide Plaza and the
General Contractor have appealed. The appeal is pending.

Oceanwide Plaza is, on the one hand, preparing a
vigorous defense and reserving all rights under the law
while on the other hand, exploring the opportunity to
negotiate a settlement with the Subcontractor to resolve
the dispute. Sufficient provision has been made in relation
to the aforesaid case after the assessment made by the
management.

Apart from the aforesaid case, from June 25, 2019
through December 31, 2019, another nine contractors and
one potential contractor have sued Oceanwide Plaza to
foreclose on their mechanic’s liens. The aggregate claim
amount of these lawsuits is US$53.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$419.3 million). These contractors
intended to settle the outstanding payment and continue
with the LA Project construction than litigate, one of them
has not served its lawsuit on Oceanwide Plaza, and another
eight have not required Oceanwide Plaza to respond to
their lawsuits. Oceanwide Plaza did have to respond to
the remaining lawsuits and did so by filing a motion to
compel arbitration for one and challenging the service of
the other lawsuit on Oceanwide Plaza. Any provision made
is estimated based on the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation, taking into consideration
time value.

Apart from the aforesaid cases, the Group was not involved
in any other material litigation or arbitration during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

35
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company consider the ultimate holding
company of the Company to be Tohigh Holdings Co., Ltd*,
a company incorporated in the PRC, which is ultimately
controlled by Mr. Lu Zhigiang.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the following significant transactions were
carried out with related parties during the year in the normal
course of business at terms determined and agreed by both

36

EXBEBAIRS

ARAREERR  NABMKRE
BRABRBEERERAF  ZA
AR BIEMAY - WHERRE
BB ARAE ] o

BRAGREMBRREMEMARE
EI G FRAGEBB T ETATE
ARG REXRHGDHREFEXEB
RRERRHETEE KWHE M GRR

parties: LT
a. Sales a. #HE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(i) Rental income from fellow (i) AR Z&HE A 7 UER
subsidiaries Eokishe g
(1) Tohigh Construction (1) BEEEZER
Company Limited* NG - 122
(2) Oceanwide Power (2) 2 BB NER
Holdings Co., Ltd.* Mt BB A A 27 20
(3) Tohigh Property Q) BEEXNEE
Investment Management EERAT
Co., Ltd.* (“Tohigh (T@BEXD
Property”) 903 -
(i) Management fee income from (i) A — & R & B A &)
a fellow subsidiary WEHEEEHA
Wz
- Oceanwide Property - BYEERAR
Management Co., Ltd* RAaE (28
(“Oceanwide Property YIEER])
Management”) - 203
S For identification purpose only * EHER
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

36 EXEBLXS (&)

BRAGAEVBREAEMBEMHARE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the following significant transactions were HON FANDEBE T ETATE
carried out with related parties during the year in the normal ARG ZERXRGDHREETEEB

course of business at terms determined and agreed by both BRI SGETEELRNENIGR

parties: AT
b. Purchases b. &
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
() Rental expenses charged by () RRMEBRFRE
fellow subsidiaries Hemx
(1) PTCOI (Note i) (1) PTCOI (B i) - 6,751
(2) China Oceanwide USA (2) China Oceanwide
Holdings Co. Ltd USA Holdings Co.
(“Oceanwide USA Ltd (12 /8 EE =
Holdings”) (Note i) A% 1) (B i) 2,946 1,880
(i) Office expenses charged by a (i) —E[F &M B 2 7] 4 B
fellow subsidiary MR AERS
— Oceanwide USA Holdings - 28 EBEER 296 78
(i) Purchase of building (i) B — MR EKE A A
management service REEFERRYG
from a fellow subsidiary
- Oceanwide Property - BMEER
Management - 1,481
(iv) Purchase of insurance services (iv) B — &R XM B A 7
from a fellow subsidiary REREB RS
- Asia-Pacific Property & -DAVERRER
Casualty Insurance Co., AR (TEAFRD
Ltd. (“API") 2,037 735
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b. Purchases (Continued)

36 EXFEBLXRS (&)

b. i (&)

2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T

(v) Purchase of loan service, v) BE—ERRMHEBARA A
corporate finance advisory KEENRRY - b
service and sub-underwriting MEBARIE LD E
service from a fellow $H AR 1%
subsidiary
— China Tonghai Securities - R EREES - 300

(vi) Depreciation of right-of-use i) B — R XM E A 7
assets which leased from a HATAEEED
fellow subsidiary e
- PTCOI (Note i) - PTCOI (Hfi 7%i) 6,064 -

Note: PEE -

i Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 by the Group from 1 January B A £ B R2019F1 A1H R
2019, the fixed lease payments from PTCOI and Oceanwide BAMBREER F1658 8
USA Holdings are capitalised as lease liabilities while the KR BPTCOI K )z /8 3 Bl 2 R 1)
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a FHEESEENM AHERE
rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. MASZEH LR RO E

HHELEAEHEAER T
BEEN -

i The amount recognised in 2019 represented short-term lease i, 20195 R M EIEHEB A
which lease term within one year and recognised as rental —FRALTHEAREERINE
expenses. S -

c. Interestincome c. FMBEWHE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

(i) Interest income from GSG () MGSGUELHY F) B I =

(Note 23) (W E£23) 11,092 14,535
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

e B HmR MR ()

36 EXEBLIXS (&

d. Finance costs d. BERALK
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(i) Borrowing costs charged by (i) AR AP
an intermediate holding [EE/D N
company
- China Oceanwide Group -HFZEBEBR AT
Limited (“COG”) (TcoaGl) (P&x
(Note 11) 11) 312,000 157,936
(i) Borrowing costs charged by a (i) — IR &M B A 7P
fellow subsidiary L B A 18 3RO 2R
- China Tonghai Finance - R EBEGHBEER
Limited (“China RAN([HE®EE
Tonghai Finance”) B ) (FisE11)
(Note 11) 25,124 20,584
(ili) Interests of lease liabilities from (i) K@ — R ZH B A
a fellow subsidiary AMNEEARENE
(1) PTCOI (Note) (1) PTCOI (M 3E) 1,835 -
(2) Oceanwide USA Holdings (2) 2B EBE R
(Note) (B =) 92 =
Note: B & -

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 by the Group from 1 January 2019, the
fixed lease payments from PTCOI and Oceanwide USA Holdings are
capitalised as lease liabilities while the variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities.

B2019F1A1ARABEBM B RE%E
A 55165% 1% - K BPTCOIRZ X E
PR ETHEAENRDBAERES
HEARK-
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

e. Construction cost paid to a
non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries, SEPC and its subsidiary
PT.SEPC

()  SEPC and its subsidiary PT.SEPC are engaged
on a fixed lump sum contract of US$431,930,000
(equivalent to HK$3,363,784,000) for the
design, engineering, procurement, construction,
commissioning, testing and completion of, and
making good of defects in relation to two coal
fuel steam power plant facilities with net capacity
of 150 megawatt each in Medan Industrial Area,
North Sumatra, Indonesia.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
construction costs of HK$7,788,000 (2018:
HK$118,224,000) were paid and recognised
as properties, plant and equipment and
prepayments for the construction of the power
plant facilities.

(i)  SEPC is engaged to procure the main equipment
for the construction of the Group’s power plant
facilities in Banyuasin, South Sumatera Province,
Indonesia, for a total cash consideration of
US$39,550,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$308,007,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, nil construction costs were paid and
recognised as prepayments for construction of
power plants.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

36 EXFEBLXRS (&)

e. XNFZEMBELF
HY 3F 12 IR IR SRSEPC
H B 2 FIPT.SEPC
HY 2 B R AN

() SEPCKHEMW B R 7
PT.SEPC#2431,930,000
ETXT (HBERBE
3,363,784,0007T) & &
FTBEZBEHNEERE
TEFRE TRRRE .
R -#ZR A8
R e AL EDFE b #%
PEBEARHE TEEN
R EBE S A1509K B Y
PRIR 75 T B B RRERAE
I R 78 I ERPE o

R E E2019F12A31H
IEFE  BERAABE
7,788,0007T (20184 :
75 #118,224,0007T) &
XA R A E
BERREARERES
R 2% B FE A5 FRIE o

(i) SEPCEZEZREASE
EREIEm&sMNER4E
Banyuasini® &% ¥ & B 3%
MREMNEZLE &
R & & A39,550,000
ET (HERHNBK
308,007,0007T) °

R Z2019F K20184F
12A31HIEFE @ W&
2T B BR PR 7N O 1 R
BRXANRBEREER
B TR SR8 o
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

36 EXEBLIXS (&

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company disposed of its entire equity interest in China

Oceanwide International Limited, the former wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, to Oceanwide
Sigma Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company,
at a consideration of US$12,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$100,453,000).

Key management compensation

No transactions were made with the directors and
senior management of the Company during the year
other than the emoluments paid to them (being the key
management personnel compensation) as disclosed in
Note 16.

REE2018412A31H8 1t
FE - KARQ A ROceanwide

Sigma Limited (— @ & % Kt
BAR)HERZHEAEERA
BA(AARIMAME2ENE R
AWMEBRAER  RER
12,800,000% 7T (18 & 1 4974
#100,453,0007T) °

FTEEEBEAESHE

FA - BEFARFAEERS
BEBEAENHe (AXZEE
BAERME) (RHFH16HEE)
O BHEm R EEATEIRR S o

Year-end balances arising from BBMAIXZEEN
related party transactions FRE R

2019 2018

20195 20184

HK$000  HK$'000
BETT AT

Amount due to an intermediate holding JEAF— R R A A
company (Note (i)) RIE (M=)
- COG -z EE 6,805,367 5,194,773

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary e — R R B AR FE

— China Tonghai Finance - R B RS B
¢ Loans from China Tonghai Finance o KRB EIBEEIEN
(Note 30c) B (K 3E30c) 294,454 288,000
¢ Interest payables to China Tonghai o JERH AR BB S EA
Finance (Note 27) F 2 (M 5E27) 1,113 734

295,567 288,734
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

h. Year-end balances arising

36 EXFEBLXRS (&)

h. BBAIXZRELEN

from related party transactions FREH (E)
(Continued)
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BAETT
Amounts due from/(to) related parties FE U, (FEF) BAE: 5 518
(Notes 23 and 27) (P E23 K2 27)
- Oceanwide Property Management, -REBYWEERE(—HERZR
a fellow subsidiary (Note (ii) g NCIDRG R () (368) (838)
- China Tonghai Securities, a fellow -FEBFES(—HEHRR
subsidiary (Note (ii)) g NCIDRG R () - (150)
- SEPC, a non-controlling shareholder - SEPC (% FEM B A al M
of subsidiaries (Note (ii)) FEVE MR AR ) (B REGi)) 4,167 4,023
— PT. Satya Abadi Semesta, — PT. Satya Abadi Semesta
a non-controlling shareholder of (—EMBRARN
a subsidiary (Note (ii)) FEVE MR AR ) (B REGI)) 8,335 8,047
— PTCOI, a fellow subsidiary (Note (ii)) - PTCOI(— R R XK B
2 &) (M k(i) - (6,750)
- Oceanwide Holdings, an intermediate - R (— A E
holding company (Note (ii) AR A A (B EEG) - (1,347)
— Oceanwide Center LLC
- Oceanwide Center LLC, (—FMREWBAR)
a fellow subsidiary (Note (ii)) (B i) ) (18,504) (17,749)
- API, a fellow subsidiary (Note (ii)) - DAV ERR
(—HBERWB LR
( B (i) (1,994) -
— Oceanwide USA Holdings (Note (ii)) — 2 EBERR
(—HBERWB AR
(Bt 3 Gi)) (413) -
(8,777) (14,764)
Rental deposits received from fellow MR RN B QA RRERHEE
subsidiaries bi-&a
— Oceanwide Power Holdings Co., Ltd.* - 2B ENERRS
BRAFA 10 10
— Tohigh Property -BEEXE 1,066 -
Construction payable to a non-controlling — FE{F B A &) — & FEHE ML A
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note (iii)) A 2 S EkIE (BT 5 (iii))
- SEPC — SEPC 154,591 155,169
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

h. Year-end balances arising

e B HmR MR ()

36 EXEBLXS (&)

h. BB

/|

RoMEEH

ot

from related party transactions FREER (F)
(Continued)
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Interest receivable from a non-controlling & Uit B A 7] — 44 3£ 12 i%
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note 23) % E F) 8 (B 5E23)
- SEPC - SEPC 4,115 4,139
Loan and interest receivables from a EW— B AR —%
non-controlling shareholder of a FEERBRROE SRR E
subsidiary (Note 23) (M4 5E23)
- GSG - GSG 271,074 261,598
Lease liabilities payable to fellow ENEREMNBARNAE
subsidiaries (Note 20) & 1& (M5E20)
- PTCOI (Note (iv)) - PTCOI (Fff 7E(iv)) 20,234 -
— Oceanwide USA Holdings (Note (iv)) — e B R (B 5% (Giv)) 1,517 -
Right of use assets from fellow subsidiaries & Z Kt /& 2 & &1 F 42
(Note 20) & E (MF7E20)
- PTCOI (Note (iv)) - PTCOI (Fff 3E(iv)) 6,064 -
- Oceanwide USA Holdings (Note (iv)) — 2 E BRI (B 5 Giv) 2,947 -
Prepayments for construction of power KENBRR—BIEERE
plants from a non-controlling REREFERAOTENKIE
shareholder of subsidiaries (Note 23) (Mf7¥23)
- SEPC - SEPC 332,957 327,141
Notes: B & -
0] The loans were unsecured and interest-bearing at 5% per 0] ZEERBEEMMIRFERN X
annum. The maturity date of the loans is 31 December 2021. 5%5t B - B H B A2021412
The borrowers have the discretion to opt for early repayment, A31H - BERABEBHGEE
while COG undertakes not to request any early repayment. REBER MHPZEEDEH
As at 31 December 2019, HK$6,805,367,000 (31 December T ERKRFEER - R2019F
2018: HK$5,194,773,000) was drawn. 12A318 ' % ¥6,805,367,000
7T (2018 12A31H : B
5,194,773,00070) B 12 HX °
(ii) Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within the (ii) EHRAEER 2B RARK
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period. The EHREBARTI2EANEE -
carrying amounts approximate their fair values. FEESEEE AR BEES -
(iii) Balance is unsecured and settled based on agreed credit iy HHRAEERIEREHBENE
terms. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. BEfENM -FEEHEBEEEAR
BEMEE -
(ivy  Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 by the Group from 1 January vy ZAEEB2019%F1A1B8HA

2019, the fixed lease payments from PTCOIl and Oceanwide
USA Holdings are capitalised as right of use assets and lease
liabilities.

BEMBREEAE 16 K&

8 PTCOI K2 /8 < Bl 2 i /9
ERBE N KRBT ERERR
REEEMEEAS -
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Others

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2019, an intermediate
holding company of the Company acted as
guarantor and provided a guarantee on a loan
borrowed by a subsidiary with a carrying amount
of HK$1,063,034,000 (2018: HK$1,069,191,000)
(Note 30b).

As at 31 December 2019, a keepwell agreement
was executed by an intermediate holding
company of the Company to provide comfort to
the lending fellow subsidiary in respect of a loan
from the fellow subsidiary with carrying amount
of HK$278,459,000 (2018: HK$280,000,000)
that the Company shall be in sound financial
condition to meet all liabilities and perform all
obligations under the loan agreement (Note 30c).

As at 31 December 2019, an intermediate
holding company of the Company secured a
bank deposit of US$8,474,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$65,994,000) on behalf of
PT Mabar for a bank guarantee in favour of PT
Perusahaan Listrik Negara (Persero) (“PLN”), an
Indonesia state owned limited liability company.
The guarantee is required under a power
purchase agreement entered into between PLN
and PT Mabar.

36 EXBABLXRZ (H)

=

l. S

(i)

(i

(i)

ftt

M2019%12A31H » &
NA—EHREERA A
ERERA  BL—REM
BRARAMEA FE&
% 5 75 #1,063,034,000
7T (2018%F : B ¥
1,069,191,0007T) ) &
IR AR (BIFE300) ©

M2019%12A31H + &
NA—HEHREERA A
ERx—ZEEEEBEAS
¥278,459,0007T (2018
% 1 5 #280,000,0007T)
MERBEET R
NABBARENRRZRM
BAARHEARAAIEA
1% R AT 69 B 15 AR 0 LA B
TRERBZETHNRE
EAREBNSE (M
30c ) °

M2019F12A31 8 -
A QAR — P REEZER
A A B REPT Mabar
# JAPT Perusahaan
Listrik Negara (Persero)
([PLNJJ - —HEEE
EBERRAR) BE=mAN
HRAITHE R 8,474,000
ETLT(BERDAEE
65,994,0007T) K IR1T 15
Ko ZBERIBE—
1% APLNEZPT Mabarz]
YHWENEEHE R
ERRf -



36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

i. Others (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company procured a
standby letter of credit in favour the licensed
bank to secure for a bank loan borrowed
by the Company with a carrying amount of
HK$975,076,000 (Note 30a). The loan was
repaid in full during the year ended 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2018, an intermediate
holding company of the Company secured
a bank deposit for guarantees in favour of
the licensed bank for a bank loan borrowed
by the Company with a carrying amount of
HK$781,000,000 (Note 30a). The loan was
repaid in full during the year ended 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2018, a keepwell deed was
executed by an intermediate holding company of
the Company with certain undertakings in favour
of the lender for a loan borrowed by a subsidiary
with a carrying amount of HK$1,200,246,000
(Note 30a). The loan was repaid in full during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

37 APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
board of directors of the Company on 24 April 2020.

36 EXEBLIXRS (&

i. H

==

(iv)

(vi)

fib (4&)

MN20184F12A31H » &
N A — B R R A A
BTN EIETATH

AZBRERRZ ER
HARFIEARE S

/575 #975,076,0007T 2
|ITER 2B (K5
30a) ° H E2019%12A
BIHIEFE ZEER
EEHEE -

M2018412A831H -
KA R — [P R
DA —EEFRRITA
Xm ARE-FRT
GBR - 1EBBAARAME
A—ZFRESEAEEE
781,000,0007T K R 1T &
B R (M 5E30a) °
#H E2019%12A31H 1t
FE ZEERDEH

(=85

o

M2018412A831H8 -
KA R — [P R
NAEI— M ERRFT
BA-FRESEARBE
1,200,246,0007t W &
REBELHETRE AR
EMERAEEET
# & (M 3£30a) - B &
2019412 A31H I+t F
B ZEEREBHE
;\%o

37 #HESRESMKERRK

4R A B 5 3Rk R B 7202094 A24H
BARNFIESSHOE o
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019

38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

38 FEMEBATINFE

MR2019F12A31HE T B E QA7)

are as follows: FEAT
Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
rE
—E e BERER
Mt g~ B BB & AR SZ 3t Bh EBRITERFE (%) EEEHK
China Oceanwide Capital British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Holding of fund
Management Limited RBHEBRHS 50,0003 7T investments
HZEAEBRBRAF RAEEEKRE
China Oceanwide International British Virgin Islands US$100 100 Holding of debt and
Asset Management Limited REHERRES 1003 T equity securities
RREREEEEBERAA RAEEBLERER
s
China Oceanwide International Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 Provision of
Capital Hong Kong Limited BB 75 %10,0007T management
RZEBRERBEEERAA services
RHEEERY
China Oceanwide International British Virgin Islands UsS$100 100 Holding of debt
Capital Investments EEHRARES 1003 T securities
Management Limited REEGKES
FZEBRERKREEEBRAA
China Oceanwide International United States US$309,825 100 Provision of
Properties (US) Corp. EH 309,825% 7T, management and
REZEREREE (=) administrative
BRAF services
REERRITH
AR %%
China Oceanwide Power Co., Hong Kong US$36,555,000 100 Investment holding
Limited s 36,555,000% 7T REERK

REZBEENBRIDF
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38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38 FEMBRAMNFRE (&)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
rE
= BRER
L) N g F B 3L it Bh ERITERFE (%) EEEK
China Oceanwide Power British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Investment | Limited REERRES 50,0003 7T wEERK
RZENREE-—ARAA
China Oceanwide Power British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Investment IV Limited REERRES 50,0003 7T wAE K
RMRENRESOERAA
China Oceanwide Property British Virgin Islands US$1 (Note 1) 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited REBERRES 157t (M &E1) RE=ER
RREEERERAA
China Oceanwide Property Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 Investment holding
International Development BB (Note 1) TEER
Limited 7 #65,000,0007T
PREXBERERARAA (BFEE1)
China Oceanwide Property Sino Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
Limited N (Note 1) REZER
hZEXTEARAF 75 %1,000,0007T
(MgE1)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development Holdings Limited ZB4ER RS (Note 1) WEER
R EMERZEIZERERAF 50,0003 7T
(Mt 3E1)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development | Limited REHERRES 50,0003 7T ®E IR
hZEMERESE —ARAA
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development Il Limited EEBERRES (Note 1) TEER
MZEMERERE _FRAA 50,0003 7T
(BF&E1)
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38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38 FEMBERARFRE (&)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
3
¥ BRER
MELRER = AKX 3L it Bh ERITERFE (%) EEEHK
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$3,050,000 100 Investment holding
Development Il Limited RBHEBRHS (Note 1) REER
hZEMERERE=FARAA 3,050,000 7T
(MFE1)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development IV Limited EEBERRES (Note 1) TEER
FZEMERERENERAA 50,000% 7T
(BF3ET)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development V Limited HERBRES (Note 1) B 1
REEMERZEERLARAF 50,0003 7T
(BF3ET)
China Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
Development VI Limited NBHRRHS 50,0003 7T HEER
RZEMERZEESFRAF
Grand Hover International Hong Kong HK$2 (Note 1) 100 Property investment
Development Limited BB o (FYsE1) WERE
BEERZERER AT
Jeanwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 (Note 1) 100 Property investment
EERRRARAT B B2 (MEE1) MERE
Oceanwide Investment Two Hungary Paid-in capital of 100 Provision of loan
(Hungary) Limited Liability ) ZF %I US$10,700 financing to group
Company = N companies
10,700% 7T A & E A 7] 12 it
ERREE
Oceanwide Investment Three Hungary Paid-in capital of 100 Provision of loan
(Hungary) Limited Liability ) 7 A US$10,700 financing to group
Company HMEER companies
10,700% 7T &= B A 7] 52 it
ENRE
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38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38 FEMBRAMNFRE (&)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
xE
= BRER
MELR SR F B 3L it Bh ERITERFE (%) EEEK
Oceanwide Real Estate U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Development HI Corp. ES US$123,858,014 BE R
(Note 1)
BERRZETHERE LA BREXR
123,858,014% 7T
(Mt5E1)
Oceanwide Real Estate Group U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
(USA) Corp. % US$873,466,648 BEER
RERREER (EH)RNHAER BREXR
NIk 873,466,648% JT
Oceanwide Real Estate British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 Investment holding
International Investment EEERRES 50,000 7T BEER
Company Limited
2R BRBIRIREBR AT
Oceanwide Real Estate u.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Investment HI Corp. =S US$213,970,679 REEK
BERRZETHERERA (Note 1)
BREXR
213,970,679 T
(BFEE1)
Oceanwide Real Estate u.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Investment NY Corp. x US$68,682,649 WE R
(Note 1)
MKz BABERE QA BREXR
68,682,649% 7T
(Mt5E1)
Oceanwide Real Estate u.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Investment holding
Management HI Corp. = US$301,046,779 BEER

ERRZBIHEEERE"

(Note 1)
BERER
301,046,779% 7T
(FH5E1)
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38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38 FEMBRANFE (&

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
3
¥ BRER
MELRER = AKX 3L it Bh ERITERFE (%) EEEHK
Oceanwide Center NY LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Real estate
MKz /R OER DR ESE US$68,682,649 development
(Note 1)
BREXR o 3 2E 2 R
68,682,649% 7T
(MFE1)
Oceanwide Plaza LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Real estate
wBESER AR ES US$873,476,148 development
BRAENR 5 b 2 B R
873,476,148% T
Oceanwide Resort Community U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Real estate
HI LLC x US$123,808,014 development
RBERREBRILEER QA (Note 1)
BREXR i E R
123,808,014% 7T
(BFEE1)
Oceanwide Resort HI LLC U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Real estate
wBEBEREBRNER AR e US$213,970,679 development
(Note 1)
BRAENR P 1 /2 B R
213,970,679% T
(fFEE1)
Oceanwide Resort Paradise HI U.S. Paid-in capital of 100 Real estate
LLC ES US$300,996,779 development

RBERREBRREBRAF"

(Note 1)
BREXR
300,996,779k 7T
(fFEE1)
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38 PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38 FEMBRANFE (&)

Group’s
Place of effective
operations/ Particulars of interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation issued capital (%) Principal activity
¥
= BERER
L) N g F B 3L it Bh ERITERFE (%) EEEK
PT. Banyuasin Power Energy Indonesia Rupiah 85 Operation of power
gHfe 150,000,000,000 plant
150,000,000,000 REHEmR
R E
PT. Mabar Elektrindo Indonesia Rupiah 60 Operation of power
e 210,000,000,000 plant
210,000,000,000 REHEmR
Efefd
Oceanwide Shen Gang Asset PRC (Note 2) Paid-in capital of 100 Property investment
Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* = B (ffi5E2) US$16,000,000 MR E
REBRBEEKLE(LE)AER (Note 1)
NG BREXR
16,000,000% 7T
(Mt3E1)
Oceanwide Gang Hu Asset PRC (Note 2) Paid-in capital of 100 Property investment
Operation (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* B (F:E2) Us$7,000,000 YL E
REBEBREEKE (LB AR (Note 1)
NEC] R AR
7,000,000 7T
(fFE1)
For identification purpose only Exes 4l
Notes: B 5
1. The issued shares of the subsidiary of the Company were pledged to 1, R2019F12A31H * AR R ZMB A
secured borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2019. ANBEETRHOCER EFARFA
SENEEHER -
2. A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise 2. —BINEBELE
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

39 7~ 1 B B9 B # AR 0 2R I Ak

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE Be g
COMPANY
a. Statement of financial position of the a. ARDEHHEMRRE
Company
2019 2018
20194 20184
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 BET T BET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RWBRANEE 661,035 661,035
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 10,012 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE S B B A B R IE 9,374,944 10,810,781
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H th JE W F18 2,522 2,622
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,048,513 11,474,338
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UG BT /B8~ R 3RIE 1,942,315 1,885,511
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H b JE YL FR B 2,041 1,462
Restricted cash ZREIE 2 - 15,668
Cash and cash equivalents HeERAEEEY 15,733 604,060
... \960,089 2,506,701
Total assets EEHE 12,008,602 13,981,039
EQUITY R
Equity E=
Share capital A% 7% 29 1,614,265 1,614,265
Reserves G 7,885,870 8,317,265
Total equity B 9,500,135 9,931,530
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION O KATNHBEMRRAERRR
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BB (&

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

a. Statement of financial position of the

2N 7] HY B AR R R

Company (continued) (%)
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BETT BT T
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to an intermediate JFE <t — i AP R 4 R
holding company YNSIE@EE] 1,609,299 895,778
Borrowings B 575,407 564,379
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,225 -
2,186,931 1,460,157
Current liabilities REafE
Other payables and accruals Hib et zkiE & et IE B 18,605 31,588
Lease liabilities HEaE 8,477 -
Borrowings BE 294,454 2,557,764
Total liabilities BEEEE 2,508,467 4,049,509
Total equity and liabilities EzREEHEE 12,008,602 13,981,039

ANDRHB BN RER TR
20204 A4 REESH K
THATKRREE -

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 April
2020 and was signed on its behalf.

HAN Xiaosheng LIU Guosheng

BEL 21 FH
Chairman Director
*E EZE
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

b. Reserve of the Company

b. ARATRNFE

Retained
Capital Convertible profits/
Share redemption Contributed note equity (Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
TRREE RENR/
RARE EAEORE HARR  ERRE (RHER) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
At 1 January 2019, 20191 A1A
previously reported (A 2H) 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23,121 107,589 8,317,265
Adoption of HKFRS 16 FEEBHKHE
BB £16% - - - - (519) (519)
At 1 January 2019, as 20191 A1H
restated (mE5) 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23,121 107,070 8,316,746
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (430,883)  (430,883)
Written back of unclaimed & [E & EER &
dividends - - - - 7 7
At 31 December 2019 72019%12A31H 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23,121 (323,806) 7,885,870
At 1 January 2018 "2018F1 A1H 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 - 279,298 8,465,853
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (171,716)  (171,716)
Written back of unclaimed BB R EHKE
dividends - - - - 7 7
Issue of convertible notes TR AR ZE - - - 23,121 - 23,121
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A318 8,181,541 3,558 1,456 23,121 107,689 8,317,265
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39 KA HEMRRERRRE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE g (EF)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Reserve of the Company (Continued)

The application of share premium account is governed
by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended).

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the consolidated shareholders’
funds of subsidiaries when they were acquired by the
Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
share capital issued for the acquisition.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

()  the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

(i)  the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company was nil (2018: HK$109,045,000).
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

a.

CHINA OCEANWIDE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors and chief
executive of the Company for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 is set out in Note 16a.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors of the Company received or will
receive any retirement benefits or termination benefits
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third
parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company does not pay consideration to third parties
for making available directors’ service (2018: Nil).

40 EEENRAN =

EERBSTHRAER
M <=

KARSEER&ESITHA
B R E £2019F &2018%F12
A318 Ik F [E 1 % B & 72 I
F16a °

EERKE N RBEER
& 7

& AR A EEE RN EE2019
F12A318 EFEWE KB
T B A o] 3R R A8 F) 2k B B 1R
(20184 « £) -

MERHEEE RS A
BZAXAAHRE

RE Z=2019F 128318 IEF
EAREWERERHEES
R M =7 ZFR(E (2018
F|E) o



e B HmR MR ()

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

40 EEENRN=E (&)

d. Information about loans, quasi-loans d BEBEUNEE -ZTES

and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entitles with such
directors

As at 31 December 2019, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
controlled entities with such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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41 EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, from 1 January
through 20 March, 2020, three other contractors sued
Oceanwide Plaza to foreclose on their mechanic’s liens.
These lawsuits total US$27.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$211.0 million). One of these contractors
has not served its lawsuit on Oceanwide Plaza, and
Oceanwide Plaza has not yet had to respond to the other
lawsuits. Any provision made is based on the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking
into consideration time value.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this report, subsequent
to 31 December 2019, the following subsequent events
took place, which is a non-adjusting event to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019:

The emergence and spread of novel coronavirus epidemic
(“COVID-19”) since early January 2020 has affected global
business and economic activity. Pending development
of such subsequent non-adjusting event, the Group has
preliminarily assessed the impact of outbreak of COVID-19
towards future financial statements and considered adverse
effect on the project completion dates and the fair value/net
realisable value of certain assets of the Group, which may
result in significant impairment on these assets. The Group
will closely monitor the evolving COVID-19 situation, yet
an estimate of its financial impact on the Group cannot be
reliably measured at this stage.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBHE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

20195 2018% 20174 20165 20155
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERETT  ABTIT ARTr ARTr BRI

Results EF

Revenue e A 113,027 138,637 142,174 153,390 189,208
Operating (loss)/profit £ & (&18),/F 8 (47,866) (53,679) 86,556 257,436 152,888
Interest expense BB (6,066) - - _ _

(Loss)/profit before tax ~ BR T AT (B1E),/
B (53,932) (53,679) 86,556 257,436 152,888
Income tax expense PSRz (17,962) (26,243) (17,411) (87,188) (22,212)

(Loss)/profit for the year X (E18),/

) (71,894) (79,922) 69,145 170,248 130,676
Attributable to: AT BB
Shareholders of the EN/NGIES
Company (58,044) (48,840) 70,422 136,214 122,510
Non-controlling interests 3458 % 1 %5 (13,850) (31,082) (1,277) 34,034 8,166
(71,894) (79,922) 69,145 170,248 130,676

Assets and liabilites ZEREE

Total assets BELE 24,914,065 24,245,635 21,458,109 16,967,177 8,734,914
Total liabilities BELE (14,361,760) (13,433,195) (10,282,309)  (5,684,470)  (2,343,710)
Net assets BEFE 10,552,305 10,812,440 11,175,800 11,282,707 6,391,204
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

TENEEHR

Particulars of major properties held by the Group which have R2019%F 12 A31 H  AEEHENE
been completed for existing use or under development at 31 ERE AR SFAEREEMEERNT ¢

December 2019 are as follows:

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A. REYE

Gross floor  Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type area interest
218t i 22 4 5 il EEEE EiREs
(sq.m)
(FHK)
Completed
[E5 351
Various units on levels 2, 5-7, The land use term of the Commercial 10,954 100%
11 & 16 and the whole of property is 50 years from & F (excluding
levels 1, 3-4, 14-15 & 18-23, 19 November 1992 to 18 car park)
and 50 car parking spaces in November 2042 ({ZEIFBHRIN)
the basement, Harbour Ring ZELTHERESE A
Huang Pu Centre, No. 98 504 - A1992F 11519
Luhe Road, Huangpu District, H=Z=2042%11A18H
Shanghai, China.
B EETERE S A K98 B
BEESHAR L2« 5-7 « 11 K% 1618
ZEEM 13-4 14-15}%
182312 ' AR N FE
55018 {7 °
Various units on levels 9-12 & 18  The land use term of the Commercial 29,127 100%
and the whole of levels 2-4, property is 50 years from 5 B (excluding
5-6, 13-14, 17, 23-24, 28-29 1 August 1993 to 31 July car park)
& 31-32 and 152 car parking 2043 (I EIHRIN)
spaces in the basement, UMELTHERESHA
Harbour Ring Plaza, No. 18 504 + 1993F8A1H
Xizang Zhong Road, Huangpu £2043%F7A31H
District, Shanghai, China.
FE DM ERRARP K18
SBkEEESO-12 1818 L (@ E
fif »2-4+-5-6-13-14-17
23-24 - 28-29 % 31-32%E &
C AR TR B IS152{E &
fif o
Under development
FEH
1101 South Flower Street, Los Freehold land with no Commercial 41,800 100%
Angeles, the U.S. expiry date 72 FA (exclude
EBR BB IEA11015% KAZERETH - EEIH B car park)
(= EIHRIN)
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B OTHER PROPERTIES B. Hitt¥%
Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type area interest
BBt 2 h EZFH il EEEE EiRERE
(sq.m)
(FHK)
Completed
2% R
Unit 1006 and 1007 on level 10 The land use term of the Commercial 378 100%
in Harbour Ring Plaza, No. 18 property is 50 years from 7 F

Xizang Zhong Road, Huangpu
District, Shanghai, China

R E 8T = E IR R P S 185%
V& [ 3510181006 % 1007 8 fi

1 August 1993 to 31 July
2043
ZMERLHEREFIA
504 - H1993F8H1H
F2043F7H31H

C. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

C. BRFYXEHE

PROJECTS
Expected
completion Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type date area interest
BB B b 22 £ 1A Al B AR EEEE Eih R
(sg.m)
(SF7K)
1101 South Flower Street, Freehold land Commercial/ 2022 96,449 100%
Los Angeles, the U.S. with no expiry Residential 20224 (exclude
EEEAZHEEEE11015% date ElEP A== car park)
KA LM - (FEHERIN)
EREE
80 South Street, New York, Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 75,975 100%
the U.S. with no expiry Residential determined
X BB LB A0 date BA/EE AE
KAFHELH -
mIHA
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Expected

completion Gross floor Attributable
Name/Location Lease expiry Type date area interest
BB B i 22 £ HR il B EAEE EEER Eih R
(sq.m)
(F7K)
Ko Olina Parcels 54B, 54C Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 92,292 100%
and 55, Honouliuli, District with no expiry Residential determined
of Ewa, City and County of date A 1EE KIE
Honolulu, State of Hawaii, SKAEREL M
the U.S. EmIHA
EFHERMEBMERLTHRE
@ N IR BRI 1
54B - 54C K55
Ko Olina Parcels 20/21 (lot Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet 149,412 100%
4608), 25/26 (lot 4609) and with no expiry Residential determined
19B (lot 5346-B), Honouliuli, date A 1EE RIE
District of Ewa, City and KA ZERE T M
County of Honolulu, State of #EEHH
Hawaii, the U.S.
EFHERMERMERLTHRE
SE R N IUB BRI AR b 358
20/21 (E46085k 1 31)
25/26 (460957 1 51) &
19B (555346-Bifk %)
Parcel Lots 18734, 18733, Freehold land Commercial/ Not yet Not yet 100%
18252 and 18250, Kapolei with no expiry Residential determined  determined
Area, Honouliuli, District of date A/ 1EE RE (Land area:
Ewa, City and County of KAERELH 2,066,286)
Honolulu, State of Hawaii, mEE A RIE (LH
the U.S. [ER -
EEERBMET LTEE 2,066,286)

ERAREERBEEDR
18734 - 18733 ~ 18252[%
18250
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